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Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Thirty Eighth Annual Report —2022-23

Directors’ Report

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting to you the Thirty Eighth Annual Report of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

Financial Results

The financial performance of your Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2023 is as

under:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Year ended March 31 2023 ‘ 2022 2023 2022

Standalone Consolidated

Revenue from Operations 41,098.22 17,326.14 46653.31 22,363.89
including Other Income
Profit Before Depreciation Interest, 6528.22 (176.6) 6990.80 (25.85)
Exchange Gain/Loss, Non-
recurring items and Tax (PBDIT)
Profit Before Tax and exceptional 1468.96 (5,243.49) 1728.26 (5,304.76)
items
Less: Exceptional items - - - -
Profit Before Tax and after 1468.96 (5,243.49) 1728.26 (5,304.76)
exceptional items
Profit/ Loss After Tax 1077.26 (3,950.53) 1,325.89 (4,012.40)

Business during the year

Your Company had rebound during the FY 2023 after the huge impact of the COVID 19 in the
business of the Company. Your company achieved stellar numbers on with Standalone revenue

crossing INR 410 crores.

During the finance year your Company witnessed release of numerous big budget films and the
revenue from Content division (VPF + Mastering + Content Delivery) totaled to INR 132 Crores.
During the year your Company has entered into a contract with PVR Inox for content-delivery

and VPF services and is expecting a major growth in the business of the Company.

During the year under review your Company has ventured a new division within Qube for
creating Subtitles for movies. 65 Tamil Movies were Subtitled in FY 23 with 4 months of setup.
Your Company aims at exploring more revenue and growth in the future from the said division.
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Owing to pent up demand during lockdown revenue from Product Sales and Services totaled
INR 110 Crores. During the year, Qube launched its premium large screen format screen - EPIQ
in Coimbatore.

On the back of orders from Viacom 18 totalling 18 Crores for IPL 2023 along with other solutions,
the total sales from Media Solutions divisions were 52.7 Crores.

Total sales from Advertisement in FY 23 totalled 88 Crores.

Your Company is desirous of exploring new opportunities in the market keeping in mind the
future of cinema & role of automation in the cinema world. The resumption of revenues
coupled with the cost efficiency measures already undertaken will lead the company to better

profitability in the future.

Changes in Share Capital of the Company

During the year under review your company has made the following changes to the Share Capital
of the Company:

Sr. No Type of Capital Nature of the | Particulars of the | Date of approval
Transaction transaction in EGM/ BM.
1 Authorised Share | Increase in | Rupees EGM: 13%* June
Capital Authorised Share | 57,50,00,000 2022
Capital by | (Fifty Seven
creation of | Crores Fifty | BM: 9% April
additional Lakhs only) | 2022
Preference divided into
Capital of Rs.|5,45,00,000 (Five
3,00,00,000/- Crore Forty Five
(Rupees  Three | Lakhs)  Equity
Crores) divided | Shares of Rs. 10 /-
into Rs. | (Rupees Ten)
30,00,000/- each and
Preference Shares | 30,00,000/-
of Rs. 10/- | (Thirty ~ Lakhs)
(Rupees Ten) | Preference
each Shares of Rs. 10/-
(Rupees Ten)
each
2 Increase in Paid Up | ESOP Mr. Arvind | BM: 5% April
Capital Ranganathan 2022
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exercised his first
tranche of 59,400
ESOP Equity
shares at FV of
Rs. 10/- each and
the Company has
allotted the same.
Preferential Issue
for  Optionally | The = Company | EGM: 13%* June

Convertible has allotted | 2022

Cumulative 27,02,703

Preference Shares | Optionally
Convertible BM: 234 June
Cumulative 2022
Preference

Shares at FV of
Rs. 10/~ and
Premium of Rs.
37/- each to S S
Theatres LLP

Names of Companies which have become or ceased to be its subsidiary (ies), Joint Ventures or
Associate Companies during the year:

A. Qube Cinema Inc., USA. (QCI)

QCI continued breaking into new geographies in FY 2022-23. QCI clocked its highest ever
deliveries at ~135 k. The Gross revenue from services in QCI for the financial year stood at INR.
57.93 Crores.

B. Justickets Private Limited (Justickets), an Associate of your Company effective 29" March
2019

During the year under review, Justickets had a full year of normal operations and witnessed
many major releases across languages which had a positive impact on the online ticketing
business. The revenue from online ticketing business during the year was at Rs.790.15 Lakh and
a growth of 87% was witnessed during the year. The design and development of software for
implementation of the online ticketing project of Andhra Pradesh Government project was
undertaken in full swing during the year under review and the Justickets had completed the

design and development stage and is at the final testing stage.
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C. Scrabble Digital Services DMCC, a Joint Venture Company

During the year under review, your Company has invested AED 51,000 in “Scrabble Digital
Services, DMCC” (“Scrabble DMCC”) on 12 August 2022. Your company holds 13.492% of the
total share capital of the Scrabble DMCC.

e Scrabble DMCC’s budgeted deliveries in Middle East were 600 per week but have been
averaging approximately 900 deliveries per week, representing a substantial increase
compared to last year.

e Scrabble DMCC continued our focus on cost optimization maintaining the operations at
a good pace and within stipulated budgets.

e Scrabble DMCC gained a few new clients which shows growth from the existing clientele
including all Major Studios & 90% of the Independent Distribution space. SDSME
currently has approximately 85% of the market share. Also, scrabble is in the process of
expanding further to African territories.

D. X86 Media Artists Private Limited, a Joint Venture Company

After the year end, your Company has incorporated a Joint Venture Company, under the name
and style “X86 Media Artists Private Limited” on 19%" August 2023. The Company is yet to
subscribe to the Shares of the Company. In this regard, your Company had sought the approval
of shareholders in its meeting held on 7t August 2023.

E. Upmarch Media Network Private Limited, a Joint Venture Company

After the year end, your Company has incorporated a Joint Venture Company, under the name
and style “Upmarch Media Network Private Limited” on 22nd August 2023. The Company is yet
to subscribe to the Shares of the Company. In this regard, your Company had sought the approval
of shareholders in its meeting held on 7t August 2023.

Details of the Subsidiary Company, Associate Company and Joint Venture Company in form
AOC 1 is annexed herewith marked as Annexure A and forms part of this report.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company
which has occurred since 315t March 2023 till the date of report

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which has occurred since 31t March 2023 till the date of this report.

Change in the nature of business if any
There was no change in the nature of the business during the year under review.
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Transfer to Reserves— NIL

Declaration of Dividend— NIL

Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any deposits during the financial year nor has any outstanding
unclaimed or unpaid public deposits as on 31t March 2023.

Details of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel who were appointed or have resigned during
the year

a. Company Secretary

During the year under review, Ms. S. Sri Varshini resigned from the Company and ceased to be
the Company Secretary of the company with effect from 27" August 2022. She thereafter rejoined
the Company as the Company Secretary effective from 1st March 2023.

b.Directors
e Appointment

NIL

o Re-Appointment
NIL

e Change in Designation
NIL

* Resignation

NIL.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013

There are no loans, guarantees or investments exceeding the limits prescribed under Section 186
of the Companies Act 2013. The Company has not granted any loans or guarantees during the
year under review. However, your Company in the Shareholders meeting held on 13* June 2022
had approved a limit of INR 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores) under Section 186 of Companies
Act, 2013. The Loans granted to Justickets Private Limited associate entity has accrued interest
and the balance loan as of 31t March 2023 is INR 229.04 Lakhs.

During the year under review, your Company has made the following investments under Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Sr. No Name of the | Date of | Amount Amount Date of
Company Investment | Invested Approved Approval  of
BM/GM
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1 Scrabble  Digital | 12" August | 51,000 AED 75,000 AED 18* December
Services DMCC, | 2022 2020 (EGM)
Joint Venture
Company

*After the year ended your Company has entered into Joint Venture Arrangement as per the
below details:

X86 Media Artists Private Limited

After the year end, your Company has incorporated a Joint Venture Company, under the name
and style “X86 Media Artists Private Limited” on 19%" August 2023. The Company is yet to
subscribe to the Shares of the Company. In this regard, your Company had sought the approval
of shareholders in its meeting held on 7 August 2023.

Upmarch Media Network Private Limited, a Joint Venture Company

After the year end, your Company has incorporated a Joint Venture Company, under the name
and style “Upmarch Media Network Private Limited” on 22" August 2023. The Company is yet
to subscribe to the Shares of the Company. In this regard, your Company had sought the approval
of shareholders in its meeting held on 7t August 2023.

Net Worth of the Company

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022
Net-worth of the Company 10,376.73 8,496.93

Compliance with Secretarial Standards

During the financial year under review your Company was regular in compliance with the
applicable Secretarial Standards. The Company resolved to withdraw and withdrew the
application filed under Section 131 of the Companies Act, 2013 before the Honorable National
Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench, Chennai for voluntary revision of financial statements
for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2021. Hence, the Company has filed the Financial Statement
etc under section 137 and the Annual Return under section 92 of the Act for the Financial Year
ended 31+t March 2021with delay.

Board Meetings held during the financial year

Six (6) Board Meetings were held during the financial year on 9% April 2022, 3 August 2022, 29"
August 2022, 29t September 2022, 2n January 2023, 1st March 2023.
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Attendance details of Directors

Name of Directors Number of Board Meetings Number of Board Meetings
entitled to attend during the attended during the year
year
P. Jayendra 6 6
V. Senthil Kumar 6 6
M.G. Parameswaran 6 2
Balakrishnan Ramany 6 6

Committee Meeting held during the financial year-

CSR Committee Meeting was held on 1¢t March 2023. The Committee was thereafter dissolved by
the Board in its meeting held on 1%t March 2023.

Details of Policies developed by the Company:

a)

b)

c)

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

The provisions of CSR are not applicable to the Company as the Company has not crossed
the threshold prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, in this
regard. The Company in its meeting held on 1% March 2023 has dissolved the CSR
Committee as the provisions of CSR are not applicable to the Company for the financial year
under review.

Risk Management Policy

Business Risk Evaluation and Management is an ongoing process within the Organization.
Pursuant to Section 134(3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Management of the Company
has framed a Risk Management Policy for the key elements of risk affecting the core
business of your Company. In respect of these, the Company has in place a mechanism to
identify, assess, monitor and mitigate with a view to achieving key business
objectives. Major risks identified by the business and functions are systematically
addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis and it is towards this end that
your Company has obtained ISO 22001 certification for its processes underlying the core
businesses of digital cinema mastering and content licensing. Generally, and as part of this
framework, the Company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the
existence of the Company.

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

Your Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism Policy with a view to provide a
mechanism for employees and directors of the Company to approach the Vigilance and
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Ethics Officer to ensure adequate safeguards against victimization. This policy would help
create an environment wherein individuals feel free and secure to raise an alarm, whenever
any fraudulent activity takes place or is likely to take place. It will also ensure that
complainant(s) are protected from retribution, whether within or outside the organization.

The details of establishment of the Vigil Mechanism Policy are displayed on the website of
the Company www.qubecinema.com. In terms of Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act 2013,
your Company has established a policy with regard to vigil mechanism for directors and
employees to report their genuine concerns in respect to the following areas: -

a. Financial irregularities, including fraud or suspected fraud.

b. Wastage or misappropriation of company money or assets

C. Abuse of authority

d. Misbehavior with stakeholders such as employees, lenders, project
members & their family members, etc.

e. Manipulation of company data/records/register

f. Accused or convicted in any criminal offence

g. Non-compliance with / violation of organization rules & regulations or
statutory requirements

h. Any other unethical, dishonest or biased happenings.

Details pursuant to employee stock options

Issue of employee stock options

Pursuant to Rule 12 (9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, following are
the details regarding Employees Stock Option Scheme: -

ESOP Scheme 2006
Table A

Options Granted 12,14,158
Options Vested 12,14,158
Options Exercised 10,93,558
Total Number of shares arising as a result of exercise of Options | 59,400
Options lapsed NIL
Exercise Price Rs.10/- per Option
Variation of Terms of Options NIL
Money realized by exercise of Options 5,94,000/-
Total number of Options in force 120,600*
Employee-wise details of Options granted to -

1) Key Managerial Personnel NIL
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i) Any other employee who receives a grant of options in
any one year of option amounting to five percent or
more of options granted during the year

iii)  Identified employees who were granted Option, during
any one year, equal to or exceeding one percent of the
issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and
conversions) of the Company at the time of grant

NIL

*After the financial year Mr. Arvind Ranganathan, ex- employee of the Company exercised the
Second Tranche of the 59,400 options out of the 180,000 Options granted to him. The total options

in force as on date is 61,200.
Table B

ESOP SCHEME- 2012

Options Granted

75,000

Options Vested

75,000

Options Exercised

Options not exercised

25,000 Options granted to
Mr. Sanjeev Mebhta-
Business Head- QCN was
not exercised. Hence the
25,000 Options is available
under pool for further
distribution.

17,000 Options granted
to Mr. Harsh Krishna
Rohatgi, CEO was not
exercised. Hence, the
17,000 Options is
available under pool for
further distribution

Options Lapsed 42,000

Exercise Price Rs.130/- per Option
Variation of Terms of Options NIL

Money realized by exercise of Options NIL

Total number of Options in force 75,000
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Employee-wise details of Options granted to —
1) Key Managerial Personnel -

i) Any other employee who receives a grant of options | -
in any one year of option amounting to five percent
or more of options granted during that year

iii)  Identified employees who were granted Option,
during any one year, equal to or exceeding one | NIL
percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding
warrants and conversions) of the Company at the
time of grant

Particulars of Employees

Particulars of employees as required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules
2014- Not Applicable.

Extract of the Annual Return

The requirement of extract of the Annual Return as per Section 92(3) of Companies Act, 2013 is
relinquished by the Amendment of the Companies Act. However the Annual Return in Form
MGT-7 is placed in the website of the Company www.qubecinema.com in compliance to Section
92(3) of Companies Act, 2013.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

Your Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to preparation of financial
statements, commensurate with the size of operations of the Company.

Disclosures as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work place (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

Your Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy
on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints
of sexual harassment at workplace.
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Also, your Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Your Company has received no complaint on sexual harassment during the financial year 2022-
23.

Significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future

No significant orders were received by the Company during the period under review. However,
your Company has resolved to withdraw and withdrew the application filed under Section 131
of the Companies Act, 2013 before the Honorable National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai
Bench, Chennai for voluntary revision of financial statements for the Financial Year ended
31.03.2021.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties

The particulars of contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto in Form No. AOC-2 is annexed herewith marked
as Annexure B and forms part of this report.

Statutory Auditors - BS R & Co. LLP

Your company statutory auditors BSR & Co. LLP., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 101248W/W-
100022), having their office at 10, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai 600 034, was
appointed by the shareholders of the Company in the Thirty Seventh Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on 21+t October 2022 as the Statutory auditors of your company for a period of
5 years commencing from the conclusion of the Thirty Seventh Annual General Meeting.
Accordingly, BSR & Co. LLP., Chartered Accountants, holds office till the conclusion of the Forty
Second Annual General Meeting. The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of
auditors for ratification by Members at every AGM has been done away by the Companies
(Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, the ratification of
appointment of statutory auditors BSR & Co. LLP., Chartered Accountants, Chennai is not
proposed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Auditor’s Report / Secretarial Audit Report

Auditors Report:
There are no adverse remarks or adverse observations in the Auditors” Report which require

clarification from the Board.
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Secretarial Audit Report

The Company has appointed Mr. M R Thiagarajan, Company Secretary in Practice (COP No:
6487), pursuant to provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company. There are no adverse observations made in the Secretarial
Auditors” Report read together with relevant notes thereon, which are self- explanatory The
Secretarial Audit report is annexed herewith as Annexure C.

Details of frauds reported by Auditors in their Report

During the financial year under review, there were no fraud reported by the Auditors in their
report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act 2013 other than those which
are reportable to the Central Government.

XXVI. Maintenance of Cost Records

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable.

XXVII. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Particulars as required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 are annexed herewith
marked as Annexure- D and forms part of this report.

XXVIII. Details of application made under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016)

This is not applicable to the Company.

XXIX. Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement

and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions

This is not applicable to the Company.

XXX. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and
loss of the Company for that period;




c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

XXXI. Acknowledgement

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere thanks and appreciation to its Company
Investors, shareholders, suppliers, customers, employees, bankers and also the Central and State
governments for their continued co-operation and support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Al

P. Jayendra
Chairman& Whole-time Director
DIN: 00320286

Date: 27t September 2023




QUBE CINEMA TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2022-23

Annexure A

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries /
Associate Companies / Joint Ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with INR in Lakhs)

S. No. Particulars Details of Subsidiary
1 Name of the subsidiary Qube Cinema Inc. USA
2 The date since when subsidiary was 27/09/2005
acquired
Reporting period for the subsidiary NA
concerned, if different from the
holding company’s reporting period

Reporting currency and Exchange rate USD, 75.51
as on the last date of the relevant
Financial year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries.

Share capital 4011.35
Reserves & Surplus -2920.22
Total Assets 5045.76
Total Liabilities 3760.22
Investments Nil
Turnover 5794.21
Profit before taxation 249.29
Provision for taxation -0.67
Profit after taxation 248.69
Proposed Dividend Nil
% of shareholding 100

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - NIL
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year —-NIL
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Part “B”: Associates Companies / Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate

Companies and Joint Ventures

A. Justickets Private Limited

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

Details of Associate

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures

Justickets Pvt. Ltd.

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

31.03.2022

Date on which the Associate or Joint venture was
associated or acquired

29t March 2019

Shares of Associate /Joint Ventures held by the company
on the year end

No of Shares

80,58,162

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture

Rs.1164.95

Extent of Holding (in percentage)

43.44%

Description of how there is significant influence

Company is holding
more than 20% of the
Equity Shares of
Justickets Pvt. Ltd.

Reason why the venture is not

consolidated

associate/joint

Not mandatory as per

accounting standards

as the Investment has
been written off

Net-worth attributable to shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet

(Rs. 429.89)

Profit or Loss for the year

i Considered in Consolidation

Nil

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

Rs.-11.05

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year:

NIL
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Part “B”: Associates Companies / Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate

Companies and Joint Ventures

B. Scrabble Digital Services DMCC

(Amount in Lakhs)

S. No.

Particulars

Details of Associate

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures

Scrabble Digital
Services DMCC

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

31st December 2022

Date on which the Associate or Joint venture was
associated or acquired

30t June 2021

*The Company made
the Investment only
on 12" August 2022

Shares of Associate /Joint Ventures held by the company
on the year end

13.492%

No of Shares with FV

51 Shares of AED
1000 each

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture

Rs.11.46

Extent of Holding (in percentage)

13.492%

Description of how there is significant influence

Company is not
holding more than
20% of the Equity
Shares in Scrabble
Digital service
DMCC.

Reason why the venture is not

consolidated

associate/joint

there is no
significant
in the day to day
operations,

consolidation of

Since
influence

financial statements is
not required under
the
Accounting
Standards.

Indian

Net-worth attributable to shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet

NA

Profit or Loss for the year

i Considered in Consolidation

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation




1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year:
NIL

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be
certified.

For & On behalf of the Board
Date: 27 September 2023

T Nk

P. Jayendra V. Senthil Kumar
Chairman and Whole-Time Director
Whole Time
Director
(DIN: 00320286) (DIN: 00320535)
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Annexure B
Form AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of Particulars of Contracts / Arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-length transactions under third proviso

thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Nil

b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Nil

c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions Nil

d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions Nil
including the value, if any

e) | Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements Nil
or transactions

f) | Date(s) of approval by the Board Nil

g) | Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed in general Nil

meeting as required under first proviso to Section 188
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2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

Value in Lakhs
S. Name(s) of the related Nature of contracts / Duration of the Salient terms of the Date(s) of approval | Amount
No. party and nature of arrangements contracts / contracts or arrangements by the Board paid as
relationship / transactions arrangements / | or transactions including advance
transactions the value, if any s, if any
1 | Qube Cinema Inc., USA | Sale of Digital Cinema | Until As per the terms contained | Not applicable as the Nil
[a wholly-owned | Equipment Termination in the Transfer Pricing | Transfer Price
subsidiary ~ of  Qube Agreement and  the | Agreement and the
Cinema Technologies Pvt. subsequent Amendments | subsequent
Ltd. and a Body Corporate entered into between the | Amendments were
accustomed to act under Parties. entered into prior to
the Directions of Qube Value: Rs.140.61/- the commencement of
Cinema Technologies Pvt. the Companies Act
Ltd.] 2013, and the
applicable Rules
made thereunder
2 | Qube Cinema Inc., USA | Reimbursement of | NA Reimbursement of certain | Not applicable as the Nil

[a wholly-owned
subsidiary of  Qube
Cinema Technologies Pvt.
Ltd. and a Body Corporate
accustomed to act under
the Directions of Qube
Cinema Technologies Pvt.
Ltd.]

certain marketing and

related expenses

marketing and related
expenses.

Value: Rs.1125.38/-

Transfer Price
Agreement and the
subsequent

Amendments  were
entered into prior to
the commencement of
the Companies Act
2013, the
applicable Rules

made thereunder

and
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Qube Cinema Inc.,, USA | Providing License to QCI | 3 Years As per the terms contained | 26 June 2019 Nil
[a wholly-owned | to deploy the Software in the Software License
subsidiary of  Qube | developed by the Agreement dated 26t
Cinema Technologies Pvt. | Company April 2019 being deemed
Ltd. and a Body Corporate effective from 01 April
accustomed to act under 2018.
the Directions of Qube Value: Rs. 96.48/-
Cinema Technologies Pvt.
Ltd.]
Justickets Pvt. Ltd. | Reimbursement of | 5 Years & | As per the terms contained | 27" November 2014 | Nil
[An Associate Company | certain marketing and | Automatic in the Shared Services
with Directors in | related expenses renewal for | Agreement dated 7th
Common] successive January 2015 and
renewal terms of | Addendum to  Share
1 year each Service Agreement dated
27th March 2017.
Value: Rs. 142.37/
Digital Film Technologies | Rendering of services | 10 years As per the terms contained | 08" June 2016 Nil
Pvt. Ltd. related to digital cinema in the Addendum 1 dated
[a company in which | business being carried on 9t April 2022 to the | 9™ April 2022
Director’s Relatives are | by the Company Agreement dated 1+t July,
Directors] 2016, Letter of Exchange
dated 3rd July, 2016, First
Amendment to the
Agreement dated
1st October, 2016 and
Second Amendment to the
Agreement dated 25th
June, 2018 entered
between the parties
Reimbursement of Value: Rs. 307.41
expenses

Value: Rs. 87.38/-
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V. Senthil Kumar Vehicle Lease lyear and Terms and Conditions as 12t August 2019 Nil

(Whole-Time Director) automatic per the Vehicle Lease
renewal every Agreement.
year Rs.5.40 Lakhs

P. Jayendra Vehicle Lease 2 years Terms and Conditions as 1st March 2023 Nil
(Whole-Time Director) per the Vehicle Lease
Agreement dated 15%

December 2022

Rs. 10.80 Lakhs

Date: 27t September 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

_

P. Jayendra

Chairman & Whole-time Director
DIN: 00320286




KRM Tower, 1sl and 2nd Floors
B S R & CO . LLP Ne. 1, Harrington Road, Chetpet

Chennai - 600 031, India
Giiarteres Azcouniants Telephone: +91 44 4608 3100

Fax: +91 44 4608 3199

Indiependent Aucitor's Report

To the Members of Qube Cinema Technologles Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited (the
“Company”) which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the standalone statement of
profit and loss {including other comprehensive income}, standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone
staterneant of cash flows for the yvear then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accarding to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standatone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner
50 required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit and other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards an Auditing {SAs} specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditar's Responsibllities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thareunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Caompany's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134{9) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profitf loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
{ind A3) specified under Section 133 of the Act, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
staternents that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is alse responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Agpintormd Office:

BIAL Lo (& parlnership I with Registration Mo Ba61223) convarted ko BS M & Cor LUP {a Limiied Lalbility 141h Flogr, Sgral @ wWing and Momth © 4Wing, Mewp IT Park 4, Meuco Center
Fartnershig with LUP Regriraton Mo AAE 8183 | with sHecr from Octeber 14, 2013 Westorn € xpress Highway, Goregaon (Esd |, Mumbei - $00063
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor's Report {Continued)

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whethar due ta fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with S5As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
ar error and are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due 10
fraud or esror, design and perferm audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to prowvide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting from error, as fraud may invalve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143({3}(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
aur opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriatenass of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concarn basis
of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related o events ar conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalcne financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur cenclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease te continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether tha standalona financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to comimunicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditar’s Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”) issuad by the Central Government
of India in terms of Section 143{11) of the Act, we give in the *Annexure A" a statement an the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A, As required by Section 14243} of the Act, we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of cur knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report {Continued)

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

In our opinion, praper books of accaunt as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss {including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of
cash flows dealt with by this Raport are in agreermant with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

The matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph in “Annexure B” with respect to
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the
Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 04 April 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directars, none of the directors is disgualified as on 31 March 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164{2) of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

a.

b.

The Company has disclosed the impact of panding litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 39 to the standalane financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred t¢ the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

d (i} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and helief, as disclosed in the Note

(i}

46 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds} by the Company te or in
any other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”}, with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
{"Ultimate Beneficiaries"} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate
Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note
46 to the standalone financlal statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
persan{s] or entitylies), inciuding foreign entities ("Funding Parties”}, with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties {"Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to cur notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i} and {ii) of Rule 11{e}, as provided under {i) and {ii} above, contain any material
misstatemant.

The Company have neither daclared nor paid any dividend during the year,

As proviso to rule 3{1} of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company only with
effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11{g} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is
not applicable.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Qube Cinema Technologles Private Limited

€. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16} of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a public
company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 ofthe Act are not applicable to the Company. The Ministry
of Corporate Affalrs has not prescribed other details under Section 197{16) of the Act which are required to
be commanted upan by us.

For B8 SR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

/

Satish Vaidyanathan

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 217042
Date: 28 September 2023 ICAI UDIN:23217042BGRWIH3074
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
of Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Rapaort on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date}

(i} {a) (A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

(i} {b)

i

{iii)

{c)

{d)

(e}

(a)

(b}

(3

situation of Proparty, Plant and Equipment except for location of certain digital cinema equipment. As
represented to us by the management, the Company is in the process of updating its Property, Plant
and Equipment register to reflect these detalls.

The Company has maintained proper records shawing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the property, plant and eguipment which
should have been physically verified by the management during the year, were not so verified on
account of location details not being updated in the fixed asset register for the Projectors. Hence, we
are unable to cormment on the diserepancies, if any. The management has represented to us that the
relevant assets would be additionally covered in the physical verification programme for the subsequent
years.

The Company doas not have any immaovable property (other than immovahie properties where the
Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly,
clause 3{iHc] of the Order is not applicable.

Accarding to the information and exptanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
recerds of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and exptanations given to us and an the basis of our axamination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Campany for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1938 and rules made
thereunder.

The inventory, except for stocks lying with third parties, has heen physically verified by the management
during the year. For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been
obtained by management. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and
procedures and covarage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed
on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the
aggregate of each class of inventory

Aceording to the information and axplanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from hanks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In cur
opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial
institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

According te the information and explanations given te us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or made any
investments in firms and limited liability partnership. The Company has made investments in a company,
granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured te other pacties during the year
in respect of which the requisite information {5 as below.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given to us
the Company has provided loans or made investments as below:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
of Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Continued)

{c)

{d

(iv)

()

i}

{b)

(e}

Particulars Investments Loans and Advances in nature
(INRin Lakhs) of loans
(INR in Lakhs)

Aggregate amount during the year,
Joint Venture

171.41
Others
11.46 7.35
Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date
Joint Venture -
Others 11.46 12.76

* As per the Companies Act, 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the awdit procedures conducted
by us, in our opinicn the investments made and the grant of foans and advances in the nature of loans
during the year. are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in the case of loans and advances in the nature of loan given during the year,
in our opinion the repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated but interest
receipts on loan given to Justickets Private Limited amounting to INR 29.04 lakhs has not been regular.

According to the information and explanations given to us and en the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans given
axcept an interest receipts on loan given to Justickets Private Limited amounting to INR 29.04 lakhs
overdue for more than 90 days as at 31 March 2023. In cur opinion, reasonable steps have not been
taken by the Company for recovery of the interest though it has been represented to us that the
Company will take steps for recovery shortly.

According to the information and explanations ghven to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due during the
year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing
loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explan ations given to us and an the basis of our examination of records
of the Company, in respect of investments made and loans, given by the Company, in our opinion the
provisions of Section 185 and 1386 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) have been complied with, The
Company has not given any guarantees and securities,

The Company has not accepted any daposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public. Accordingly, clause 3{v} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
the maintenance of cost records under Section 148{1) of the Act for the services provided by it.
Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
of Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Continued)

{vii} {a)

fb)

(viii)

(ix] {2)

{b}

{c)

{d}

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and value added
tax during the year, since effective 1 Iuly 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into G5T.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Campany, in our opinion amounts deducted f accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, income-Tax, Duty of Customns or Cess or other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities, though theve have heen slight delays in a few cases of
Professional Tax and Income Tax

According to the information and explanations given te us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amaunts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues were in
arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employaes
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the MNature of the Amount Period to which Forum where
statute dues {INR in Lakhs) the amount dispute is
relates pending
Finance Act, 1994 | Service Tax 160.18" | 2004-05 to 2011- | CESTAT, Chennai
12
Mabharashtra VAT | Value Added Tax 36.48 | 2006-07,2009-10 | Deputy
Act 2006 Commissioner of
sales tax

Tamil Nadu Vat | Value Added Tax 52.98 | 2008-09 to 2014- | High Court of
Act, 2006 15 Madras

" Represents amount paid under protest 9.4 lakhs.

According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basls of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as incoma during the year..

fccording to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of tha
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or government authority.

In aur opinion and aceording to the information and explanations given ta us by the management, term
loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
of Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Continued)

(el

{f

(x} tal

{b)

(v} (a)

{b}

ic)

{xii)

{xdii)

{xlv} ta}

(b}

(v}

(i) fa)

{b)

{c)

shaet of the Company, we report that no funds raised an short-term basis have been used for long-term
purposes by the Company,

According to the information and explanations given to us amd on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures as defined under the Act,

Accarding to the informatian and explanatians given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year. on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies {as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3{x){a} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has made private placement of shares during the year. In our
opinion, in respect of private placement of shares made during the year, the Company has duly complied
with the requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act. The proceeds from issue of shares have
been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit,

According to the Information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section {12} of Section
143 of the Act has been filed by the auditers in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Centra! Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Cempany is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3{xii) of the Crder is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by the
provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where
apphicabie and details of such transactions have bean disclased in tha standalone financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, though the Company is
required to have an internal audit system under Section 138 of the Act, it did not have such a system
during the year.

The Company did not have an intarnal audit system for the peried under augit.

In our opinion and accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or parsons connected to its directors and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Accordingly, clause 3(xvij{a) of the Orderis not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Accordingly, clause 3{xvil{b] of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core lnvestment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations mada by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xwi){c} of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
of Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Continued)

id)

[xwii)

(i)

{xix)

{x04)

The Company is not part of any group {as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank} Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3{xvi)(d) are not
applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash lasses in the current financial year and has incurred cash losses of
Rs. 1,398.12 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xvill) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheat date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, ctauses 3{xx)(a) and 3{xx){b) of the Order are not applicable,

ForB S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

L

Satish Vaidyanathan

Partner

Place: Chennai Membership No.: 217042
Date: 28 September 2023 ICAL UDIN;23217042BGRWIH3074
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the standalone financial statements
of Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause {i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

{Referred to in paragraph 2{A)(e} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date}

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Qube Cinema
Technologies Private Limited { “the Company") as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

We do not express an opinion on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company.
Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company.

We have considered the disclaimer reported below in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests

applied in our audit of the standalone financial staternents of the Company, and the disclaimer does not affect our
opinion on the standalone financial statements of the Company

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

The system of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were not made available to us to
enable us to determine if the Company has established adequate internal financial contral with reference to
financial statements and whether such internal financlal controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Contrals

The Company's Managament and the Board of Directors are responsibie for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note, These
respensibilities inchude the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financlal controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the arderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preventlon and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinlon on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statemeants.

Because of the matter desceribed in Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph above, we were not able to obtain sufficient

appropriate audit evidence to provide a hasis for an audit opinion on internal financial contrals with reference to
financial statements of the Company
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the standalone financial statements
of Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process desighed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the relability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial
statements for extermal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1}
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasenabie dexail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispasitions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that iransactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or dispasition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the standalone financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Cantrols with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may accur and not be detected. Also, projactions of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial staternents may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForB 3R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Ragistration No.:101248W/W-100022

Ve

Satish Vaidyanathan

Partner

Place: Chennai Membership No.: 217042
Date: 28 September 2023 ICAl UDIN:23217042BGRWIH3074
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Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Standalone Ralance sheet as at 31 March 2023
(Al armownis are in Indign Rupees lakhs, urdess offrerwise sated)

As at A5 at
MNote 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Properiy, plant and equipment 4 10167 &6 8.793.29
Capital work-in-progress 5 769,56 1,040.81
Riglu-of-use asseds [ 654,13 896.60
Inlangible assels 7 - 455,52
Financia) asscts
Inweaiments 8 2.175.06 216360
Trade receivables 9 1,073.20 490,41
Loans 10 200.00 200,00
Other financial assets 1 353,49 437,32
Deferred tax assets {net} 33 5.968.78 6,340,12
Income tax assets 12 88748 468,39
Other assels 13 467,82 543.69
Total non-current assets 238 21,739,758
Current assets
[nventories 14 5.971.18 2937135
Financial asgets
Trade receivables 2 8,5719.73 552254
Cash and cash equivalents 15 94.26 111,80
Bank balances oiher than cash and cash equivalents 16 2,33%22 1,695,352
Loans 1] 6153 2237
Other financial ussets 11 150.99 3L.02
Other assets 13 1.031.76 2,113.44
Total current nssets 20,234.67 12,713.84
Total assets 42,952,058 34,453,59
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equily share capital 17 2,749 83 2,743 89
Other equity 18 1.626.90 575304
Total equity 10,376.73 8, 496.93
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Bamrowings 19 5,368.27 323429
Lease labilities 20 55001 506.22
Other Binancial liabilities 21 2,438.96 226895
Provisions 23 xm 25848
Other liabilities 22 986.41 159.87
Total non-current liabilities 9,707.37 842781
Current liabilities
Financial liabililies
Borrowings 19 8,603 .53 554616
Lease Liabilities 0 262.26 580.69
Trada payablas
Total oulstanding dues of micro enlerprises and small enterprises 96,86 -
Total outstanding dwes of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 24 5,072.72 Az
Other financial liabilities M 847.16 49523
Provisions 23 113.09 %0.01
Other habilities 22 7.47133 7.012.5%
Total current liabilities 21,867,958 17,528.85
Tuotal liabilities 32,575.32 25,956.66
Total equity and ligbilities 42,9505 34,455.59
Significant accounting policies 1
The notas rafarred to above Form an integeal part of these standalone finencial statements
As per our report attached
Jor BSR & Co. LLP Sor and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of
Chartered Accourntants Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Firm's Registration Number : 10E248W/! W- 100022

CIN . U92490TNI986PTTO 12536 'l ]
)
) (A :
‘\iﬁg;{‘@ 5’“ \}M';"’“-“f
L -

112N i
Satish Vaidyanathan Jayendra V Senthil Kumar Sri Varshini
Pariner Whotetinte Director Wholetime Director Company Secretary
Membership No.: 217042 DIN : 00320286 DIN ; 00320535
Plage: Chennai Place: Place: Chennai Place: Chennai

Date: Date:,lfr—{w«?f 25 Date:kﬂp#p‘& I)i&lc:(ﬂ'ﬁfﬂ’?f[)- %



Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Standalone statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(A amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

Year ended Year ended

Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenuwe
Revenue from operations 25 44,867.62 16,831.15
Other income 6 230.60 404 04
Total revenus 41,09§.22 17,326.14
Expenses
Purchases of slock in (rade 27 12,681.57 4,405.30
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 28 (3,040.03) (555.74)
Employee benefits expense 29 8,283.63 5,623.86
Finance ¢osts 30 1,237.12 1,124.05
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 1,822.14 3,042.84
Other expenses 32 16,644.83 £.029.32
Total expenses 39.62%.26 22,562.63
Profitf (Loss) before tax 1,468,960 (5:243.49)
Tax expense:
Current tax - -
Deferred tax expense / (benefit) 3@1.70 (1,292.96)
Income tax expense / (henefit) 13 39170 (1,292.96)
Profit / (lass) for the year 1.077.26 {3.95.53)
Other comprehensive income
Ttems thiat will ot be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans (30.81 6944
Income tax effect relating to remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans 20.35 {17.48)
Net other comprehensive income that will not be veclassified subsequently to profit or loss {60.52) 51.96
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year 1,016.74 (3.898,57)
Earnings per share: 37
Basic eamings per share (INR) 192 (15.26)
Diluted earnings per share (INR) 3.57 (15.26)
Significant accounting policies 3
The notes referred to above form an integral pari of these standalone financial statements
Asg per our report attachad
for BSR & Co. LLP _for and on behalf af the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accowntants Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited
Firm's Registration Number : 101248W/ W-100022 CIN : U924%TNE986PTCO12536

Batish Vaidyanathan Jay mlrn
Fartner Whalettme Director
Membership No.: 217042 DIM : 00320286
Place: Chennai Place:

Date: Date:o | ol 23

V Senthil Kumar
Wholetime Director
DIN : 0032053§

Place: Chennagi

Date: -} oqf‘}f;

Sri Varshini
Company Secrefary

Place: Chennai

Date: Pfogf2 2



Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited
Standalone statement of eash flows for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023
(A arnonrnts are i foelian Rupees fokdfs, mofess otfrerwise stafed)

Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash flow lrom operating activities
Profit / (loss) before tax 1,468.57 ($.243.49)
Adjustinenis:
Depreciation and amor isation expenses 31 382214 3,942 B4
Net gain on sale of property, plani and equipment 24 {12.56) {612}
Bad debis written off a2 = 1321
Impainnenl losses on financial instruments 32 641.53 6524 45
Provisipn for inventory 14 189.01 12071
Finance costs 30 1,237.02 1.124.05
Finance income 26 {89.43) (129 Sy
Interest income on security deposit paid 26 (23.50) (1270)
WMotional rental income on security deposil cecaived 25 {54600 (251.47)
Unrealised 0ss on foreign exchange (netl) 130.97 3670
7,309,286 208.24
Working capital ndjustments;
{Increase) i invenlories (3,229.043 (676 45)
{Increase) in trade receivables (4,387.70) (2,504 93)
Deacrease £ (increase) in loans and other financial assels 22589 {285.00)
{Increase} in other assets {842.45) {434 2%
Increase in trade payable and other financial liabilities 1.812.14 22391
Increase in provisions and other liabilivies 1,654.12 143024
Cash penevated fram / (used in) operating activities 2,543.21 {2,02%.31)
{Income lax paid) / retund received (nel) {439.06} 662 .66
Met cash generated from f (used in) operating activitics (A) 2,104.1% {1, 366.65)
Cash Nows Mrona investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress (4,098.69) {1,791.26}
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and squipment 157 Q357
Bank deposils placed wiih original matucily ol nore than 3 months (642,70} {6064}
Acquistion of other investements (11.46) (448.98)
[nterest received 80.43 129.09
Net cash used in investing activities {B) (4.648.71) {2,162.22)
Cash Nows from finandng activities
Proceeds fiom borrowings 4,547 64 422330
Repayments of borrowings (1,607.55) {2.136.79)
Repayment of principal portion of leaze Labilities {404 26) (337403
Proceeds from issue of shares 594 1,765.55
Proceeds from issue of optionally convertible cumulative preference shares 100000 -
Tnterest paid on lease labilitics {97.0%) (127.69)
Interest paid on financial labilities measured at amortised cost [ 31 (77861)
Net cash firom financing actlvities () 2,543.38 2 T08.36
Net (lecrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) (1.18) {820.51)
Cash and cash sguivalents at the beginming of the year [(906.35) 414.1¢
Cash and cash equivalents st the e of the year 15 (450 {406.35)
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per the above comprises of he ol lawing
Asg at As at
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Cash on hand 0.97 097
Bank balances 9329 11083
Bank overdrafis [501.79) {518.151
Balances as per statement of cash flows (407.53) {406.35)
Refer note 20} for disclosure on changes in liabilities arising from financing activilies
Significan! aceounting policies 3

The noies referred to above form an integral part of these standalone financial statements
As per our reporl attached

for BER & Co, LLP
Chartered Aecountants
Finn's Registration Number | 101248W/7 W-100022

fore oed ont Peduelf of the Board of Derectors of
Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited ‘[

]
CINLO2490TNI986PTCO 1 2536 " ,QL-"-/V
NE U i sy

Satih Vaidyanathan & P Jayendra ¥ Senthil Kumar Mi
Partrer Wihederime Direcior Wiheletinte Direcior Compenty Secrefon:
Membership No.: 217042 DM 00320286 DN ; 03320535

Flace: Chenmngi Placs; Place: Chenn Place: Chennai

Dale; Rale: aﬂO‘l ll} pae 29 ’01'13 =y lﬂ«l’-&
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Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited
Motes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
AR comerients e i fdient Mipees fuklis, widess ofherive sioted}

2

Backgtound

Oube Cinema Technolopies Prnate Limited {(Foomerly Real lmage Media Technolopies Prvate Limited) (“the Company”} was
incorporated on 1 Januany' 1986 The Company 1s domiciled and incorporated in India wirh its iegisiered address sihuated at Mo, 42,
Dr Ranga Road, Mylapore, Chennai, Tamil Madu - 600004 . The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing digilal
cinema service. The Company atsn provides other services such as contenl mastering. managed services and in-theatre advertising

Basis of preparation

1.1 {a} Statement of compliunce

These linancial stateroents of Lhe Compaity have been prepared in sceordanve with Indien Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 notified wnder Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the "Art") and ather
rekevant provisions of the Act

These financial staiements were anthorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 27 September 2023
Detarls of the Company's accounting, pelicies are included in Note 2

2.1 () The management of the Company has camied out an assessment of the appropnateness of the goMg-CoNcem assuWmphon, Impamment

2.2

1.3

.5

of assets and other related aspects and as on the date of approval of the standalone financial statements, il beheves that there are no
Signi ficant ianal:l The company had incurred lesses in the previgus year ¢md and had accumulaled logses of INR 4,079 04 lakhs |
Ihat has eroded the nerwarth Dunig the vear, the company has eamed operating peofits and expecis to generale positive cashflows
consisterdly. Aceordingly, the managemen considers yoing concern assumption is appropriate

Functonal amd presentation currency

These financial siatements are presented i Indian Kupees (IMNR). which is also the Company's funclional currency. All amaunts have
been rounded-off o the nearest lakhs. valess otherwise stated

Basis of measurenicnt

The financial staserments have been prepared on the historical cost basis excepr for the following itenms;

ltems M easurcment basis
- Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derwvaive insiruments and share based  Fair value
= hlet defined benefin assetstlabiling Fair vale of plan assets, less present

value of defined benefit obligations

Current / Mon-current classification

All assets and liabililies have been classificd as carmenl of non-current as per the Company's nommal eperating cycle and other criteria
set out i the Schedule (1 16 1he Companies Act, 2013 Based on the nature of products and secvices and the Time beeween the
acquisition of agsets and Ihen realisation i cash and cash equivaleznts, the Company has ascerained ité operating cyele as twelve
months for the pupese of curent and non-cumen classification of assets and habilites

Usc of estimates and judpem ents

In preparing the standalone firancial statements, management has made judgements, estimaies and assumplions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the 1eported amounts of assets, liabilities. income and expenses. Acual resulls may differ from
these csimates

Estimytcs and underlying asswnplions sre reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting estinates are recognised
Judgements

Information abeul judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant cffects on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements is included in Lhe following notes.

- hlote 36 — fair valuation of financial asseis
= Mote 39 - lease classification

Assuntpitons and estimation anceriainiies

Infgrmation abowt assuniplions and esimation uncerainties al have a significant visk of vesuling in 3 malerial adjustnent in the
weal ended 31 Mareh 2023 is inclided in the following notes:

Nolc 7 & § - Impaiment Lest of non-financial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts including the recoverabiliy of
expenditure on miemally pencrated inlangible asse1

Nole 35 - 1ecapnition of defeired tax assels.

Noxte 36 - measurement of defined beneli obligations: key avtuanyl assumptions;

ol 37 - impairment of Hnancial assers;

boote 6 4 21 - Measurement of lzase habalities and Right of Use Asscl

Inee 41 - recognition and measurement of proviseons and contingencies” key asswmptions about he likelibood and magniude of an
outflow of resources



Qube Cisema Technalogies Private Limited
Nates 1o standalone financisl statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AN cunonnis are it lndieir Rupees fokhs, unfess otheniise siared)

e

LA

Measurement of fiiv values

A number of the Company's tivg, policics and disclosures require the measurement of Feir values, for both financial and non-
fimancial assets and liabilitics

The Company has an established controd framework with respect o the measurement of tor valwes. The Company 1egularly 1eviews
sigmificant unobservable inputs and valuation adjosiments. [T thied pamy information, is used to measure fair values, then the
Company assesses the evidence obdained from ihe third parties 1o suppoct the conclusion thal these valuations meel the requitements
of Ind AS, includng the level m the fair valwe hicrarchy m which the vamstions should be classified

Fair values ara categorised into different levels in s fair value hierarchy based on the inpuls used in the valuation techniques as

= Lewel |- guoded prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Liabilities

- Level 2: inpws other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, «ifber dirsctly (ic. as
prices) or indirecty (i e, derived fom prices)

- Level 3- inputs for the asset or lahility that sre not hased on obsenable market daia (unobservable inputs}

When measuring the fair values of an asser o a liabilin-. the Company wses observable market data as far as possible. 1 the mputs
wsed 1o measwre the fair value of an asset or a lability fall into different levels of the faiv valoe hierarchy, then the faii value
measurement is categorised in its entirery in the same level of the far value hierrchy s the lowest level inpur that is significant 10

The Company recognises hansfer between levels of the fan valve hiersrchy at the end of the 1eportmg period during which the
change has occwred

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring Fair valnes i included in the nole 36 - financial instrements
Significant sccounting policies

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions i foreign cwrencies are ranslated into the functional curreney of the Commpany al the exchange rales at the dates of the
fransactions oF an average rale if the aversge rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the mansaction

Monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign curvencies are d inio the funchional curency at the exchange rate at
the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and dighilities thar are measured al fair value m & foreipn cwrmency are manslated into the
funchanal currency at the exchange rate when (he Bair vajue was determined Non-manetary assets and lisbilities thal are measured
based on histonical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the mansaction. Exchange differences
are recognised tn profit or loss except exchange differences arising on qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent ihat the hedges are
effective.

This space 15 imenionaliy lefi dlank



Qube Cinema Technalopies Private Limited
MNotes to siandalone finuncial sistements For the year ended 31 March 2023
LA ooty are n facions Bupees foblis, psdoay oshe e Siuned)
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Significanl accpunting palicies (continued)
Financial instrumenc
& Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables amd debr securines ssved ae initislly recopnised when they e oviginated All olher Mnancial assets and Miancial
Fabilivies are initatly recoposed when the Company becoines a party to the conbiacmal pravisions of the instrument

A financral assed or financial labilin: is inioally mweaswred a0 Fair volue plus, Fe o e ot an T2 value twongh profin and loss
LFYTPL), transaction costs that are dieeetly adribatable to its acquisinon or issue

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Firteatargerd erssie

O initial recognition, a finaneial asselis elassified as measured a0

- smormnsed cosi
- FYOCH - equiry investiment. or
-FvTI).

Financigh assets are ol reclussified subscquent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes ifs
business inodel for managing financial assets

A financial asset is measwied at amortised cost il it meets both of the following condilions and is nol designated as at FYTPL:

— the asset is hebd within 3 basiness model whose objective is to hold assets 10 sollect contracheal cosh flows; and

= 1he conuactual terms of the financial assel give nise on specified dates to cash fows that are solely payments of procipal and
imerest on the principal amasint culstanding

On initial recognition of an equiry invesiment that 15 not held {o rading. 1he Company may imevocably elecl 1o present subsequent
changes in the investment's fair value i OCI (designated az FYOCT - equity investment). This clection is made on an investmeni- by
investmen| asis

Al Bmancial asseis not classificd as measured at amonised cost o FYOCT as described above are incasured at FYTPL. This includes
all derivative financial assels. Cin nilial secogniion, the Company may imevocably designaie a ﬁmm:la] asset thal othenvise meels
e

the requireents to be measured al amorised cost as at FYTPL 1f doing so el oF Sig hy an accounting
mismaleh that wouk! glherwise anise

Fittatial  assers Hisimess  mtinde!

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business mode! i whach a (inencial asset 1s held at 3 portfolio Yevel
because this hest reflects the way the business is managed and information is prowided lo management. The mlommation considersd

— the siated policies and objectives for the poﬂrollo and the operation of those policies in prachice These include whether
management's sitalegy (Deuses on B C . maniinng e pamicular interest rate profile, maiching the
duration of the (inancial assels to the dusation of any related labililies or expecled cash vutflows or realising, cash Aows through the
- bow the performance of the portfoho 1s evaluated and reported 1o the Company s managemenl;

- The righs flal affect the performance of the business model {and rhe financial assels held within thal business mode 1) and how those
risks are managed;

— how managers of the business are compensated — ¢ ¢ whettier compensatian is hased on the Fair value of the assets managed ar the
centrachual cash flows collected; and

- Ihe frequency. volume and niing of sales of financial assets in prier peniods, the reasons for such sales and expectations aboul
fulwe sales activity

Financial ngseis: Sub ement and gains and losses

Financial ssets at F‘v"T‘PL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value Met gains and losses, meluding
any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profir or loss

Fquity ymestments at FVOCT These assels are subsequently measwred at fair value Dividends are recopnised as

income in statement oF profit and loss unless tie dividewd clearly represems a recovery
of pant of the cost of the nvesmment Other nel pains and Josses are recognised in OCI
and are nol reclassified to statement of profit and loss

Financial assels at amorhised cost These assets are subsequently messured at amorhsed cost using the effeciive inrerest
method The amortised cost is reduced by impainnent losses. Interest income, loreign
exchange going and losses and impainnent are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recagnised in profil o koss

Financial liabilities: Classification, swbsequent measurement and ains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured a1 amortised cost on FYTPL A fingngial liability is ¢lassified as a FYTPL T il is
classified as held-lor-trading, oc it is a derivarive or il is designated as such on initial recognition Financial Labilities 21 FNTPL are
measined a1 {air value and net gains and losses. including any inlerest expense, are recognised in profit or loss Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured ar amortised cost using the efMechive interest method . Imierest expense and forcign cxchange
pams and losses are recopmised in profit o1 loss Any gain or loss on derccogomion is alio recoymised in profit or loss
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Significant accounting policies (conlinued)

Financisl ing¢ruments (continued)

ili, Derecognliion

Fanemcied asseis

The Company derccogses a lnancial assel when the comraciual rights 10 the cash Nows rom the financial asset expire, or it
iranslers the ryhis to receive the contracioal cash flows in a mansaction in which substantially all of the ngks and rewards of

ownership of the financial asset are transfered or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
wewards ol ownership and does net retain contrel of the firancial asset

If the Company enkers intg mansactions whereby i1 transfers assets recognised on ifs balance sheel, Lul relaing ether all or
substautially all of the risks and rewards of the rransferied assets, the transfered assets are no1 derecopnised

Financ ied fobifities

The Company derecogmises a financial Jiabiliry when iss contracmal obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire

The Compamy also derecognises a financial liability when ils lerms are modified and the cash flows under the modified ierms are
substantially different In this case, a new financizl habihty based on the modified terms is recopnised at fan value, The differcnce
between the carmying amount of the financial liabiliny extinguished and the new fmancal liability with modified terms is recogmised in

iv. Offgetting

Firancial assets and fnancial liabilities are offset and the net amoum presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the
Company currenthy has a legally enforceable right 1o sei off the amounts and il intends eiher io setle them on a net hasis or 1o realise
the asset and settke the liabilin: simultancously

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents un the balance shees comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-tenin deposils with an onginal matunty
of thrte monihs or less, which are subject lo an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows.
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shori-ierm deposits, as defined above, net of oulstanding bank overdrafis as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash manapement

Properiy, plant 1nd equipment

i. Kecognition and ement

ltems of propesty, plant end eauipment are measured al cost, which includes capitalised bomowing costs, less accumulated
depreciation and acvumulaiey impaimment lesses, i any

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises ils purchase price, including imporl duties and non-refundable purchuse
taxes, afier deducting trade discounts and rehales, any direetly atinibutable cost of banging the ilem ta its warking condition Tor its
us¢ and cstimated cosi of di ling and cemoving the item and restoring ihe site on which it is located

4

If significant pans of an flem of property, plant and equipment haye differem usedial livey, then they are accounted for as separaic
ilems (major componenits) of propeny, plan and eguipment

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is vecognised in profil or loss,

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expendiiure 15 capitalised only 1Cil is probable that the fuhme economic benefils associated with the expendiure will flow
ili. Drepreciation

Depreciznion is calenlated vn cost ol ilems of propeny, plant and gquipment less their estimated residual valucs over their csiimated
useful Nives using the straight-line method, and 15 generally recoguised in the stalement of profit and loss

The estimated useful lves of ilems of properly, planl and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Agset Aanagement estimate of useful Uselul life as per
life Schedule I
Pl and sachinery 310 Years 15 vears
Compuict Systems 3 -6 years 3 - 6 years
QHice #quipinem's 3 years 3 years
Fumatune and fisenres 6 years 16 years
Elecuical equiprmenrs and insrailalion 6 years 10 years
Vebicles 5 years 8 vears

| gasehald improvements are writien off aver the peviod of kease or vver o periad of & years whichever is lower

Depreciation method, useful [ives and residual values are reviewed at each financial vear end and adjusted il appropriate. Based on
technical gvaluation and consequent advice, 1he management believes thal ks estimaies of useful Bives as given abave best represent
the penod over which management expects o use these assets
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Significant dccounting policies (continued)
Intangrible assets

i Recognition and measurement

fnrcrnaiiy gemerated” fiea carch and {evelopntenr

Expendiure on rescarch activitics is recognised in the profil of 1053 as incurred

Development expenditne 15 capialised as part of the cost of e resulting intangible asser only i the expenditure can be measured
reliably, the product or process is lechnically and comimerciully feasible, lutwe ¢ . benefils are probable, and the colipany
intends 10 and has sulliciem resowees o complete develppment and 10 use o sell the assel Ollkrwise, M is recopmised in profit on
loss &5 incurred Subsequent to mitial recognition, We assel is measured al cost bess accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impuinment losscs

ik Orthwers

Other imangible asscts including those acquired by the Company arc initially mcaswed at cost. Such intangible assels are
siibsequently measured al cost fess accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses

il Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expendinwe is capilalised only when it increases the futwe economic benefits embodied in the specific asset 1o which il
selates. AN othier expenditne is recognised in profit or loss a5 incamed

v Amartization

Amortisation is cateulated 1o woile off the cosi of intangible assels less theiv estimated residval values over thewr estimated nseful
lives using the siraight-line method, and is included in de preciation and aworiisation in Statement of Profit and Loss

Raght to wse the imcllecruat propery 15 amontised using unit of production method (Product of each unit then aie bansfened o
mventory and subsequently accounted for under cost of stock-in-tvade consumed if the umit 1 sold or eonsidered a5 property, plant
and equament if the unit is leased )

The estimaled useful lives ate as follows:

Asset Manggement estimate nf uzeful life
Software (incloding intemally  generined S venrs
sofwane}

Awmortisation meilod, useful lives and residwal valus are revicwed al the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate

Inventories

Inveniones are measured a1 the fower of cost and net realisable value, The cost of inventories is based on the weighled average
formula, and includes expendinure incumed in sequiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and othar costs incured in
bringing them to their present bocation and condition

Net realisable value is the cstimated selling price n the cidinary course of business, less the estinated costs of completion and
selling expenses The net realisable vadue of work-in-progress is detennined with refevence to the sefling prices of 1elated finished

The companson of cost and nel realisable value is made on an item=by-item basis
Invpairment
I. Inpairment of financial instroments

In accordance with Ind AS 109, (he Company applies expecied credit loss (“ECL”} mode) for measwement and recogniion ol
smpaimment Inss on financial sssels

Loss allowance for trade recesvables with no significint financing component is measured al an amount equal to lifetine expected
credit losses For all other financial assets, SCL arc measured al an amoun equal ta the 12-month ECL, unbess there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recopnition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL

Loss allowance for financial assers measnred at amoriised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount of the assets
it. Impairment of non-financial gssets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverabie. |f any
such indication exisis, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated and an inpaivment oss is recogmsed if the camying amount
of an asset of CGL excecds ils oshi d recoverable in the stal ( of prefit and Ipss

The Company’s nou-financial asseis. inventories and defermed 1ax assels, dre reviewed a1 each reporting dale 1o determine whether
there is any indication of impaiment If any such indication exists, then the assel’s recoverable amowni is estimated For imparment
testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are gronped tegether imo cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU
represents the smalles) group of assets thal generales cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or

ImpauTrient loss recognised in respect of a CGU 1s allocated first 10 redoce the carmying amount of any poodwill allocated to the
CGU, and then to reduce the carmyimg amounts of the other asseis of the CGLUI {or groups of CGUs) on a pro rata basis

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed Tn respeet of other assets For which impairment kass has been
recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews al each reporting date whether there 15 any indication that the 10ss has decieased or
no longer exists An impainnent loss is reveesed il there has been a change m rhe esiimates used to delerming the recoversbile
amount. Such a reversal is made only 1o the extent tha the assct™s carmying amount does nol exceed the carying amount that woutd
have been delermined, net of deprec:ation or amorrisanon. il no impairment loss had been recognised
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Significant accounling policics (continued)
Employce benefits
i. Short-term employee benefits

Short-tern employer benefit obligations are measuied on an yndiscomved basis and are expensed a3 the related serace is provided
A liability 15 recogmised for the amownl expecied (o be paid e g, under short-tevm bonus, if the Company has a present legal o)
construgtive obiig to pay this L as # resudl of past service provided by fhe coployec, and the of abligatien can be
estimated reliably

W, Gratuity

The Company povides fon patwity, a defined benefil plan (“the Gratiny Plan™) covenng the eligible emplovees of the Company
The Ciratwity Plan provides a3 omp-sum payment 1o vested emplovees al relitement. death  incapacitalion o1 tznnination of
employment. of an amount based on the respective employees salay and 1he tenuce of the employment with (he Company

Laability with regard 16 the Gramity Plan ace determined hy acoeanial valuation, pediormed by am independem actuany. ar each balamee
sheel date wsing the prodected anit credit method. The defined benefit plan is admninisiered by a tust formed fm ihis pirpose trough
the: Company giaunty scheme

The Cowmpany secognises the ned obligation of a defined benefit plan as a bability in its bakwee sheet. Gams on Jusses tnongh re-
megswement of e net defined benefit lalnliny ace recopnised in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified w profit and
loss in e subsequent periods. The actual yelum of the portfolio of plan assers. in excess of the vields computed by appiving the
dizcount 1ate wsed fo measwe e defined el obligation is 1ecognised in other comprehensive iome. The effect of awy plan
amendments are 1ecognised in the siaremen of profil and loss.

iii. Provident fund

LCligible emplovees of ihe Company receive henefits from provident Fund. which 15 a defined contribution plan Both the eligalile
employees and the Company make monthly conidbuions to the Govermmnenl administeoed provideat fung scheme equal 1o a specificd
percentage of the eligible enplovee’s salary. Amounts collected under the provident fund plan are deposited with in a govemnment
administered provident fund The Company has no further obligation to the plan beyond iis monthly contributions

. Compensated absences

The Company has & pohey on compensated abscaces which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nawre. The expecled
cost of accumulating. compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at cach
halance sleet dale using Ihe pregected unil credit meihod on the additional amount expecied ko be paidfavailed as 2 result of the
unused enntl that has lated at the balance sheet dale Cxpense on non-accumulating compensated absences is
recopnised is Uhe period in which the absences acour

v. Share-bazed compensation

The glant date fan value of equity seifled share-hased payinent awards pranted to employees is recogmised as an employee expemse.
with a comcsponding increase in equity, oves Ihe period thal the employees unconditionally become cntitled to the awaids, The
2mount recagnised as expense is based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-markel vesting
condilions are expecled to be met, such that the mineunt ultimatehy recognised as an expense it based on the number of swards that
do meel the related service and non-market vesting conditions ar the vesing dare

Provisigns {other than for emphoyee henefits)

A provision s recognised if. as a cesult of a past event, the Company hias a presenl legal or conshuctive abligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an ouviflow of economic benefits wilt be required to seule the obligation Provisions are
detennined by discounting the expecied funwe cash (ows {repeesenting the best estimate of the expenditure sequired o senle the
presenl obligation al (he balance sheer date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessmenls of the time value of mongy and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost, Expected future opeeating losses are not

Revenue recognitlon
The Company is primacily engaged in the business of providing digital cincna service

The Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive flamework for detennining whether, how mueh and when
1ewenue 10 be recogmsed

Revenue is recopnised upom tramsfer of conmol of promised producls or services 10 customers in an amounl that reflects the
consideration which the Company expecis 10 receive in cxchange for those producis or services

i- Lncome from services and sale of goods

Adveuti MCOME 1S ¥ d in the period during which advertisements are displayed

L

Comtent Delivery Chargzes and Virwal print fees {VPF) received from distributors of the films is recognised in the pencd in which the
services are rendered

Rexenue from sale of goods 15 recognised upon ensfer of control (o buyers and when no imcertainty exists regarding the amount of
consideration that will be derived from sale of goods

Revenue from mainlznance service fees is recopnised on lime proportion basis for the penod falling in the reporting, period
Leace rental ineome o equipment 15 recognised as mentioned in note 3 11 (161 belaw

Revemue from commission and wechnical service inenme is recognised in period in which serviees are rendered

Royally income on licenses of IP is recognised when the customer' s subsequen sales o usage oceurs

Reveme is measwred based on the ansaction price, which is the consideration, adjustad for volume discounis, if any. Revenue also
excludes taves collected from customers

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracks with customers based on nature of services
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Significaml accoumtlng poficies {continved)
Rovenue recognilion (confinwed)

Conlract assets are recopmised when there is excess of revenue camed cver billng on conmacls. Confracl assets are classified as
unhilled receivable (onlty act of mvoicing bs pending) when there is ditional right to rve cash. and only passage of time is
Teiquired, as per contmactual terms

Uncamed and deferred revenie | “contraci liabiliny™} is recopnised when there is billings in excess of revenues
Invoices are payable within conraciualty agreed credil period and none of the conimacts ineludy a financing element

Contraces are sulject 1o modificaion wo accosnt for changes in conuacy specification and reguirements. The Company reviews
modilication to conlract in conjunction with the onginal confract, basis which the transaciion price could be allocaled lo a new
perfommance obligation or transaction price of an existing obligation could underge a change

[n the event transaclion price is revised for exisling obligation a lative adj % e d foe
it Contract cost

The Coimpany does not incer 2ny cost 1o obain or fulfil the cantracls with customers.

Leases

Al wceplion of the contract, the Company detennines whether the contract 1s a lease or conlains a lease amangremnent. A contract 15,
o1 comains, a lease if the contract conveys 1he right 1o control the use of am identified assel for a period af lime in exchange for
consideration To assess whetler @ conbact conveys the right 1o conurel the use of an dentified assct, the Company assiesscs
whether:

{i} the conteact involves the wse of an identilied asser

{ii) the Company has substamially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the peried of the lease and

i. Company as & lessec

The Company recopnises mighi-of-use asser representing its right (o use the wnderlying asset for the lease teon al the lease
commencement date. The cost of the righi-of-use assel measured al nception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement
af the lease liability adjusted for any leasc payments made at or before the vommenvement dare less any lease incentives received,
plus any initial divect cosis incured and an estimate of costs W be incamed by the lessee in dismantling and yemoving the underlying
asscl o1 restoning the underlying assel or siic on which it is located. The righi-of use assets is subsequently measwed at cosi less any
accumutated depreciation, accumulared imparrment losses. i any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease Liability The righi-
of wse asseis 15 depreciated using the straight-ine methad from the commencement date over the shorter of lease 1emm o1 useful lile of
right-of-use assct The cstimated wscful lives of righl-of-use asscls arc detzrmined on the same basis as those of property, plant and
equipment Righl-of use assels are tested for impairment whenever there 1s any indication that Heir carmying amounts may not be
recaverable Impairment loss, if any, is 1ecogmised in the standalone statermend of profit and loss

The Company measures the lease habilty st the present value of the Jease paymients thel are nol paid at he conmencement date of
Ihe lease. The leass payments are discounted using the interest rie tmpheit m he lease, o that rale can be readily delemined 1 thai
rale cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental bormowing rale. For leases with reasonably similar characieristics,
1he Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopl either Lhe mcremental borrowme rale specific fo the lease or the incremenial
bonowing rate for the pontfolio as a whole. The lease pavinenis shalt include fixed payments, vanable lease payinents, residual value
pudraniees, exercise price of @ pwehase oplion where the Company is reasonably cengin 10 exercise that gpion and payments of
penalties for lerminating the lease, if the lease temn reflecis e lesses gxercising an opnon o emminate the lease. The lease liability is
subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amounl 1o reflect interest on the lease linbility, redocing the camying amoun to
reflect the ledse payienis inade and remeaswimg e carmying amount 1o reflesd any reassessment o lease modifications or 1o reflect
revised in-substance (ixed lease payments

The Company recognises llve amount of the remeasurcment of lease lability a5 an adjusiment 1o the right-of-use assel Where Ihe
carrying amounl of the ripht-of-use asse1 is reduced to zere and there is a further reduction in 1he measurement of the kease liability,
the Comnpany recognises any ing i of the re-measwrement in standalone statement of profil and loss

“The Company has elecied not to apply the requirtments of Ind AS 176 to shont-lerm beases of all assets that have a lease lerm of 12
months of less and leases for which fe underlyimg asset is of low value. The lease paymienis associated witl these leases are
recognized as an expense on 3 siraighi-line basis aver the lease rerm

ii. Company as a lessor

At the inceplion of the lease the Company classifies each ol iis leases as either an operating lease o a finance lease. The Company
recogises lease payments received under operaling leases as income on a straight- Jine basis over the lease term. In case of a finance
lease, Tinance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattemn reflecting a constant periodic rate of remum on (he lessor’s
nel imvestment in fhe lease. When the Company s an intermediate lessor it accounis for its interests in the head Jease and the sub-
lease separately. |1 assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference 10 the righl-gf-use assct arising from the head Jease,
not with reference (o the undeclying assel If a head lease 15 a shon term lease o which the Company applies the exemphion
described above, then it classifies the sub-lease a5 an operating lease

If an arvangement contains Jease and non-kease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue o allocate the consideration
n he contract
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Significant accounting policies (continuedy
Recognition of Interest income or enpense
Inizrest income on expense is recognised wsing the cfective inferest method

The ‘effective mterestrate” is the rate thar exactly discounsts estimated futare cash payments or receipls through the expecied life of
le financial insiTument o

- the gross carmymg amount of the financial assel; or

- Lhe amortized cost of the Fmancial linbilivy

In caiculating inlerest income and expense, the effective interes! vate is apphed 1o the gross camymg amount of the asset (when The
asset 15 1ot oredit-impaired) or 10 the amenized cost of the liabilicy However, for financial asscts that have become credi-impeired
subsequent g itial o, i ti is calculated by applving the effective inferest rate to the amortized cost of the

financial asset 1 1he asser is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts ta the gross basis

Ingeme fax

Income tax comprises cwrent and deferred tax It is sccognised in profit or loss excepl to the cxicat tha it relates to a business
combinaiion or io an item 1ecopnised directly in equity ox tn oller comprelensive incoine

i- Currepi f3x

Cumenl tax comprises the expeeted lax payable or recervable on the taxable income of loss Tor the year and any adusimenl to the ax
pavable or receivable in respect of previous years The amount of curment tax reflecis the best estimate of the tax amount expected 1o
be paid or received aiter considering, the wncertainey, if any, refated 10 moome laxes Bis measwred using lax raies {ond iax laws)
enzcted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

Curenl tax sssels and currean Lax habilities are offset only if there is a lepally enforceable right o set off the recognised amounts. and
it iz intended Lo reabise the 2ssci and scitle the Babilicy on a net basis or simultnncousty

ii. Dreferred 1ax

Deferred 1ax is recognised in respect of tempocary differences between the carrying amounts of assels and hiabiliies for financial
reporting purposes and the conesponding anownts used (o taxation purposes. Defemed [ax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences anising on the initial recognition of asscts or liabilities in & oransaction (hat 15 not a business combination and
than affects neither 2ccounting nor laxable profil or loss at the ime of the transaction;

- v diffe related to in subsidian and joint arrangements to the extent thot the Company is

p

alHe 1 confrol the timing of the reversal of the wemperary diffecences and i is probable that they will non reverse in the foreseeable

Defemed tax assets a1¢ recognised 1o Ihe extent that it is probable that future 1axable profits will be available apainst which they can
be used Defermed tax assets — unrecopmused or recopnised, are reviewed al each reporting date and are recognised! reduced to the
cxtent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related 1ax bencfit will be realiscd

Deferred tax is measured al the 1ax rases that are expected to apply o te period when the assel is realised or the Liability is sctiied,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporfing date

The measurement of defened tax reflects Lhe 1ax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Conpany expects, ar
the reporting date, 1o recover or settle the camying amaunt of is assets and fiabilities

Defemed tax assets and: habilities are offset i thewe is a legally enforceable right 1o offsel current tax Liabilities and assets, and they
relale 1o incame taxes levied by the sume tax authority om the same taxablk colity, o on different lex entities, bul they intend 10 setie
cwment tax liabilities and assets on a ner basis or teir Lax asseis and liabilities wilt be realised simuliraneously

Barrawing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and ather cosis {nchading exchange differences relating to foreipn curmency bomowings (o the exient that
they are regarded as an adiustnent (o interest ¢osis) incarved in connection with the borrowing of funds. Bomrowing costs dirccty
attributable io acqwsition or constrsction of an asset which necessanly fake a subslantial period of time Lo gel ready for their
inlended use are capitalised as pant of the cosl of thal asser. (ther homowing costs are recopnised as an expense n the period
which they are incurred

Earmings per share
Basic earnings per share is compuled using the weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the penod adjusted for

treasury shares held. Diluted earnings per share is puted using the weighled-average number of equity and dilutive squivalent
shares outstanding duning the period, using the weasury stock method for options and wermants. except where the results would be

iy apoce of ruesionally fefi blak
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316 Recent acconnting proncumcements

Muistry of Coporate Affirs (“MCA™ notifies new standard or smendments to the exisning standards wnder Compeanies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules a5 issued from time to tome. On 31 March 2023, MCA issucd the Companies (Indian 4 ing
5 tandards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from 1 Aprid 2023, as below:

Tnd AS I — Presentaiion of Financial Statements

The 4 require companies to disclose the materal sccounting policies rather than significant accounting policics,
Accounting policy informasion, together with other information, is matesial when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
of primary users of g l-purpose financisl I

Ind AR 11 = Income Taxes

The smendments clarify bow companies sccount for deferred wx on mnsactions such as keases and deconwmissioning obligations.
The amendments numowed the scope of the recognition exempdion wn parsgraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 so that it o longer spplies
1o transgctions that, on initial recagnition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Ind AS8- A ing Policies, Changes in A {img Eatlmaies and Errors

The amendiments will lelp entities to distinguish berween aceounting policics and accounting estimates. The defimtion of a change in
accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of scecunting estimates. Under the new definibion, accounting estimates are
“monciary amounts in fingneial seetements thet ere subject to measrement uncerinty™, Entities develop ing esli if
accomting poheies require items in financial statements to be measured in & way Lhat involves measurement unceriinty.

The Company is assessing the impact of these changes and will eccordingly incorporate (he same in the financial siatements for the
year ending March 2024,

< This Spesce {5 intentfonaily fefl Diark>
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amouais are in fadian Rupees fakhy, sfess orherwise stuted)

4. Property, planr and equipment

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Particulars Leaschold Plant and Computer Office squipment Fursitors and Ele¢irical Vehicles Total
& hinery Systems fixiures Equipment &
Insmallation

Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount)

Balance at 1 April 2021 151 64 13,38502 56809 3778 52877 162 6% 9z 17 25,3t6.26
Additions - L7362 - - - - - 167762
Dhisposals - (13.22) - - - - (13 60)
Balance at 31 March 2022 251,64 14.449.42 567.71 327.78 528.77 162.69 92.27 26,380.28
Balance a1 1 Apnl 2022 251.64 2444942 bLES | 33778 52877 16269 92.27 26,380.28
Additicas 7 4,013.54 2312 519 - - 116 63 4,36994
Disposals - (1310} - - - - {545) (23 55)
Balance at 31 March 2023 2541 28,445.26 798.92 333.57 S28.77 162.69 203.45 30,726.67
Accumnulated depreciation

Balance at 1 Apri] 2021 23684 12,839.53 481 83 27673 42527 13519 TEN 1447155
Depreciation for the year 363 29721 3687 1753 64 73 2304 553 312539
{sposals - 19.7%) ((L.36) - - - - (10.15)
Balance at 31 March 2022 242.49 15,801.94 518.34 294.31 490.02 156.25 83.64 17,586.99
Balance ar | April 2022 24249 1580154 518.34 29431 49002 15625 2264 17,386 99
Depreciation for he year 292083 36,91 1293 562 274 1307 199222
Disposuls . (15.22) - - - (5.18) (20.40)
Balance at 31 March 2023 241.49 18,707.55 55515 307.26 495.64 158.99 91.63 20,558.81
Carrying amount (net}

As at 31 March 2022 915 B.647 48 4937 3347 3875 644 563 8,793 29
As ut 31 Murch 2023 11,52 9,737,71 243.67 2631 3313 3.7 111.82 10.167.86

a) Security

As ar 31 March 2023, properies with a camying amount of INR 498036 lakhs {31 March 2022 :2,5)2 33 Jakhs) are subject 1o first charge 1o secure bank loans (see Note 19)
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Moies to standatone Minancial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2013
£AN ertsens are e trdios Rupees bakils, wafecs otfrerwese stared

5 Capital worl-in-progress

Parheulars Amounit
Cast or deemied cost (gross €arrying ampunt)
Bulance at 1 April 2021 XAy
Additions 1,791 26
Capitahised during the veur 107762
Balanee ut 31 Murch 2022 104081
Balance ar 1 April 2012 1.040 81
Additiong 450028
Copitalised dwing e yaot 477263
Balance ot 33 March 1023 769.56
CWIP aping schedule
As st 31 March 2023
3
cCwip tessifhan; | 1-2 years 2-3 years Wieie Wism Toral
year veurs
Projecis m progress 769 56 - - - T69.50
Projects temporarily suspended - = - - -
As ot 31 March 2022
CWIP Ly than | 1E VR 23 yeics Mare than 3 Totl
yeur years
Projects n progress 904 32 1424 32 - 1,040.81
Projects temporarily suspended - - - = -
MNotes ¢

1) The Company has no projects which have exceeded then cost or have been averdue as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
2) The abave largely includes projectors which are yet 1o be deployed/insialled in future at theatres

6 Righi-of-use assets

Particulars Buildings
Bakance at 1 April 2021 208847
Additions .
Delations =
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,088.47
Balance at 1 April 2022 1,088.47
Additions 131 93
Deleti -
Balance as ax 31 March 2023 11040
Avcumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 April 2021 30067
Dreprecialion fog the year 36120
Ueletions =
Balance as at 31 March 202} 1.191.87
Balance at 1 April 2022 1,191,87
Drepreciation for the year 374.40
Creleti -
Bulance as at 30 March 2023 1,566.27
Net Block as at 31 March 2022 896,60
Net block as at 31 March 2023 654,13

‘The Company's leases mainly compnse of land and buildings The Company leases land and buildings for office and warehouse facililies



Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Notes to standabone Nnancial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2023
[AlF aancunis are in Indion Rupees fakhy, undess otherise siated)

As at As at

7 intangibie assets 3 March 2023 31 March 2032

{See acconnling policy in Mole 3 5)

Reconciliation of carrving amount

Particnlars Software * Toial

Cost or decnwed cost (gross carrying amount)

Batance ag at | April 2021 1,195.47 219547

Addirions . -

Disposals - =

Halnnee as at 31 Mun-r:h_mn 209547 2.IQ5.-I=’?_

Balancce as at | April 2022 2,195.47 219547

Additinns -

[hisposals - -

Balance ns ar 31 March 2023 2,19547 219547

A lated pmorisetion and Impairment losses

Balance 38 at 1 Aprll 2021 1,283.90 1,283.90

Amortisation for the year 4156 .05 456,05

Balance as a1 31 March 2022 1,739.95 1,739.95

Balamce as at 1 Aprll 2022 1,730.95 1,739.95

Amottsation for the vear 45552 45552

Balance s ot 31 March 2023 2,195.47 2,195.47

Larrying amound (nef}
A5 el 3| March 2032 455,52 45552
As at 3) March 2023 - =

* Software consists of capitalised development cost being an intemally generated intangible asser

This space 15 mientionaliy left bignk
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{AHf cmeyonis ave 1n Fndign Rupees laklts, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
8 Invesimenty 31 March 2013 3 March 2022
Non-current investrents
Unquoeted equity shares
Equity shares of subsidiary at cost
73,750,000 {31 March 2032: 73,750,000) equity shares of 3 0.1 each fully paid up in Qube Cinena Inc 4,011 35 400135
Le=s: Provigion for diminution in value of investments (1,847 75) {1,847.75%
2,163.60 2,163.60
Equity shares of jeint venture at cost
8038162 (3) March 2922 : §,038,162) equity shares of INR 10 gach of Justickets Private Limited 1,164 95 L 16495
Less: I'vawvrsion for diminution m vahue of investmienis # (1,164.95) {1,164.95)
Investment in Equity designated at fair value through profit and loss
51 {31 March 2022 : Nil) equity shares of AED 1900 each of Scrabble Digital Service DMCC 1146 .
2,175.06 2,163.60
Aggregate book value of unquoted invesiments 5187 7% 517630
Aggrepate amount of impairment in value of investmends (3.012.70) (3,012.70)
2,175.06 2,163.60
9 Trade receivables
Trade receivables considered good - secured - -
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 9,652 93 592295
‘Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 3,023 90 2,671.88
“Trade receivables credil impaired = -
12,676.83 8,600.83
Allowance for doubtful debt (2,023 90} {2,677.88)
Net trade receivables 9,652.93 5,912.95
Nom-¢urmem 107320 40041
Current 3,379.72 5,522 54
9,652.93 5:922.95
Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are a3 below:
Tatal trade receivables from related parties [ Refer note 42) 1,162 43 71444
Allowance for daubrin] dely # {743 4%) (TIQ31)
415,95 4.13

# The Company, basis ils evalustion of recoverability of the dues from the relaled party {Justickels Private Limited) has provided for the enbre
receivables ac bad and dovhiful dabs
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Notes to standabome financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{4l cinornss are in Indion Rupees lakhs, wnless othenwse stoted)

9

1¢

Trade receivables (continued)
Trade receivable ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Lessthan & 6 months- | 12 years 23years  Morethan3  Toial
ownihs year yrary
Undispated made receivables - 1733 61717 20255 86 40 17504 9,018 49
considered good
KRR e regivatien - fiith 37001 359,52 13619 195 14 195894 3,023.90
have significant increase in credit risk
Undigputed rode receivables — cradic
impaired
nsputed trade receivables - considered . -
good
Disputed (rade receivablss - which - -
have significan increase in credit nigk
Disputed rade receivables - oredit - -
impraired
Total 4,277.44 1,036.69 338.74 25554 2,133,998 1204238
Add :- Unbilled revenuve 634 a4
Less = Allowanee for doubtful rrade receivables (3.023.90)
Trade receivaldes (Wet of alowance Sor doubiful (rade receivable) 9.652.9]
As at March 31, 2022
8] ling for following periods (rom date of t
PFarticulars Leas than & 6 months - 1 1-2 years 1-] years More than 3 Total
monthe year Years

Undisputed trade receivables - 3.664.57 229037 18569 285201 01 59 523313
congidered good
Undisputed trade receivables - which 477.07 - - 128.26 1,472 55 2,671 8K
have significant increase in credil risk
Undisputed trade receivables - credit - - - -
impaired
Disputed trade receivables - considered - - -
good
Disputed trade receivables — which =
have significant increase in ersdit risk
Digpuied trade receivables - credil - - - - -
impaived
Total 4.141.64 22537 1835.69 1,580,127 1,774,114 T91L11
Add - Unbilled revenue 68972
Less - Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (2,677 B8)
‘Trade receivables (Net of allownnce for doubiful peade receivable) 592295

As el As al

Losns
{Unsecured, considersd good)

Loans kx emplovees
Loans 1o related parties

Loss allowance *
Net leans

Non-cument
Cuerent

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

3249 2237
12904 200.00
261.53 222.37

—
261,583 223
200.00 200 00

6143 22137

2515 2237
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12

13

14

15

16

Asg at As af

Other financial assets 31 March 2023 _ 31 March 2022
Security deposits 448 55 47146
Bank deposits under Lien . it ]
Dues from related party* Flom 59726
[nterest accrued on hank deposits 5393 3817
Interest accrued on loan to related partics® 175 1.73
1,226.12 134732

Loss allowance * (721.64) {598.98)
Net other financial aseets S04.48 748,34
Mon-current 35349 437.32
Current 15099 311.02
504.48 Td8.34

Ofthe above, contractually reimbuesable expenses from ralated parties are as babow:

Dhues from refated pary* 72164 508.9%

Loss allowance * (721.64) (598 99)

* During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company, basis its evaluation of recoversbility of the dues from related party {Juslicksts Private Limited and

Qube Digital Cinema Privace Limited) has provided for a boss allowance against these dues

As ar Asat
Income fax assels 31 March 202} 31 March 2422
Advance tax recoverable {net of provision) 887 48 46839
887.43 468.39
Other asoets
Advances 1o suppliers 9776 1284
Prepaid expenses 77748 74900
Balance with governmen! aulhonities 1,724.M 1.1952%
3499.58 2,657.13
Not-cument 467 82 54369
Curmrent 3,031 76 211344
3.499.53% 2,657.13
Inventocies
Stock in trade $977.18 293715
5977,18 193715
The writg-down of inventories to net realisabls is incbuded in cost of materials consumed amounting to INR 189 01
lakhs (March 31, 2022: 120071 lakhs)
Caih and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 097 097
Bank balances 3339 11083
94.26 111,80
Bank overdrafis used For cash menagement purposes (501.79) (518.15)
Cash and cash equivelents in the statement of cash flows (407.53) (406.35)
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank deposils* 233921 1.695 52
2.33%.21 1.695.51
* O the above, Bank deposils under lien 2,33922 1,695 52

This space has been invennonally feft biank -
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FATR amesinns e s ehant Kipwes Bkl netfens otfier 2 staed)

Asal Asal
3) Mareh 2023 37 Mareh 2022
17 Equity share capitnl

Awlhorised
24,500,000 (31 March 2022 54,500, 000) equity shares of INR 10 each 5450000 5,430 00
30.00,000 (11 March 2022 Mil) 0 0% Optional convertible cumulative preference shares o INR 10 each 00 5O -

Dizued, subseribed and paid up
27408 271 £30 March 2022 27 430,871} equity shares of INR 10 each fully pard up 2,740 33 274389

Reconciliation of shares ouistanmdimg a1 the beginming and a1 the end of (ke year

As at 30 March 2024 As ot 31 Mareh 2022
MNumber of shares Amowni Num ber of thares Anwuni
Equily ahares
At the ¢commencemen| of the year 2718870 2743 RG 1,94.83 114 1948 31
Shares issued on conversien of loan £ preference shares - - 28,51 440 285 14
Shares isswal on exerase of employes stk options 3400 594 1,20,000 1200
Shares 1zsued for cash - - 45 84,317 498 41
A the end of the year 7,74,598.271 2 T40 R 21438 8T 2,141 89
As pi 31 March 2023 As al 31 March 2022
MNumbser of shares Amount Number of shares Amomuni

Instrument entively ¢quily in natere

Al e commencemen of 1he year - - e 2
Coavented 10 equity shares during the petlod - - - -
At the end of the year . . . -

al Rights, preferences and restriclions siiached to equity shares

The company has a single class of equity shares Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard b dividends and share in Lhe company’s residual asseis on
winding up The equity chares are entitled 10 receive dividend as declared from time 10 1ime, subject to prelecential right of preference shareholders 1o payment of
dividend The vonng rights of an equity sharehoider are n propostion 1o hafiie shace of Lhe paid-up equity share capital of the Company

On winding up of the compeny . the holders of equity shares will be entilled 1o receive the resdual assets of the company . remaining afier distributian of el prefercniial
FMounts, in proportion (o the number of ¢gquity shares held

b Rights, preferemees and restriclions allackhed (0 preference chares

The Company has caly one class of optional convertible cumulative preference shares having a par value of INR 10 The optional convertible preference shares were
convertible based on the terms and conditions contained in the shareholders agreement daled April 02, 2022 al any time afier the imlial invesiment closing date (25 defined
in the agresment) bul before 31 March 2042 Each prelerence share will be converted into a fixed no of equity shares

Preference shares camy a prefereniial right as to dividend over equily sharehclders Where dividend is nol declared in respect of a linancial year in the case of cumulative
preference shares, the entitlement for thal year lapses The preference shares holder shall have one voue for each Equity Share into which the Mreferred Shares held by lim
of record conld be comvenied (as provided in these articles), on every resolotion, withoul regard Lo whether the vole thereon is conducled by a show of hands, by wnlen
ballor or by any other means, and would be entitled 1o notice of and the right to vote logether with the equity shares on all maiters submitied 10 2 vode of the company's
shareholder Tn the évent of winding up, preference shareholders have a preferenial righ! over equity shareholders ic be repaid 1o the exient of capital paid-up and
dividend in arcears on such shares

<) Employee stock oplions
Terms allached 1o siock oprions granied io emplayees are dascribed in Node d1 regarding share-hased paymen|

Pariiculars of shareholders holding mare than 5% shares of a class of shares

As gl 31 March 2023 As oal 30 Mowch 2022
MNumber of shares % of equity shares Number of % of equity
shares shares
Equity shares of INR 10 each Qully paid, held by

SS Theaire LLF 1.24.05.235 45 11% 124,05, 235 a5 201%
Real [mage [ 1P 2462225 B 95% 1462223 BOT
¥ Senthil Kumar 19,78 820 T 2R 1978 820 TR
P Jayendra 17,835.470 b 49%% 17.81 470 & 50%
Harsh Krishna Rohatgi 14,25,720 5 1B% 14,25, 720 5 20%
Ramachandran ' 13.51.503 5 06%% 13,921,501 507

2,14.46,973 T7.99% 11446973 78.16%
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17 Exquily share capital (consinged )

Patails o shares hehd by promiers
As al 31 March 2023

. Balanceas st Change during the  Balance sheet ;s % change durin
Farticulary | April 2022 'I:‘“r o at 31 March 2013 % of total shares 1hgj_mr B
YV Senthil Kumar 19,78 820 < 19,758,820 7 20% L1 19
P layendrs 11,8347 - 17,831,470 & 400 13
Arun Yeerappan 2,96,000 - 2,58,000 1 08% L))
Meena Veerappan 5.06.800 - 5,06,800 154% [
Vee Vijalakshmi 2,344,000 - 1,34,000 0858 e
¥ Siva Kumar 797 N8 - 7.57 488 2 75% P
Real Image LLP 2462225 - 24,62.225 B 95% Pa
Sudha Panchapakesan 43,220 - 45,220 b 16% P
P C Sreeram 3,57,750 - 3,57, 150 1 30% [

Asat 3| March 2023

. Balamce as a1 | Change during the  Balance seerd 05 Y chamge durin
Particulars April 2021 " a3l March a1y %o tora shares el
¥V Senthil Kumar 551,100 14,25,720 10, 78,820 724 25844
P Jayendra 31,57.750 14,253,720 1183470 6 50% Lo
Arun Yeerappan 2,098,000 - 2,989,000 1 08% 0%

Meena Vezrappan 5,06.800 - £ 06 Ri0w) 1 84% Wa
Ve Vijalakshmi 2,34.400 - 2,394,000 0 §5% %
¥ Siva Kumar 1.87.200 570,288 1.57.488 215% 305%
Real bmage LLP 24,62,225 - 24,632,228 895 W%
Sudha Panchapskesan 45 220 = 45,220 0 6% L1
P C Yreersm 1.57.750 . 3,597,750 1.30% %
Aggregate number of ahares issued [or comsideration other than cash during the period of five years immedately preceding the reporiing daie:
Asa Asal Asal As at As at
3 March 2023 31 March 2032 31 March 2021 3 March 2020 31 Marth 2019
12393 696 4= 1.23.93.696 ¥ 0543256 - -
## During the vesr ended 31 March 2022, pursuant to the board meetings held on 26 May 2021 | the board ‘of directors have pproved the ion of loom o equity

shares a5 menlioned in Lhe agreements

# During the year ended 31 March 202 1, pursuant to the board meetings held on 11 March 2021 and 11 March 2021, the board oF direciors have appeoved the conversion
of preference shares o squiry shares al & valio mentiomed inthe respective shareholder agreements

Odber equity

Capial redemplion reserve
Capital Redemplion reserve was created on account of buy back of entire shares held by Kolak Mshindra Veniure Capital Fund in March 2005 (566,000 shares) and June
2005 (715,504 sharcs)

Securities premium

Securities premium i3 used 1o record the premium received on issue of shares Tiis uilised in secordance with the provisions of the Companies Acl, 2M3

Share oplioss owtamding accoum

The Company has established various equiry-setiled share-based paymeni plans for centain calegories of employees of the Company Refer to Mote 40 for further details

on these plans

1 hrs space has been irieimionaify fefi dark
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19 Borrowings
Now-current borrowings
Term loans *
Secured loans from bank {refer note 1) & {i) below)
Supplicr credil, nsecured
Liability component of compound Financial insirument
Oprignally ¢onyenible cumulitive preference

Tatsl non=cucrent Borrowings

Current borrowings

Rank overdiafl

Overdraly against fixed deposns

Current portion of lerm and other loans*

¥ nel off loan origination <osls pending isalion

A, Terms and repayment schedule

Terms and conditions of outslanding bomowings arc 25 follows:

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

3.605.07 383135
1,605 67 1,402 94
15753 -
5.368.27 5,234.29
3,201 79 2,498 15
1,474 00 147400
39214 1,574.01
8,003.53 5,540.16

718 1672

Carrying Amount as at

Parteculars Corrency Nominal inderest rale Dale of 31 March 2003 31 March 2022
maturity
Secwed Loan from HDEC Bank Limited INR | vear MICLR + 1.65% 24-Apr-23 53.49 Wl
Securcd Loan from HOOC Bank Liniled INE I year' MICLR + 1.20% 04-Jan-24 439,84 27840
Secured Loan from HOFC Bank Limiled INR | yem MCLR + 1 80°% 07-Fel=25 B0 66 1, 241.77
Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limmited INR 1 year MCLR + | 35% 07-lan-28 1.621.42 -
Linsecured Loan rom Belfivs Bank USD 6 Monoth LIBOR + 1.6% 30-Jun-26 1,613.42 1.780 29
Vehicle loan INR 7 75% 05-Now27 £0,95 -
Wrking vapital lenn koan under ECLGS INR  EBLR + 1% 28-May-27 2,552.45 2,532.40
Orverdrafi agains| fixed deposils INR  §75% On demand |.474.00 1,474 00
Cash credit INR | year MICLR On demand 31,201.79 249815
Optionally convertible cumulalive preference shales  INR - 10 25% 157.53 -
13,975.55 16,797.17

B. Secured bank loans

The secwed term loans from banks are secwred by exclusive charge on fixed assets ncluding plant and squipmen: created out of enm luans with a varmying,

ameuni of INR 4980 36 lakhs (31 March 2022 : 2.512.33 lakhs)

(. Reconcilistinon of movement of liabifities te zash flows arizing from financing activities

Particulars

MNom-curmen! bomowings
Cwrrent borrowings

Overdraft agains! fixed deposits
Bank overdrafis

Particulars

Belance as ai 1 April 2021
Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Change in bank overdraft and working capital loan
Mon-cash changes
- Convened 1o equity shares
= Impact of effective interest Mmomisanen
- Unrealised exchange Joss on restatement of bonowings
Balance as ai 31 March 2022
Froceeds from loans and bomowmngs
Repayment of bomowings
Opuonally convertible prefercnce sharey
Change in bank overdrafi
MNon-cash changes
- Converted 10 ¢quily shares
= Impact of effective interest amorisanon
- Unrealised exchange boss on restatement of borrowings
Belance a5 4 31 March 2023

3,368.27 523419
192774 1,574 01
1.474 00 1,474 00
3201799 2496 15
13,971.80 10,780.45
Loans from Bank Term loamsf Total
director overdraft _ supplier ceedii
M. 00 33277 4,657.33 £900, 10
G0 00 - 3,742.18 4,342 38
(500 00} - (1,636 70) 12136 79
- 62935 - a9 3%
{1,000 00) = B (1,000.00)
: = 3 ol 868
= - 36 70 36 10
- 39718 6,508.30 10,780.4%
- - 3827 od 332764
- - 1.607 55) (1,607 55)
i37 533 157 53
- T03164 - FUER)
- - 297 B97
- 101 12 112

- 4,675.79 9,296.01 13,971.80
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19

0

2

Borrowings (confinued)

(1) The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) hay permitied banks and linzicm] institwtions 1o offer a mowwrivin of six nonths on paymem of
inglalments of &' term loans falling due berween | April 2020 and 31 Avgusr 2020 This includes all Tenn Loans and Cash CreditOverdeaft
facilities The Company had considered to avail the loan moracoriom and all instalmenis due from | April 2020 to 31 August 2020 siand
deferred The RBI has further clarified that deferment of loan payments shall nat b considered as default by lenders

(i} Loan covenants

Under the tevms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company is requéred 10 comply with 1he following financial covenants
- the adjusted sanwble net worth must be more than [9 000 lakhs
- the ralio of toka) outstanding liabilities to adjusted tangible ner worth must be tess than 1 5

- the debt service coverage ratio must be more than 2
- Interest coverage ratio has ta he more than 3
- Minimann mmover bas 1o be more than INR 20,000 lakhs

Asat 31 March 2023, the Company has failed 1o comply with adjusted tangible net woth and Lhe ratio 0f 1olal oulstanding Labilitics w adjusted
tangible nel worth must be less than | § as per above criteria However, the Company has oblained waiver of the breach of above covenants

from banks
As ot As at
Lease liabilities 3% March 2023 31 March 2022
Particulars Building Building;
Transrbon impact of Ind AS 116 (refer note 6 (i) ) | 086 91 1424 31
Additicons 12¢ 62 -
Detetions E
Lease modification - .
Finance cost acerved during the peried 9709 12769
Renl goncession
Discharpe of lease habililies 501 35 465 09
Balance as ar 31 March 2023 812.27 1,086.91
Non-current 55001 506 22
Cunent 262 26 S80 67
Reconclliation of labifities from fimancing acrivities
Lease liabilities as at the beginning of the year 1,086 91 1,424 29
a} Cash flvw movemenis -
- repayment of lease liabrilinies (404 26) (33740)
- interest paid on lease liahilities (97.09) {12769
by Nom cash movemenis
Addition { adjustmenis 10 lease liabilities during the year 226 70 127 &
Lease linbilitice as at the end of the vear 812.27 1,086.91
Oihver fimancial liabilities
Dreposits reccived 307438 262723
Interest accrued but not due on bon owings 20724 136,90
3,286.12 2,764,18
e
Noo-gumrent 2,438 96 2,268 95
Current 24716 49533
3,286.12 2,764.18
The Company’s exposore 1o liquidity and cwirency nisks related 1o the above financial liabilites are disclosed in Note 35
Criher liabilisies
Deferred revenue
= Caniract liabikties (Billing in advance of wark completed} 78716 $49 02
- Deferred revenue (Fair valuation of security deposits received) 1,0B1 93 §30 50
- Advance paymenls from coslomers 526444 3,366 01
Emplayees benafits payabhe 1,145 73 1,773.90
Statulory dues payables 574 48 452 530
8.858.14 1.272.42
Nunscurrent o841 15987
Coreent 7,872 33 211255
5,558, 74 7.272.42

fhis space fs been intenvonalfy tefi blank
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23

24

Provisions
Non-current Curremt
31 March 31 March Ag at Ay at
2023 1022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for empl beneflts (see note 15)
Liability for gratuity 151 74 9% 33 7399 5826
Liability for compensated absences 21198 162 15 3910 LTS
Tatal provision for employee benefits 36372 259,48 113.0% 90,01
Trade payables As al As at
41 March 3023 31 March 3022
Trade payables to relued partizs
total outstanding, ducs of micro enterprises and small enterprises o5 86 s
total ourstanding dues of creditors othar than micro enterprzes and gmall enteypnises 507272 37042
5,169.58% 3.704.21
OF the above, irade payabks from related parties are as below:
“Total wade pavables from related parties 56368 18124
The Company’s exposure to Liquidity and curcency risks related 10 the above trade payables are disclosed in MNote 35
Trade Payables aging schedule (Qutstanding from involee dare)
As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Less than I vear 12 L3 years More than 3 Total
Years years
MSME 96 86 - - %686
Ohers 3404 18 1672 1976 #4266 3513m
Disputed MSME "
Disputed Others =
Toual 3,501.04 16.72 19.76 42,00 307018
Add :- Unbilled dues 1.499 40
Trade payales 5.169.59
As it 31 March 2022
Particolars Less than ] year -1 2-3years More than 3 Total
Years veirs
MEME - = = = :
Others 2,15%.11 5927 24005) TEB2 2,637, 72
Disputed MSME - = i _ -
Disputed Others = = - - .
Total 2,259.11 59,27 240.51 T78.82 2,637.72
Add :- Unbilled dues 1,066 49
Trade payables 3.704.21
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15 Revenue from operations

Sale of services
Advertisement income
Virtual pnnl fees
Service income

Lease rentat income
Other sevenue

Sale of products
Sale of digital cinema equipments

Other operating income
Royaley

Taotal revenue from operations

26 Oher income

Intersst income an

Cash and cash equivalenis

Security deposit paid

Other financial assels
Insurance claim received
Mei gain on sale of property, plant and equipmeni
Net gain on foreign currency transactions
MNatinnal renlal income on security depasit received
Profin on lease modification
[nterest on income 1ax refimd
Miscellaneous income

27 Purchases of stock in trade

Cost of stock in trade consumed

Less: nventory of magrials at the beginning of the year
Add: Inventory nf matenials at the end of the year
Purchases during ihe year

18 Changes in inventories of stock in trade

Year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2023

Y ear ended
31 March 2022

4,874 43 2,330.51
12,722 47 5,654 50
344184 249818
2,254 %6 664 41
99415 675.88
18,287.45 11,823.88
12481 44 497421
9% 53 3300
40.867.62 16.831.15
$943 139.94
23 50 1270
2904 .
2147 830
1256 612
54.60 25147
. 1158
60,65
- 423
13060 49499
9641 54 3,349.56
293715 238141
5971 18 293715
12,681.57 4,408

Year ended 31 March 2022

Opening Opening Closing Decrease in
Inventory Inventory Inventory inventory
Stock in rade 293715 238141 293715 (355.74)
2,937.15 238141 2,937.15 (555.74)
Year ended Year ended

29 Employea henefits sxpense

Salarcs, wages and bonus

Cantribution to provident angd other fonds

Expenses related (o post-employment defined benefil plans
Expenses related to compensated absences

Sralf welfare expenses

30 Finance costs

Interest expense on fipancial Liabilities measured at aniortised cost

Interest expenses on lease lizhility

31 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Drepreciation of property. plant and equipment
Aunortisation of mtangible assets
Depreciglion expenses (ROU assels)

M March 2023

31 March 2022

131979 5103135
305 83 222 51
8% 20 5323
7622 2308
490 39 191 8¢
1,283.63 £.613.5¢6
1140,02 956,36
9709 127 69
1,237.12 1,124.05
299222 312559
455,52 456,05
374,40 361.20
381114 3.942.84
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2021

32 Other expenses

Advertisement revenue share 4,354 31 308 &4
Vinual print fee revenue share 4,935.43 1,13774
Freight and handbing charges 286.14 172 62
Digitising, censor, theaire advertisement and VIAT charges 196 14 297 59
Licenae foc 4] 73 155 50
Consumption of packing material and spares T8I 14574
Power and fuel 196.82 149 97
Rent 5184 4918
Repairs and mainiznance

- Plant & machinery 789 % T12.17

= Cthers 827 ¢4 502 60
Service charges 668 13 673 .59
Insurance 7744 77 64
Rates and taxes 182 .44 T15%
Communicalion 196 66 204,66
Traveling and conveyance 500 79 J4) 05
Printing and statiopery 2940 1318
Software expenses 8524 839
Sales discoun and convmission 132 80 6213
Advertisement and business promolion 192 34 3003
Legal snd professicnal fees (Refer Note (i) below) LOTe 14 EXTRr
Consultancy Charges 367.98 T
Bad debts written off E 13.21
Allow ance for doubtful debt 64].53 £24 43
Bank charges 1935 1748
Net loss on foreign currency ransactions 18172 84.9]

Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (Refer Note (i) below ) -
Loss an sale of assers! assets weitten off - -
Miscellaneous £Xpenses 189 45 144.89

16,644.83 802932

(i) Paymceni to amditors (exchuding tax)

As auditor
Sratutory audit 30.00 30.00
Other séTvices 17.00 200
Rexmbursement of expenses 4.20 1.73

51.20 33.73

{ii} Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure
{a) Amount required 1o be spent by the Company during the year -
{b) Amount spent during the year { in cash)

{1} Construchon / acquisition of eny assets

(ii} On purposes other than {i) above -

This space has been furenponally deft blank
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33 Income vax
A, Amount recognised in statement of prefic and loss

Carrent iax {a)
= Current period
- Tax related Lo corlier years

Beforred tax (b)
Attributable 10 -

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 3y March 2022

Onginanon and reversal of temposary difleiences A% 70 (1,292 96)
Tax expense for current periad {a)+(h) 391,70 (1,292.96)
B. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
¥ear ended 31 March 2023 Vear ended 31 March 2022
Belore tax Tax {expense) Met of tax Belore tax Tax (expense} Net of tax
benefi benefit

Remeasuremenl of defined benefii habiliny {80 87} 20,35 60.52) XL (1748) 51 96
(assets}

(80.87) 20.35 (60.52) 69.44 (17.48) 5196

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended 31 March 2022

Profit before fax 1,468 %6 (5,243 4%
Tax using the Company’s domeslic tax rate {Refer Note (13} 25.168% 36971 25 168% (1,1159.08)
Effect of non-deductible expenses 1.50% 1199 -051% 2612
Effective tax rate 16.665% ¥91.70 14.6584% {1.292.96)
. Recognised deferred tux assets snd linbilities
Peferred tax assets and liabltides are attribuiable so she following:
Deferred tax assers Drekerred rax (Ninbilities) Nt deferred tax sssets/(liabilities)
Year ended Year ended Yenr ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 Blacch 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 1022
Property, plant and cquipmeni 1.860 89 175192 - 1 860 89 135192
Provisions:
Employee benefit provisions 140,82 1328 14082 11328
Trade receivables 543 68 824 20 - 942 08 #2420
RQOU assel and Tease liabiliy 1679 4789 - 3979 47 %9
Brought forward lasses 288265 358367 - 288265 158347
Other items 10196 1908 = - 101,96 1908
Deferred tax assets / {liabikities) 5.9468,78 6,540.12 - - £968.7% 0,340.12
Offserting of deferrad rax asse1s ond defemed . - - . - -
tax ligbulities
Net deferred tax assets f (liabilities) 5.968.78 6,340.32 - - 5068.78 6, 34,13
Movement in temporary dilferences
Bal asat R din  Recognised in @ Balsnce as st Recognised in Recognised in - Balance as at
1 April 2021 profil or loss a1 31 March 2022 profit or loss OC1 during 31 March 2013
Property, plant and 1.544 88 15704 - L7592 108 97 . 1,860 B9
BqUIpMERt
Provisivns:
Employee benefil 112,22 1854 {17.48) 11328 719 2035 140 82
Trade recei valies B3 45 1884 - §24 25 11839 - 942 68
ROL asset and lease 4190 509 - 4789 {810y - 3970
liability
Brought forward 251272 1.070.95 - 3,553 07 {701.02) - 258265
losses
Ohher ilems T47 1161 - 19.08 82 ER - 10r1.96
5,064.64 1,292.96 (17.48) 6,340,12 (391.70) 20,35 5,968.78
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34 Assets and linbilities relating to employec benelits

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

et defined benefit liability - Granivy plan 22573 154 59
Liabiliny for compensated absences 251.08 59390
Telal esnployee benefit liabilities 476.81 348.40
MNon-curretit 36372 258 48
Curent 11209 90|
476,81 348.49

For details shout the related emplayee benefit expenses, see Note 29
The Company aperates the following post-employment defined benefic plans.

The Company has a defined beaefil gratwity plan in India, govemed by the Payment of Gramity Act, 1972 The plan entitles an employee, who has
rendered al least five vears of continnous service, to gratuiry at the rate of fitteen days wages for every completed yenr of senvice or part thereof in excess
of six months, bascd on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concemed

These defined benefil plans expose 1he Company 10 actuarial risks, sweh as longeviry risk, interest rate risk and market {investment) oisk

A. Funding
Plan is Fully funded by the Company The funding requirements are based on the gratuity fund’s acuarial measurement framewark sl ot in the funding

palicies of the plan. The funding of plan is based on a separaic aciuarial valvation for funding purpeses for which the assumptions may differ from the
assumprions set out in {F) Employees do nol contnbute 1o the plan

B. Reconcilistion of the net defined benefit (asset) hinbility
The following rable shows a reconciliation from the opening balances 1o ihe clusing balances for the net defined benefit (assci} hability and s
COmpOneiiE

Year ended Year ended
31 March 1013 N March 2022

Reconciliation of present volue of defimed benefit oblipation

Balance at the beginning of the year 557.50 5610.59
Renefits paid (55.26) (4753)
Curtenl service cosl 446 1097

Interes! cost 39.05 3784
Past service cosl - 3
Agluarial {gains} losses recognised in oher comprehensive income
Changes in demographic assumptions 4 -
Changes in financial asswmplions (Y1 (27.70)

Expenence adjusiments 14665 (12.67)
Balance al the end of the year 75399 557.50
Reconcillation of the present value of plan assets
Balance at the beginning of the year 4029 423 4%
Contributicns paid into the plan 1289 -
Benefits paid (35 26) (4751
Interest income 3035 2786
Return on plan assets revognised m other comprehensive income 77.36 (.93}
Balance at the end of the year 528.25 4291
Net defined benefid liability/{assed) 125.73 154,59

Yenr ended Yeur ended

3t March 2023 31 March 2012

C. i. Exptense recognised in profit or loss

Current service cosi 54 46 70 97
Interest cost 3905 kL]
Interegt mcome {A0.35) (27 86)
Past service cost = 2
63.16 §0.95
ii. Remeasorement recognised in other comprebensive income
Actuarial (gain¥ loss an defined benefit cbligation 15823 (M3
Rerurm on plan assets excluding imerzst income 177.36) 0.93
- §0.37 {69.44)

D. Plan assels
Plan assets were pomanly invested in L1C fund



Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Notes to standslone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amrounss are tn Fndian Rupees fakhs, unfesy otherwise staved)

M Assets and linbilities relating 10 employce benefits (continued)
E. Defined benefit obMigations
i. Actwarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumprions af the reporting date (expresaed as weighted avernges):

Discounl vale

Future salary growih
Atmition rate

il Senshtivity amalysis

Year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended VYear ended

3 March 2023 31 March 2022
1.24% 737%
5.00% 5.00%
5.00% 5.00%

Year ended H March 2022

Incrense Decrense Increase Decrease
Digcount rate (0 5% movement} o9 30119 525.64 592,47
Future salary growth (0.5% movement) 704,96 71592 58075 526 85
Atrition rate (5% movement) 75524 75271 55642 556.61
Mortaliny (5% movement} 754,40 753.58 557.80 557223

Allhough the analysis does not (ke account of the full distribution of cash flaws expecied under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the

sensitivity of the assumptions shown

. This space has been mtentionatly left blank
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3% Financial instraments - Fair values and risk munagement

A. Accounting chussification and fair values

The Following table shows the cammying amooms and far vailues of Fnancial assels and financial liabilities, including their levels in the Taic value hierarchy

As at 31 March 202)

Carrying ansunt

Note Other financial assets - Other financial Total carrving
amortised cost liabilities amouwnt
Fi ial assels not ed at fair valug (refer nose 1 below)
Invesiments 8 11,48 1146
Loans 10 16)1.53 261 53
Trade receivables 9 9.652.93 9.652 93
Cash and cash equivalents 13 04,26 . 94 26
Buank balances other than cush and ¢ash equivatenis I 233922 - 233922
Otlher fnancial aszets 1 504.48 - 504,48
11,361.58 - 11,363.88
Financial liabifitics not mensurcd ar fair value {refer noie 1 below)
Borrowings 1% 13,971 80 13.971.80
Trade payables 24 507272 5072 72
Onher financial liabilinies 2l 3,286 12 3.286.12
12,330.64 21,330.64
As at 31 March 2022
LCarrying amount
MNote Other financial assets - Other financial Tetal carrying
amortised coat liabilities amount
Financial asseis not measured at fair value (refer note 1 below)
Investmenis 8 - - E
Loans 10 22237 . 222,37
Trade receivables 9 592295 - 592295
Cash and cash equivalents 15 111.80 . 111.80
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis 16 169552 = 1,695 52
Other financial assers |l 748,34 748,34
8.700.98 3,704.98
Finamcial Babilities not measured at Rir value (refer nore 1 below)
Borrowings 19 - 10,780 45 10 FRO4E
Trade payables 2 - 370421 3.704 21
Qiher financeal lizbilities 2] - 1,764 18 276418
- 17,248.84 1724884

Note |- The Company has not disclosed fair values of financial instruments such as investmenis, loans, teade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other
bank balances, other financiak assets, borrowings. made payables and other fimancial liabilities, since their camying amounts are reasonable approximation of

fair values

Tins xpace fas beew tntentronotly feff bignk
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35 Financial instruments - Fair value sni rish managemnent {continued )

B. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure 1o the following risks arising from financial instruments;
al) credit nsk

b) liquidity nsk and

¢) market nsk

& Rish mansgement lramework

The Company’s board of directors have oversll responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Co pany’s risk manag t framework The
board of direciors along with the lop managemeni are responsible for develaping and monuioring the {ompany's risk management pelicies

The Company'e risk ntanagement pulicigs sie established o ideutify and analyse (he risks Faced by the Company, 1o ser approprime risk limies and controls
and o monitor risks and adhecence (o limits. Risk managemeni policies and systems are reviewed regularly 10 reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Company, through itg traming and managemenl siandards and prosedures. aims to maintain 2 disciplined and consiruciive
control ensiroament in which sl employees understand sheir roles and obligations

The Company’s board of directars oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk managemeni policies and procedures, and
reviews the adequacy of the sk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company

fi. Credit visk

Credit risk is Lhe risk of financiaf loss to the company if a cusiomer or counterparty 16 a financial instrument fails 10 meet 11s contrachial ohhigations, and
arises principally fram the Company’s rade receivables, centain loans and advances and other financial asscts

The camying amount of financial assels represents the maxmuin credit exposure

The maximum exposure ko gredit nsk for trade and alver receivables are ac follows:

Carrying

Ay af Az at

M March 2023 31 March 2012
Trade receivables 965293 5932095
Loans 16153 22237
Cash and cash equivalents 9426 L1180
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 2.339.22 1.695 .52
Onher financial asscis 504,48 74834
12.852.41 8,700.9%

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amount billed to customers for the sale of goods and services, and represen the maximum exposure Lo credil isk of thase financial
assets , exelusive of the allowance for doubtiul dehls Nonnal eredit terms are in line with Industry practice

The Company does nat require collatersl ar olher security from customers; however credit evalualions are performed prior 1o the initial graaling of credil
when waranled and penodically thereafter. Based on policy, the Company records a reseive for estimated uncollectible amounts, which managenem
believes reduce credil risk Management assesses the adequacy ol reserve quarterly, laking into account histarical expenence, current cellecrion trend, the
age of the receivables and, when warranted and available, the financisl condition of specific covntcrpanics. The Company follows "simplified approach”
for recogmiion of impainment loss allowance on rade reeeivables

The Company’s expasure to credit risk for teade vecar ablas by relationship is as follows:

As al As ag
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Third perty customers 923398 391882
Related parties 418 95 413
The Company's exposure to credil risk for trade receivables by geographic region is es Follows:
Ay al As o1
3) March 2023 31 March 2022
India 8,93013 568893

Rest of the world 122 80 23402
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35 Financial instruments - Fair value and risk management {continued)
ii. Credit risk {con tinued)

The Company nses Cxpected Credit Loss model to assess the impaimnent 1oss or gain. The Company has used simplified approach for its trade receivables
and other receivables 1o compuie loss allowance

The following tables provides infarmation about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for irade receivables:

As a1 31 March 2023

Gross cartying  Weighted- Lass allowance
amount average logs rate
Nor dug 4,911 59 O 00% =
1-180 days pasi due 336585 11.00% 370011
180-305 days past dug 1,036 69 34 68% A5% 52
Wlore than 363 days past due 2.128.26 84.09% 2,194.27
ﬂ 12,042.39 3,023.9%0

As at 31 March 2021

G rose carrying Weighted- | allowance

Amouni average less rate
1-18% days past due 4,141 64 11.52% 47707
180-365 days past due 27937 0 00% .
Mare Ihan 365 davs past due 3.540 30 62 17% 22008}
JToub 791111 167788

The movemenl in the allowance for impainment in respecl of rade receivables s as follows:

I March 2023 31 March 1022

Opening Balance 2467788 273037
Provision for the year s 87 496,52
Aunouit wistten off dunng the penod (172.85) (549.61)
Closing Balance 3,023.9¢ 2,677.58

Cash and bank balances (includes amounts classificd under bank balances other thun cash and cash equivalends)
The Company holds cash and bank balances of INR 2433 48 lakhs a5 at 31 March 2023 {31 March 2022: INR 180732 lakhs) The credit worthiness of
such banks and financial institutions are cvaluated by the manag t on an ongaing basis and is considered fo be good with low credit nsk

Ouher linancial agsets

o Securiy deporits

This balance is pnmarily constitated by deposit given in relation to leasehold premises occupied by the Company for carying out its operations The
Company does not expecl any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties

b Lian for emplowes
This balance is conslituied by Joans given o 1he smployees The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counler-parties as the
amaunis are recoverable by salary deductivns

o Cetractuatty rermbursabie expenses
Thig balance 12 pnmarily constiluted by reimbursable expenses incurred on behalf of Justicketz Private Limited The Company does not expect any laiges
fruin nen-performance by thess counter-pantics as the amounts are recoverable

o, Comract ossels
This halance is primarily constiluted by services bul ool billed yel. The Company does niol expect any losses from non-perfonmance by these counter-parties
% the amaunts are Tecoverable

¢ Inierest accried on hank deposnt
These fixed deposits are held with credit worthy bonks and financisl instilutions. The credit worthiness of such banks and finencial institutions are
¢valuated by the managemenl on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credil nisk
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35 Financial instroments - Fair value and visk management (cantinwed }
i, Ligquidity righs
Liquidiry risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated wiih its financial habalitics that arc settled by
delivering cash or another linancial asset. The Compay’s approach to managing liquidity is 10 ensure, as far as possible, That 1t will have sufficren

liquidity to meet sts abilibes when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurmng unacceptable losses or nisking damage to the
Company’s reputation

The Company aims (o maintain the level of us cash and cash equivalents st an smownt i excess of expecied cash outflows on financial liabilies
fenuluding lrade payalles)
T Tofhowrtg ure thesormmang coniroetunl nmiuaties of Geaneiol Tibilines o e repoming diee: The wnvame ure prows snd usdiseounisd, wed inchude

contracival imierest payments

Asar 11 March 2022

Contractusl cash flows

Carrying Total & months 6-12 12 Morc than
ANMOLN or less months years 1 years
Borrowimgs 13571 80 14,033 10 3,596 66 4474 92 215769 390384
Trade payables 307272 16018 349354 97 50 1672 62 42
Lease hiabilities 31227 81227 130,69 1320 51749 iz
nber fnancial liabilives 328612 31.286.12 5308 parieg] 26.39 3,177,264
23‘1 42.91 2 I,9[Il&f;‘? 7%’?4.0? 4,733.71 2!7 18.30 ?,1‘.’5.;:':‘_
Asat 31 March 2022
Carrying Tousl & months 6-12 52 More than
Amount or less v ths yeArs 1 years
Barrowings 0, 750,45 10780045 2,743 40 341338 1,645 84 20177
Trade payables 2,704 21 2.63772 225911 - 5927 319 34
Lease Liabitities 108621 1,086 91 229 % 23532 483 87 137 96
Chiber fingncial habilities 276418 276408 44 73 2464 2220 267261
18.335.75 17.269.26 517706 3673.34 231119 6,107.67

iv. Marcke risks

Markel risk is the risk of loss of fulure earnings or fair values or future cash {lows fat ay resull from a change in the price of a finaneial instrurment. The
value of a financial instrament may change as a result of changes in the inlerest rates, foreign exchange raics and other market changes that affect marker
risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is atfributable to all marke1 nisk sensitive financial mstroments including foreign cumrency receivables mnd payables
The Compary 15 ¢xposed to market nsk primarily related io foreign exchange cate osk {currency osk), interest rale nsk and the markel value of its
wvesiments. Thus the Company's cxposure to market tisk is a function of ipvesting and borrewing activities and revenue penerating and operating
achvibies in foreign correncies.

Currency rnisk
The summary quanlitalive daia aboul the Company's exposure to currency risk as reported to the manasgement is as follows:

Asat 31 March 2013

Financial assetsf (liabilities) LUSD EURO Total
Trade receivables T2 2 108 122 80
Cash and cagh squivalents 5657 - &6 57
Bomrowings (incloding interesi accrued } {1,613 42) - (16l1342)
Trade payables {1,908 37) (50 42) (1,958.79)
Net asseis / {liabilities) {2.743.49) {4934 {2,792 84)

As ar 31 March 2022

Financial ssseds/ (linbilites) USD EURO Tots)
Trade receivables 23371 0.8l 234 02
Cash and cash equivalents M - T4
Bomowings (including fnlerest acerued {1.780 79) . {1,780 2%)
Trade payables (85775} (62 79) (920,54}

MNet assets / (linbilities) (2,330,712} {61.98) (239270
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35 Financisl insruments - Fair value and rlsk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible sirengthening (weakening) of the [NR, agnins US dollar and EURC at 31 March wonld have affected the measurement of financial
imstruments denomineted in 3 foreign cwmency and affecied equity and profitor loss by the amounits shown below. This analyeig assumes thar all other

varizbles, in p | rates, and ig any impaet of f; t sales and purch
Profit/ (loss) Equity, netof tax
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

As at 31 March 2023

USD ¢1% movement) {27.43) 2743 (20.30) 2030
RURCH{ 1% movement) (0 49y H 4 (0,37) 0,37
Az at 31 March 1022

USD (1% movement) 12331} 2331 {17.25) 17.25
EURO (1% movement) 0.62) 0.62 (0.46) 046

¢. Interest rate risk
The Company bas anly variabls rate insirumenis i ¢ term loan and supplier credit

Exposure 1o Iiverest rate Fisk
The interest rate profile of the Campany's mitemst-bearing finamcial inttruments az reparted to menagement is as follows:

Az at As ar
3 March 2023 31 March 2023
Faxed rate borrowings 80.95 -
Variable rate borrowings 11,890.85 10,780,435
13,971,490 10,780.45

Cash flow sensitivity onalysis for variable vate instruments

A reasonable possible change of E00 basis points (bp) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decroased) equity and profit or loss by
the amounts shown. below. This analysis assumes that alk other variables, in panticular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Profit / (loss) Equity, net of tax

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrense
Ay a13) March 2023
Variable rate instrument L138.91) 138 91 (98 46) 98
Cash flew sensitiviry (net) (138.91) 138.91 (98.46) 98,46
As at M March 2022
Variable rate instrument (107 80 107.80 (7041 7041
Caah flow semvitivity (net) (107.80) 107,80 (76.41) 76.41

“ Tins space has been intenitonally left blank:
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Capiul manapement

The Company’s policy 15 o maintain a siromg cgpual base so as 1o mantan inveslor, creditor and market confidence and 1o suslain future development of
iy business Jt s&15 the amount of capilal required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital and other strategic
ivestments The funding requircimems are et theoyph a mixture of equity and other borowings. The Company’s policy Is to use short-lenn and long-term
borrowings 10 meel anticipated funding requirements. The Company monilers capital using a ratio of net debt to equity. For this purpose, net debl is
defined as 1ol liabililies, conprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings, , less cash and cash cquivalemis. Equity comprises all components of equity:

The Company's policy is te keep the ratio below | 00

As at Az at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Toial liabilities 12,971 84 10,780.45
1.ess : Cash and cash equivalents (94 26) (11180}
Adjusted net debr 1387754 1066865
Total equicy 10,376.73 8,496 93
Adjusted net debs to adjuseed equiry rade 1.34 1.26
Earnings per share (EPS)

See accounting policy in note 315

a) Basic earnings per share
The calculations of profit anmbulable to equiry shareholders and weighred average number of equity shares omstanding for purposes of basic eamings per
share caleulation are a5 fallows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2002

Profil /{loss) for the year, attributable to the equiny holders L0726 (3,950 53)
Weighted average mumber of equity shares 2,198,271 758,85 450
Basic earnings per share (In INR) n {15.26)
b) Dilured earnings per share

The calculation of dituted earmings per share is based on profit atiribugble o equity shareholders and weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding, afier adjusiment for the effecis of all dilwiive potentiat equity shares as follows:

Profiv/ rloss) for fhe year, atinbutable 1o the equnty holders 107726 {3,930 53)
Weighted average number of equity shares {diluted)

Weighted sverage number of equity shares (basic) 2,74.98,271 2,58,85 450
Effect of exeicise of share oplions * . z
Weghted average mumber of equity shares (diluted) for the year 2.7498.271 2.58.85.450
Weighted I ber of nalsgry tible preference sharas {diluted)

Weighred age number of pref shares 2702703

Weighted average ber of shares {(diluted) for the year (A+D) 3,02,00,974 2,58,85,450
Diluted earnings per share (In INR) 3.57 (15.26)

* The Company has share options which could potendially dilule basic eamings per share in the future, but were nut included in the calenlation of diluted
¢amings per share because rhey are antidilutive

THus space has heen witentinnalfy leff blonk
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Leases

(i) Az Lessor

The Company has leased out digital cincina equipment to theanes on operating lease amangement. The leuse werm s generally for 5 10 10 years The
Company as well as the theatres have an option of terminanng this lease srmngement mmy tme during the tenure of the lease as per the provisions of the
lesse agreemen. Based on the management assumptions there is a reasonable centainty that the lease will continue for the lease term ol § 10 10 years

Lease income recopnised from the above lease amangement (included under sale of services under Note 25 - [NR 2,254 76 Takhs {Previous year - INR
aod 4| lakhs}

{ii) As Lessee

Lease cormsnibinents. are the. fulure cash oul flows from. ihe lease contracts which are not recorded in. the. measurement of lease liabilivies. These include
potential future payments refated to short-term leases as the Company has elected nol to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 1o short-tenm leases of all
assers that have a lease teom of 12 monihs or Jess and keases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associaled with these Jeases
are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term

L Future minimuon lease payments

At 31 March 2023, the furure minimum lease pavments to be made under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

As at Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 1022
Payable in less than one year 5184 51 66
Payable between one and five years - .
Payable after more than five years E b
ii. Anounts recogmised in profit or loss
A3 at A5 ot
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease expense — minimurn lease payments 51.84 49.18
Contingent liabilities and commitments
{10 the extent not provided for)
Ax ar As at
Contingent liabilities 31 March 2023 3 March 2022
Counler guarantees issuod Lo banks 3241 3241
Claimz againsi the Company not acknowledped as debs
Txcise dy, service Lax and cusioms duty, ¥V AT matiers (see Mote (i) and (i} below) 259 06 259 06
(Hther maliers
Bonus {see Nate (ri}) 93 81 93 81
Mote:

(i} The Company has reviewed all its pending Yiigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where peovisions are required and disclosed as
contingeni liabilities where it is mot acknowledged as debr, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings o
have & matetially adverse effect an its Financial pasition

{ii} Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, i is not practicable for the Company o estimaie the imings of cash outllows, if any, in respect of the
above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending with various forums/authorities

{1ii) Bowwus provision financial year 2014=15 purgirant (o retrospective amendment to "Payment of Bonus Act” for which an imterim stay hags been granted by
the High Count of Madras

{iv) Supreme Court vide their judgement dated 28 February 2019 clarified that Provident fund deduction is 1o be made on basic salary and on other salary
components which are universally made available ro ell employees The Company, based on extermal advice, believes that there ere inkerpreiative
challenges and sigmficant uncertzinties surrounding the delenmination of Tiability inchiding perod of assessment, application for present and past
employees, Liabikily towards emplayees' contribution and assessment of inlerest and penalties. The amounr of obligation, therefore, cannot be measured
with sufficiem reliabiliry for past periods and hence, disclosed as contéingent liability

As at As at
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Commitments
Estimaled amount of contracts remaining to be execited an capital account 66{ 45 -

This space hays been tenporaliy teft biank
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dfr Related parties

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship

Nature of Relationship Name of the Party
Subsidinry Company Oube Cinerna Ine, USA
Jomntly controlled entity Justickels Private Limited
Enterprises having Sigmficant Intluence 55 Thealer LLP

Real Image LLP
Key Management Personnel tMr V. Senthil Kumar

Mr. P Jayendra
hrs 5 S Varshini

Directors Mr P Balakrishnon Ramaony
ir. M Ganesan Mammeswann
Relavve of Key Management Personnel Mr.Arun Veerappan

Mrs. Vee Vijayalakshini
Mr V. Sivakumar
Mrs. Meena Veerappan
trs. Sudha Panchapalkesan
Entities in which Relatives of KMP can exercise significan! influence Digital Film Technologies Private Limited
Qube Digital Cinema Private Limited

B. Transaction with key managerial personnel (KMP)

Key management personnel of the Company compnse of the board of direciors and key members of management having authority and responsibiliny for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company. The key management personnel compensation during the year are as follows:

For the year ¢nded  For the vear ended

31 March 2023 H March 2022
Shon e emplovee benefits 602.44 21068
Post-employment defined benefits * v
Coniy | absences o :
Taotal 602.44 210,68

Compensanon of the Company’s key managerial personnel includes salanies, non-cash benefiis and coniributions o post-employment defined benefit plan

* Amcunt attribulable 1o post employvment benefits and compensated absences have not been disclosed as the same cannol be identified disinctly in the
actuerial valuation

C. Related party transactions during the year

Mature of transactions Transaction value
For the vear ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 3 Miarch 2012
Sale of goods
Subsidrary € vmpasy
Qube Conema Ing, USA 143,61 34.53
14061 34.83

Sale of services
fmiities i which refatives of KM can exerceie sigpmificanst iflvence
Digzial Film Technologies Private Limited 307 41 11301
30741 113.01

Oviher operaling income
Subsicary Company

Qube Cinema Inc, LISA 935 89 3306
Remuneration
Kep Management Pervonne!
Mr ¥, Senthil Kumar 297 57 9934
hir P.Jayendra 97 57 9934
hre 5 Sei Varshin 130 12 00

602,44 258

Remunersiipn
Relatree of Key Management Persannel
Wr Arun Veerappan ©2.43 667
Mrs. Sudha Panchapakesan 66 48 1134

118.92 18.01
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49 Reloted parties (continued) Transaction velue
For the year ended  For the year ended

1 March 2023 31 March 2012

Vehicle hire charges
Key Management Personnel
Mr ¥ Senthitl Kumar 340 756
Mr. P Jayendre 10 80 1.56
Mrs Meena Veemppan - 315
16.20 1837
Investment made during the yvear
Subsidiary Company
Qube Cmema Inc, USA 3 448,98
Reimbursement of ¢xpenses
Substdlicery Companiy
Qube Cinema Ine, USA 1,92538 618 39
Jaintly controlled entiy
Justickets Private Limited 14237 82,25
Lptities in which refatives of KMF can exercise significant infTwence
Digitsl Film Techmologies Private Limiled 87.38 E
1,385.13 700.64
D. Balances as at year ¢ad
Porticulars Balance outstanding
Ag at As ot
31 March 2023 31 March 2042
Loans
Entities in which relatives of KMP can exercive significamt ifluence
Justickets Private Limited 229.04 200.00

Ersistes inwhich relasives of KMP can exercise significant influence

Qube Digiial Cinewna Private Limited 20004 20.00
Loss allowance (20.0:0) (20,00}
Interest mccrued om losn
Entiries in wiich refatives of KMP can exeroise significant influence
Qube Dipital Cinewns Private Livited 1.73 172
Less allowance (1.73) (173}
Outsanding reccivables
Jointly controifed emisy
Justickets Privave Limited 14348 714 44
Lass all owance (743.48) (710.31)
2 4.13
Subsidiery Company
Qube Cinemna Inc, USA 191 86 68 92
Entities in which relotives of KMP con exercise significons influence
Dhgital File Technologies Private Limited 22709 31,23
413,95 10428
Outstanding payebles
Subsidiary Company
Qube Cinema Inc, USA ) 583 68 181 24
Employer bemefits payables
Key Monagement Personne! Relaiive of Key Monagement Fersonned
Mr. ¥, Senthi] Kumar G66.67 220.97
Mr. P Jayendrs 66.67 22097
Mr. Arun Veerappan - 21.7%

3246

Mrs Sudba Panchapakesan -
133.34 496.1%



Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Notes to standatone financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023
(AN amonnis are in fndion Rupees lakhs, uniess ofhernise siated)

D. Balamces at at yeor end
Particulars Baulanee ling
Ag ot Asat
31 March 24023 31 March 2022
Security deposity paid
Key Momagement Personnel Relative of Key Managemem Personne!
Me. V' Senthil Komar - 800
M. P Jayondm 3.00 8.00
8.00 16,00
Comractnnlly reimbursahle expenses
Jaiptly controfied eniisy
Fugtickats, Private Limited 71321 3%71.26
Loss allowance (713.91) (592.26)
Inveatments
Subsidsary Company
Qube Cineroa Inc, USA 216360 2,163 60
Jaintly consrofled envity
Justickets Private Lirited 1,164.95 116495
Lass: Provision for diminution in value of investments (1.164.95) (1.164.95)
1,163.60 2.163.60

= This space has been infentionally left Mank=
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41 Share-hased payments

A. Description of share-hased payment acrangenents
Share oprion plans (cquity-setiled)

i) ESOP 2006 Plan

The 2006 plan was approved by the Hoard of Directars in & May 2006 and by shareholders on 31 May 2006 The plan entitles employees in full time
service to purchase shares of the commpany ok the slipulated exeicise price, subject o compliance with the esting, conditions: all exercises options shall be
settled by physical delivery of shares As per the plan, holders of vested option are emiitled to purchase ome equity shares for every oplion at the exercise
prce of INR. 10 The key terms and conditions relaied (o the gramts under these plans are as follows

Employees entitled Grant Date Number of Yesting conditions Contractual bife of]
instruments pi
Senior management personnel | Apol 2012 3,00,000| 113 of qptions  will vest afler 6 ycars
completion of each vear from the dawe
of grani

iy ESOF 2012 Plun

The 2012 plan was approved by the Board of Threctors on luly (9, 2012 and by sharcholders on October 25, 2012 The plan cnritics employees in Full time
service to purchase shares of the company at the stipulaled exercise price, subjyect (0 compliance with the vesting condinons: all exercises options shall be
seltled by physical delivery of shares, As per (he plan, holders of vested option are entitled te purchase one equity shares for every option at the exercise
prige of INR 130

Emplovess enfifled Grant Dae Number of Vesiing conditions Contractunl kife of]
imsteuments aptions
1§ May 2017 25,000 Completion of service of 1 year from p—
granl date
Senior management personnel '3 of oplions  will  west alier
10 January 2013 0,000 |campletion of each year From the date 6 years
of grani.

B. Measurement of fadr values
The fair value of employee share options (sce (A)i) and (A )ii)} has been measured vsing Black -Scholes model as at the gram daie
ding share

C.R iliation of

Ly

The number and weighied-average exercise prices of share oplions under the share option plans {see { A)i) and (i})) are as follows

For the yvear ended 31 March 2023
ESOF Plan 2006 ESOP Plan 2012
Weighled averape Number of options  Weighted average Number of aptions
exereise pnee EXERCISE pricT

Quistanding at the bewinning of the year ] | B0, 000 130 75,000
Forfeiled during the period . . . -
Exercised during the period 10 59400 - -
Granted dunng the period = . = -
Outstanding a1 the end of the vear ] 1,230,600 130 75,000
Vested and Exercisable as at end of the year 10 1.20 600 130 75,000
For the year ended 3T March 1022
ESOF Plan 2106 ESOP Plan 212

Weighted average Number of options Weighted average Mumber of opnons
exercise pnce ERETCNSE prIce

QOuistanding at the beginning ol (e year 10 300,000 130 73.000
Forfeited during te period - - - -
Exercised during the penod 10 1,20,000 - -
Granted during the period - - -
Outstanding at the 2nd of the year L} 1,820,000 130 75,000
Vested and Exercisable as al end ol the yzar o 1,80 000 130 FS5.000
D Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss
Total expenges ansing from share based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as pant of employes benefit expense are as follows:

Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2422

Employes Optian plan
- Equiry-settled shared-based paymenis (Refer note 28) s -
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Loniract balances

The ol bowing 1able provides informaiion abonn receivables. contract assers nd conizact liahihies from coniracis with custoimers

{i} Coatract assets | Trade receivabbes - unbilled ) Amount
Opening balance | Apri 2022 689.72
Less: wvoiced during the year {68272}
Add- Revenue recopmised duning the year 634 44
Closing balance 31 March 2023 634,44
(i) Contract linbilities {Billing in advance of work completed) A mount
Opening balance | April 2022 B49.02
Less: revenue recognised tha was included in the conraci hatrilities at e béginning of rhe year (849.42)
Add: invoices rised far which no revenue is recognised during the year 787 1a
Closing belance 1 March 2023 16

Accounts receivable are recorded when the right to consideration becames uncond nional

Coniract liabilities include paviments recen ed m advance of pedurmance under the contract. and are reahised with 1he associared revenue recopnised under

the ¢contrag

Reconciliation of revenue recopnised in the Siatement of prafit and loss with the cantracted price

Revenue from conlracts with costomers (as per Statemeat of profit and loss) 40,867,62
Add: Discounts, rebates, refunds. credils. price concessions (66.20)
Less: Contrac assels adjusiments (634.44)
Conteacted price with the cuslormers 40,166.98

Segmenl reporting

The Company is cngaped primarily in the business of digital cmema services and sale of dignal cinema ancillary te sale of services. The entity™s chief
pperaling decision maker considers the Company as 3 whole lo make decisions aboul respurces to be allocaled 1o the segment and assess ils performance
Accordingly, the Company does not have mulliple segmenis and these financiol statements are reflective of the infomation required by the Ind AS 108
The chief eperating decisian maker monitors the operanag results of the entitys busingss far the purpose of making decisions abow resource allocations
and perfonance assessmenl

A, Geograpbic informution

The geographic information analyses the Company's revenue by the Company’s counny of domicile and other counrries la | nng the geowap

infonmation, segment revenue has been derenmined based on the peopmphic location of the cusiamers

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 H March 213
tadia 30,332 24 15.930.40
Rest oi'the world 1,535 38 200735
40,667.62 1_1.83 L.15

B. Major Customers
Revenue from (op customer ol the Company is INR “Nil' (31 March 2022: INR 'Nil" ; which is more than 10%s of the Company’s 1otal revenue

Micro and small enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 28 August, Z008 which reconnmends that the Micre and
Small Enlerprises should mention »n their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocaled afier filing of the
Memorandum i accordance with (e Micre, Small and Medivm Enterprise Developmem Act, 2006 (‘the Act’}y The disclosure in respect of the amouns
payable to such enterprises ag at 31 March 2071 has been made in the financial stalemenis based on infonmnation received and available with the Company
Further an view of the Managemeni, the inpact of interest, if any. that may be payable it avcordance with the provisons of the Act is nol expected 1o be
material. The Company has not received any claim tor interest from aay supplier as a1 the balance sheet date

Particular; Year ended Year ended
s 11 March 223 31 March 2033
(a} the principal amount and the interest due thereon (10 be shown separately} remaining unpaid to any 06 86 -

supplier al the end of each accounting year

ibj the amount of interest paid by the buyer m terms of section 16 of rhe Micro, Small and Medium < =
Enterprises Development Aci, 2000, along with the amount of the payment made o the supplier beyond the
appointed day duning each accounting year,

i'c) the amount of interest due and payable for 1the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid - .
but beyond the appomted day during the year) but withowl adding the interes) specified under the Micro,
Small and Medinm Enverpoises Development Act, 2006,

(d) the amount ofnlerest accrued and remaining unpaid a1 the cnd of cach accounting year: and - -

re) the amount of further mterest remaning due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date - -
when the interest dues above are aclually paid to the small enrerprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a
deduetible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Sniall and Mediom Enterprises Development gl
2006
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Ratio analysis and its clements
Ratto

ts for the year ended 31 March 2023

| ettt

Interest (Finance
I A

Numerafor enominator 3 March | 31 March | % change Reaton for variance
2023 2022

Cuwrent ratic Current Asgsels Current 033 073 2% Increase in current ranio reflects a
Linbikities substantial improvement in

liquidity and fnancial health

Delot- Equity Total Debi Shareholder’s 166 13 7% Positive fnancial development in

Ratio- Equiry the business post COVID yielded

profits during the year resulted in
decrease of Debt-equity ratio

Debt Service Earnings for debt Debt service 182 {040y +554% (Profits during the year and

Coverags ratia service = Net profit = Intorest & mprovement in.liquidity position

afier fes + Noncash Lease Payments bed to an improvement in the
operating expenses + Principal refic
Repeyments

Retum on Profit afier (ax Average total equity 11 {044)y| -126% |Profits during the year and

Equity ratio increase in cevenue during the|

year improved the ratio

[nventary Cost of goods sold Aversge inventory 214 145 49%  |Growth in revenue and inveniory

Tumover ralio optimisation irmproved the ratic

Trade Met credit sales = Aoversgs Trade 5325 142 5%  |Revenue  growth  elong  with

Receivable Gross credit sales - Reveivabk higher efficiency on reslisation

Turncver Ratio sales return resulied in an improvement in the

refio.

Trade Fayable Met credit purchases = Aversge Trade 289 132 118%  |Increase it pritvanly oh scoount

Turmover Ratia Gross credit purchases Payables of increase in purchases.

+ pwrchase metom

Net Capital Net sales = Totol sakes Working capital (15.52) (3.50)| 344%  (Profits during the year and

Tumgver Ratio - sales return =Current improvement in liquidity position
nssets — Current led fo an improvernent in the
liabilities rahio.

Net Profit rane Met Profit Net aules = 002 {023} -1N% |Improvement is  pomanly on
Total sabes « account of incresse in sales Bnd
sales retum decline i net loss fram previous|

year

Retum on Earnings before (Capital a.ls @32)| -146% (Improvement is primadly on

Capital interest and taxes Employed = account of reduction in loss.

Employed Tangibic Net
Worth + Total
Debt - Deferred
Tax asset

Rewrm on Ivestmaend = =

< This spuce has been infenviomatfy feff tiank .
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Addidonal Regulatory Enformadion

i) The Company has borrwings rom benks and linancial institations on 1he basis of secunty of curfemt assels. The quanerly
retumis of statements of cnmenl assets fled by ihe Company wilh banks and financial instilutions are in agreement with 1he
books of gccounts

(i) The Company has not been declared wilful defavlter by any bank or financial instifulion or govermINEnt OF any govermment
authgrine

(m) The Company do nol have amy wansactions with the campanies siruck o i uader Companies e, 2013

(i) The Company has complied with the nwmber of layers prescribed under the Companies det., 201 3

{1} The Company do not have any Benami property, where any peoveeding has beeo initiated ur pending against the Company for
holding any Benaimi propertv

(v} The Company does niot have any charges or satisfaction which is yet (o be registered with Registrar of Companies bevond the
statulory period,

(i) The Company have nol iraded or invested in Cryplo currency or Yirual Currency during the financial year

{viit) The Company do nov have any such ransaction which is nol recorded n the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclased as income during the vear i the tax assessments under the Incame Tax Act, [961 (such as, szarch of survey of any
other relevant provisions of he Income Tax Act, 1961)

{ix) The Company has not advanced or loaned o invested funds (o any viher person{s) or entity(ies). meluding Foreign entities
{Intermecharies) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall-

(a) dwecily or iditectly fend o intest m other persons or entities identified in any inanner whatsoever {“Ullimaie
Bencliciarics™} by o on behal " of he Comypany
(b} pravide any gnarantee. security or the like (0 or on behalf of the Uhimale Beneficiaries

{x} The Company has nor received ony fund from any personis) or entity(res), inclading, foreign entivres (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Conpany shall.

(2} directly or ndirectly, Jend or imvest i other persons or entines identified in any manner whalsoever { Uliimate
Beneficraries”} by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(b) provide any puaramee, securny ur the like from or on behal ' of the Ullimate Bene ficianes ™

(x1) The Company lras not revatued its propeny, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assels) or inlangible assels or bath
during the current or previnng vear

[xii} The Company has nol entered into any scheme of arvangement which has an accounling impact on currenl or previous
financkal year

Ag at 31 Muarch 2023, (he Company has expon receivables and impon payables amounting o INR 124 03 lakhs and 35 64 lakhs
respecnvely. which are due for a pefiod more than 270 days in case nf receivable and more than 180 days in case of paysble. which
arc the maximum penmissible pericd for realization and repatriation of expent proceeds it India bid payinent of payables, as per
Ihe master circular issued by Reserve Bank off [ndia. Subsequent 1o the balance sheet date, the Company has not vet realized this
amount. however 1t 1s in the process of obiaining necessary consent of the Authorized Drealer For delay in receipis and obrain
relesant approvalsicundonation for the delayed realization as per the requirements of exchange regulation

Transfer priving

The Company has enlered into Iransactions with certain related parties. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company obtaimed
an Accountant’s report from a Chartered Accountant in respece of intemarfonal transactions with related parues as required by the
relevant provisions of 1he Income-tax Act, 191 and Lhe same has been filed with the income ax auhoriies

For the curment year. the compuny confinms that il maimains documenialion as preseribed by the Income-1ax Acl. 196) and 1o prove
that the iniemational transactions are at anm’s length and the afaresaid lepislatinn will not have any impact on the standalone
financial statements. particularly on the amount of tax cxpense and that of provision for taxation

Cade on sorial security, 2020

The indian Parlament has approved the Code on Social Secunity. 2020 which would impact the conimibutions by the Company
towards Provident Fund and Gratuity The Minisiey of Labour and Employiment has released drafi rules for the Cade on Social
Security, 2020 on Movember |3, 2020, and has invited suggestions frotm stakcholders which are under active consideration by the
Minisity. The Company will assess the impact and us evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact
in its financial stalements in the period in which the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determme the financial impact
are published

Tins spece s been mtennonalie fefi Mank



Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Nates to standalone financial statementis for the year ended 31 March 2023
(A @mcines are fa Incian Rupees fokhs, welesy osherwise Stated}

50 Suhbsequent events

On July 06, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company approved execution, performance, and delivery of 50:50 joint venture agresments each dated July
06, 2023, by the Company, with UFD Moviez India Lid ("UFO") (collectively referred 10 as "JVAs") to carry oul the following businesses

{a} Selling advertisement inveniory on behalf of the Company and UFQ, including on-sereen and off-screen advertising, of DCI and nen-DCl sereens of the
Company and UFO, as well as third parties, in [ndia, including providing ancillary services in relation thereto (such as in-cinema and off-cinema
advertising solutions and rural activation vertical of UFQ having both LED and normal sereens mounted on o vehicle (ie, Caravan
Talkies)} "Adventisement Business™} (Jointly, “Transaction”)

The newly formed JV, once operational, will operate across approximately 6,500 sereens, amplifying the visibility of in-cinemna advertising as a key
adveniising mediwin. Leveraging a larger, unified Advertisement sales I¢am, the venture will seek to broaden its reach and explore avenues, on behalf of
the Company and UFO, for ad sales across various media

(b) Post-production processing, masiering of digital content including DY, Non -OCL, premium large format content, OTT content maslering, restoration,
Irigh dynamic range {(HDR) adaptation, cloning, content detivery and key delivery message managemnent of digital content in DCI and Non-OC] formats
(and providing ancillary services in celation thereto, such as confent localization, subtitling, dubbing, audio description, closed caplioning and
management/ issuance of release hold letters) (“Mastering Business™)

The newly formed IV will significantly benefit the film indusiry as producers and distributors witl have a single point of contact for their DCI and Non-
D)CI mastering, localization and content delivery need in India and Mepal. With the Company and UFO sharing similar infrastructure, the joim venture
plans lo optinize these resourees over time to provide sipnificantly superior services to the film industry

As per our report allached

for BSR & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accouniants Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited ¥y
Firm's Registration Number : 101248%W/ W-100022 CIN : U22490TN 1 986PTCD12536 r o
Satish Vaidyanathan P Jagendra ¥ Senthil Kumar Sri Varshini
Partner Wholetime Director Whaoletime Divector Company Secrelary
Membership N, 217042 DIN ; 00320286 DIN : 00320535

Place; Chennai Plave: Place: Chennai Place: Cheanai

Date: Date: 9“![05![;.3 Date: 2""0? IL? Date: l&‘ﬂ’l_—?



KRM Tower, 151 and 2nd Floors
B S R & CO L LP No. 1, Harrington Road, Chetpel

Chennai — 600 031, India
Chartered Accountants Telephong: +61 44 4608 3100

Fax: +91 44 4608 3199

ndependent Audior's Report

To the Members of Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consclidated Financlal Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to
as "the Group”) and its joint venture, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit and loss {including ather comprehensive income), consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatary information
{hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explamations given to us, and based on the
consideration of report of the other auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiary as were audited
by the other auditor, the aforesaid consolidated financial statemants give the information reqguired by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”] in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consclidated state of affairs of the Group and its joint
venture as at 31 March 2023, of its consolidated profit and other comprehznsive income, consolidated changes in
equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance with the Standards an Auditing (SAs} specified under Section 143{10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those 5As are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilitias for the Audit of the
Cansolidated Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Group and its joint venture in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in terms of the Code of Fthics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the ralevant provisions
of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of report of the other auditor referred
to in paragraph {a) of the “Other Matters” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide 3 basis for our
opinion on the consofidated financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Halding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated state of affairs, consolldated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consofidated cash flows of the Group including its joint venture in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified
under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group and its joint venture are responsible for malntenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effactively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the

Registered OMic:

B3R & Lo, {2 partnarship Frm woth Reghirason ho BAGI223| eonwerted ingg B 5 R & Co. ALP |4 Limited Lillpdrty 1d1h Flgor, Cenlrgl B Wing and Morth © Wing Beseo M Park 4, Mrico Crater,
Partusershig with LLP Hegistration o, AAB:B101] wilh aff act from October 14, 2013 Western Express Highway, Gore gaon (Exslh, Mumbei - 200061
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Independent Auditor’s Report {Continued)

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

purpase of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the
companles included in the Group and of its joint venture are respansible for assessing the ability of each company
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 0.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial $tatements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 2 whole
orc frec from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditar's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance (s a kigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 5As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken an the basis of these consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

& |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omistions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also respansible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial contrels with reference to financial
statemeants in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrals,

&  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

®  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the conselidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based an the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its boint
Venture to cease to continue as a going concerm.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events ina manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business
activities within the Group and its Joint Venture to express an opinion on the consclidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
information of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entity included in the consolidated financial statements, which has been
sudited by other auditor, such other auditor remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Qur
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Independent Auditor’s Report {Continued)

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

respansibilities in this regard are further described in paragraph {a) of the section titled "Other Matters” in
this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company of which we are the indepedent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter(s)

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary, whose financial statements reflects total assets
{before consolidation adjustments) of Rs.5,045.76 Lakhs as at 31 March 2023, total revenues (before
consolidatlon adjustments) of Rs.5,793.70 Lakhs and net cash outflows [before consolidation adjustments)
amounting to Rs 85.52 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consofidated financial
statements. These financlal statements has been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished
to us by the Management and our opinion on the consalidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of tthis subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section {3}
of Sectipn 143 of the Act, In so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the report of the
other auditar

The subsidiary is located outside India whose financial statements and other financial information have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in its country and which has been
audited by other auditor under generally accepted auvditing standards applicable in its country. The Group's
management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiary located outside (ndia from accounting
principles generally accepted in its country to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have
audited these conversion adjustments made by the Group's management. Our opinion in so far as it relates
to the balances and affairs of such subsldiary located outside India is based on the report of other auditar and
the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Group and audited by us.

Qur opinion on the coansolidated financial statements, and our report on Qther Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the wark
done and the report of the other auditor.

The consolldated financial statements include the Group's share of net profit/loss (and other comprehensive
incorme} of Rs. Wil for the year ended 31 March 2023, as considered in the consolidated financial statements,
in respect of a joint venture, whose financial statements has not been audited by us or by other auditor. This
unaudited financial information has been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amaunts and disclosures included in respect of
this joint venture, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid joint venture, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, the financial statements are
not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consplidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to the financial stataments eertified
by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Qrder, 2020 {“the Qrder”] issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of Section 143{11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexura A" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Crder, to the extent applicable.

2 A, As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiary, as were audited by othar auditor, as noted in the
“Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief ware necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial staterments have been kept sa far as it appears from our examination of those books
and the report of the other auditor,

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (Including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consclidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

The matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph in *Annexure B” with respect to
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the
Holding Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 04
April 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company none of the directors of the
Holding Company is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164{2) of the Act

The requirements of the auditor's reporting on internal controls with reference to financial statements is
not applicable to the foreign subsidiary and is exempted for the joint venture incorporated in india.
Accordingly, with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contrels with reference to financial
statements af the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B”.

The requirements of the auditor's reporting on internal controls with reference to financial statements is
not applicable to the foreign subsidiary and is exempted for the joint venture incorporated in India.
Accordingly, with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B"

With respect to the other mattars to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the bast of our information and according
to the explanations given 1o us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditor on separate
financial statements of the subsidiary, as noted in the "Other Matters” paragraph:

a.

The consolidated financial statements disclase the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 an
the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on leng-term contracts including derivative
contracts during the year ended 31 March 2023,

There are no amounts which are requirad to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Holding Company during the year ended 31 March 2023.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note

47 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any ether sources or kind of funds} by the Holding Company
or its joint venture company incorporated in India to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities {“intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall:
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Independent Auditor's Report {Continued)

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited
= directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Holding Company or its joint venture company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

(i} The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note
47 to the consclidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or its
joint venture company incorporatad in India from any persans or entitias, including foreign entities
{"Funding Parties"}, with the understanding, whether recarded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company or its joint venture company shall:

* directly or indirectly, lend orinvest in other persons or entities identified inany manner whatsocever
by or on behalf of the Funding Parties {"Ultimate Beneficiaries"}

* ot provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ukimate Beneficlaries

{ili} Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come ta our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i} and (ii] of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i} and {ii] above, contain any material
misstatement,

e, The Holding Company and its joint venture companias incorported in India has neither declared nor paid
any dividend during the year.

f.  As provisoto rule 3{1} of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Holding Company or
its joint venture company only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11{g} of the Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

C.  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Holding Campany is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(186) of the Act
which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.;:101248W/wW-100022

o~

Sétish Vaidyanathan

Partner
Place: Chennal Membership No.: 217042
Date: 28 September 2023 ICAL UDIN: 23217042BGRWII3125
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section

of aur report of even date)

(o) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following company
incarporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, has unfavourable remarks,
qualification or adverse remarks given by its auditor in their report under the Companies {Auditor's

Report) Ordar, 2020 {CAROD):

Sr. No. Nome ofthe CIN Holding Clause number of
entities Company/Subsidi | the CARC report
ary/ W/ which is
Associate unfavourable or
qualified or
adverse
1 Qube Cinema U92490TN1986F Holding {iy (a} (A), (i} (B),
Technologies TCO12536 Company (iii) {e), (iii) {d),
Private Limited tvii) ta), (xiv) {a),
[xiv} (k)

The above does not include comments, if any, in respect of the following entities as the CARD report
relating to it has not been issued by its auditor till the date of grincipal auditer’s report.

Mame of the entities

CIN

Subsidlary/ ¥/ Associate

Justickets Private limited U74900TN2013PTC092047

Joint Venture

Place: Chennai

Date; 28 September 2023

ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Reglstration No.:101248W/W-100022

—

Satish Vaidyanathan

Partner

Membership Mo.: 217042

ICAl UDIN: 23217042BGRWII3125
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

{Referred to in paragraph 2{A){f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Rerquirements’
section of our report of even date)

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the Internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements of
Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited {"the Holding Company"} as of and for the year ended 21 March 2022
n conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company as of and for the
vear ended on that date.

We do not express an opinion on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company. Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an opinion on
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statemants of the Holding Cormpany.

We have considered the disclaimer reported below in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the Consolidated financial staterents of the Holding Company, and the disclaimer does not
affect our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements of the Holding Cornpany.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

The system of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were not made available to us to
enable us to determine if the Holding Company has established adequate internal financial control with reference
to financial statements and whethar such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March
2023.

Management's and Board of Directars’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
establishad by the Holding Company considering the assential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence tothe Holding Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conductad our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statemants

Because of the matter described in Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph below, we were not able to obtain sufficient

appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
20213 {Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed
to provide reascnable assurance regarding the rellability of financlal reporting and the preparation of consolidated
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial stataments inelude those policies and procedures
that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasenable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consalidated financia! statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

ForB5R &Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/wW-100022

s,

Satish Vaidyanathan

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 217042
Date: 28 September 2023 ICAl UDIN: 23217042BGRWII3125
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Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

(AN amosrits gre i Idian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at
Mote 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 19,590.79 2,149 31
Capilal work-in-progress 5 769 56 1.040.81
Right-of-use assets [ 1,020.66 2272
Intangible assets 7 4743 45943
Investments accounted for using the equity method 3 - -
Financial assels
Invesiments 9 11.46 .
Trade receivables 10 1,073.20 40041
Loans 1 200,00 200,00
Qther financial assels 12 353,49 240.62
Deferred tax assets (nety 34 5,963.78 6,340.12
[ncoame tax asscts 13 906 02 468 39
Other assets 14 467 82 543.69
Total non-cusrrent assets 21,408.81 19,765.50
Current assets
[nventories 15 6,0d41.74 312493
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10 11,537 91 1,686 86
Cash and cash equivalents 6 362.90 437.06
Bank halances other than cash and cash ennivalents 17 2,339 22 1,695 57
Loans 11 61.53 237
Oither financial assets 17 179 &% 1771
Other assets 14 312584 213783
Total current assets 23.648.99 15,622.30
Taotal asseis d45,057.80 35,387.80
EQUITY AND LTIABILITIES
Equiry
Equity shace capital 18 2,749.83 2,743 80
Other gquity 19 6,747.98 4,535.16
Total equity 9,497.81 7.279.0%
Liabilities
Nen-current liabilities
Financial Jiabilities
Bomowings 20 536827 523429
Lease labyilities 21 518.35 506.22
Other financial liabilities 22 243806 2271914
Provisions 24 36372 238448
Chher liabilities 23 936.41 159.87
Tetal non-current liabilities 9,675, 71 543800
Current ligbilities
Financial lishililies
Borrowings 20 §,003.53 3,546 1o
Lease liabilities 21 677.39 61439
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enferprises 2686 .
Total outstanding dues of creditors otlier than micro enterprises and small enterprises 25 166117 53310
Other financial labilities 22 §58.20 495.23
Provisions 24 113.00 00.01
Oiher Liabililies 23 7,873.98 7,587.25
Total current Liabilities 25.884.28 19,670.75
Total liabilities 35,553.99 28,108.75
Total equity and liabilities 45,057.30 35,387.540
Significant accounting policies 3
The notes referred 10 abowve form am integral part of these consolidated financial siatements
As per our ceport attached
for BSR & Co. LLP Sor and on behalf of the Board of Divectors of
Chartered Accommianss Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited
Finn's Regisiration Number : LOL248W/ W-100022 CIN : U92490TNI1986PTCO 12536 .
A e
J*-_._x:(: i /
Satish Vaidyanathan Jayendra ¥ Senthil Kumar Bri Vawshiini
Pariner Wholuinre Direcior Whaolesime Direcior Coupany Seerciary
Membership No.: 217042 DIN : 00320286 DIN ; 00320533
Place: Chennai Place: Place: Chennai Place: Chennai

Date: Dale: Date: Date:



Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Consolidated Staternent of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(A1 amenanes ave in (ndfian Rupees Inkhs, unfess orherwise stated)

Revenue

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total revenue

Exptnses

Purchases of stock in trade

Changes in inventories of stock in frade
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expenss
Other expenses

Taotal expenses

Profit f (loss) before tax

Tax expense:
Current tax

Deferred tax expense / (benefit)
Income tax expense / {benefit)

Profit / (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasuretnent gaitt en defined benefit plans
Income tax effect relating to remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans

Note

26
7

28
29
30
3l
32
13

4

Net other comprehensive (loss) / income that will not be reclassitfied subsequently to profit or loss

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences in translating consolidated financial statements of foreign operations
Income tax relating to iterns that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Earnings per share:
Basic camings per share {(INR)
Diluted eamings per share {INR}

Significant accounting policies

The notes referced to above form an integral part of these consolidated financial stalements

As per out report attached

Sor BSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number - 101248W/7 W-100022

ol

Satish Vaidyanathan
Partrer
Membership No.: 217042

Place: Chennai
Date:

18

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
4542219 21,811 52
23112 552 37
46!653.3] 22,363.89
12,895.68 4,390.90
(2,916.79} (566.88)
§A15.44 5,706.10
1,246 8% 1,132,889
4,025.66 4,146,02
2126817 12,859.62
44.935.04 27,668.65
1,718.27 {5,304.76)
067 0.60
39170 {1,292.96)
39237 (1.292.36)
1,325.90 (4,012.40)
{8087 69.44
2035 {17.48)
(60.52) 51.96
90,32 18.02
9.32 18.02
1.355.70 (3,942.42)
4.82 (15.50%
4.39 {15.50)

Jor and on behalf of the Beard of Divectors of
Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited
CIN : U92490TN1986PTCO12536

7 e L

P Jiyendra

Wholetime Director

DIN : 40320286

Place:
Date:

¥ Senthil Kumar
Wholetime Director
DIN : 00320535

Flace: Chennai
Date:

\p_

Sri Varshini
Company Secreiary

Place: Chennai



Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the year coded 31 March 2023

(AN arporeanis ape in dndian Rupees fakis, wiiess oferwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities

Frofii / (loss) before tax

Adjustments:

Deprecialion and amodisation expensss

Nel pain on fale of praperty, plant and 2quipment
Bad dcbts written off

Impairment Losses on financial instruments
Provision for inventory

Finance costs

Finanee imeoine

Interest income on seourivy deposit paid

Notional rental income on security deposit received
Unrealised loss on forcign exchange (net)

Warking capital adjusiments:

{Increase) in invenlonss

{Increase} in trade receivahles

Decrease / {increase) inloang and other financial assets
{Increased in olher assels

Increase in rade payable and other financial liabilities
Increase in provisions and other liabililies

Cash generated from / (used in) operaling activities
tncome tax refund received (net)
Mel cash peoerated Tevan £ {used ind vperaling activities (4}

Cash Nows from investing aclivities

[nterest recei ved

Acquisioon of propenty, plant and equipment and capilal work-in-progress
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Bank deposils placed with original walurity of more than 3 months
Acquisiton of other investemenis

MNet cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash fMows Mrom Minancing aclivities

Praceeds from bomowings

Repayments of borrowings

Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities

Praceeds fromn issue of shares

Praceeds from issue of optionally convertible cumulative preference shares
Inrerest paid on lease liabililies

[nterest paid om financial liabilities measored ar amortised cost

Nel cash from financing activities {C)

Net {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+)
Cash and cash equivalenis at the beginning of the year
Net foreign exchanpe diffarence

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Reconciliatlon of cash and cash equivalenis as per cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per the above comprises of the following

Cash om hand

Bank balances

Bank overdiefis

Balances as per stalement of cash flows

Refeer nole 20 for disclosure on changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Sigmicant accounting policies

The notes referred (o above forn an integral parl of these consolidated financial siatemenis

Ay pet our report aiached

Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
1.718.27 {5,304 16)
32 4.024.35 414602
27 (12.56) 612)
3 51.75 41.13
33 641.53 67288
362.00 12071
31 1,246.88 1,132.89
7l (118.57) {139.94}
27 23.30) (1270}
27 (54.60) {25147
130,97 36.70
7.966.12 435.34
(3.278.79) (0657 59)
15,233.31} {4,374.70)
20933 (296.18)
(912.14} (452.40)
2,769.00 1.453.48
1.181.07 1.894 75
1,701,218 (2027.3M)
(458 66} 672,92
2,242.02 1,354.38)
113897 13594
{4,331 .42) (1,895.40)
1571 957
(642.70% (60.64)
{11.46} =
4,551,50) (1,806.53)
4,547 64 432330
{1,607.55) (2,136.79)
(429.28) {392 86}
5.94 1.765.55
1,000.00
(102 36) {130 84)
(905 59) {81684}
2,508.60 2,591.52
{100.68) {565.39)
(81.09) 430.34
42 88 746
14 (138.89) (BL.09)
Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.97 057
361.93 436.09
(501.79) {518.15)
(133.89) (81.09)
3

for BSR& Cu. LLP
Chartered Accountonts
Tirm's Registration Number : 101248W/ W-100022

Satish \-’m“

Sor amd on befralf of the Board of Divectors af

Qube Cinema Technologries Private Lisited ] r\[ W ;),‘))ﬂ‘ ;
\ .

CIN. WOI490TN1986PTCL12536 &

A=l |

Inyendra ¥ Senthil Kumar Sri Varshini
Partner Whilesime Thivector Wholetinee Director Compeny Seovefary
Membership No.. 217042 DIN . Q0320284 DI - 00320535
Place:; Chennai Place: Plage: Chennai Place: Chentai

Date: Date; Date: Dhate:
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Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited -
Notes 10 consolidated financial sintements for the year ended 31 March 2023
VAN armertenes ey tz fandionn inprees Lakhy, weloss criensse sk}

2

Background

Qube Cineina Technologes Private Lirated (Formerly: Renl hmage Media Technologres Private Limded) ("the Parenl Com panry T} was
incarpoiated wn | Janwary 1986 the Growp s domuciled and incorporaled i Indis wath its registered address siualed at No 42, Dr
Ringa Road, Mylapore, Ciweninal, Tanul Madu - 600004 The Group 1s prmanly engaged i the business of providng dyznal cinema
senvice The Ciraup also provides other services such as eontent mastening, managed servnices and in-theater advertising

The Parent Company. its subsidiary and ns yois conirolled enlity (ointly referred Lo as the 'Group berern under) considered n these
consolidated linancial siatemenis are

Mame ol the Group Conniry of Incorporation Type of Proportion of equity investmenl
Investment Asat Asal
3) March 2023 31 March 2012
Quhe Crmema Inc Unned Siates of America Subsidiary [z 1004
Jushickets Pravare Limied India Jomdly comrolled 4} 44% 4] 4d%
enlily
Basis of preparation

2.1 (n} Siatement of compliance

These consolwaled financial siatements of the Group have been prepared i accordance wath Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 noufied under Section 133 o Companies Aet, 20073 (the 'Act) and other
televant provisions of the Acl

These financial slalements were authorised for issue by the Company's Baard of Directors on 20 September 2022

Dretails of the Group's accountmg palicies are included wn MNede

L1 ¢b) The managemend of the Company has carmed s an assessment of the appropriatencss of the gomp-concern assumplion, imparment of

1.2

3

14

15

assets and other 1elaied aspects and as un the date of approval of the standalone fmanoal statements, it believes that there are no
sigmficant impacl The company had ncurred losses i the previous year end and had accurmulated losses of INR 5,401 0 lakhs . that
has eroded the networth Duning the year, the cormpony has earned operating prafits and expecis 1o generale positive cashilows

v A d

L v dingly, the a0 o0 EOIMy CONCETT assumphon & appropnale

Fanctipnal and presemtation curreucy

These linancial sialements are presented in Indian Rupeex (INRY which 15 also the Group's Tunctional currency Al amounts have been
rounded-off 1o the nearest lakhs, unless atherwise slared

Basis of meensuremend

The financia) statemenis have been prepared on the hustoncal cost baus exeept for the following items

liems Measuremen| basis
Cerlam hnancial assels and habalwes (including derivative ingiruments and share based Fair value
« Her defincd bene it assetai habilily } Tair value of plan assels, Jess present

value of defined benefii obligations

Current ! Mon-current chassification

All assets and rabilities have heen classilied as current or non-current as per the Company’s nermal operating cycle and other cenena sel
ol 1 the Schedule 1 4o the Companics Aci, 2003 Based on the natute of products and services and the ime between Lhe ACQuIsitcn
uf asseis and thew realisanon in cash and cash equivalenis, the Company has ascenamed 11s operating cycle as fvelve months For the
purpase oF curreni and non-current elassilication of assets and liabilites

Use of estimaies and jwdgements

In preparing the consohdaied fi | siat I agemenl has made jud B 5 and P thal affect the
apphiealion of acennnting polices and the reported amounis of asseis, habiliscs, mcome and expenses Actual resulls moy differ from
1hese cstimales

Estinutes and underlying assumptions are revicwed on an ongeing basis Revisivns 1o acc 1 are recopnised

Jodgements

Infarmalion aboul judgements made in applying accauntmg policres thal have the most sugnificant effecls on the amounts recogrised in
the consahdated fimancial 15 wmeluded in the Foll 2 notes

- Note 30 - far valvabion of Minancial assels

- Noie 39 - lease elasafieation

A Fony and estimarion i keer

Infiinanon ubowt assnmptiois and estunation uncertiiniies that have a sigmiticant ask of regultmg i 2 matersal adiustment in (he year
chied 31 Mareh 2032 15 ieludled m e Fallowing nistes

Note 7 & £ - Impanmeni test of non-finaneial assers: key sssumptions underying reeonerable amounts tncluding the recoverabiliy of
expenditure o miernally generated uianyible assel

Note 33 - recognmiion of deferred tax assels,

Nate 36 - measurenien| of defined benef vhligatvons key aciuanal assomplions

Nate 37 - impairment of financial msets,

MNote o & 21 - M ol euse hablines and Risht of Use Assel

Note 41 - recogmtion and measurerment of provisions ang conungencies key assumplions abou the likelihood and magniude of an
ol (o of resources
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Notes 10 lidmied fi ial st ts Tor e yoar ended 31 March 2023
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Messuremeni of [uir valwes

A rurmber of the Group's acc pob and dise] require the measurement of far vabues. for both financial and non-
finaneial assets and Lakiliies

The Group has an established control framework wath respect 0 1he measwrement of Faw values The Group regularly reviews
sgnificant uncbservable ipuils and valuation adjustments It third party information, 15 used 1o weasure far values, then the Group
asgesses the evidence oblained Frin the third partiss 10 Suppon the | thal these valustions meel the req of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy i which the valuations should be classified

Furr valugs are categonsed o different levels i 2 Fus value nerarchy based on the inpuls used m the valuation techmques as follows

- Level | quoled prices {unadyusied) in active markets for identical assets or habilines

= Level 2. wputs oiher than quaded proes inelisded m Level | ihat are observable for the asset or Dabibity, enhes directly [1¢, a5 prices}
or indirectly (1 €, denved from prices)

- Level 3 inputs for the asset o liablity Ihat are nol based on observable markel data (unebservabls wpwts).

When measuring the fr vaiies of an 4384l or a hability, the Group uses observable market data as far a5 possible 1 the 1nputs used to
measure the far value of an asset or a liabihiy fall into different levels of the fowr value hierarchy, then the Fair value measurement 13
calegunytd m s entirety in (e same level of the fair value hierarchy as Lhe lowest lesel inpul (hat 15 significant (o the entire

The Group recognises (ransler berween lexels of the Tair value iverarchy at the end of the reporting penod during which the change has
occurred

Funiher nformalion about 1he assumphons made in measuning, far values 1 included in the note 37 - finanaal siaements
Significant accounting policics

i. Fortign currency rnmsmetions

Transections n foreign currencies are lranslaled into the funcuional currency of the Giroup af the exchange tales a1 the dates of the
rANSACHONS w1 & at erape vale 1 e aversge e approximates the actual rate ot the date af 1he Lransacion

Monciary asseis and habilities denomingled in foreign curencies are translaled o the functional curreney al the exchange rate al the
réporting date Non-monelary asseis and habilives that are measured at fair value v a foreign turrency are transliated mio the funchonal
currency at the exchange cate when Ihe Fair value was detenmined Non-monetary assets and lisbilitizs that are measured based on
stquical cost i o fareign currency are ranslaied at the exchange rate at the date of the ransacuon Exchange differences are recognised
in profil or loss except exchange differences ansing on qualifying cash llow hedges to the exient that the hedges are effseve

ii. Foreign operations

The resulis and financial posuion of foreign operanons that have funetional currency different from the presentalion currency are
Iranglared mio prescniation cuency as follows,

- Assels and Liabililiss are trapslated a1 the closing rate al (he dale of balance sheet

~ ncome and Expenses are translated at the average sxchange rales

- All resuling exchange differences are

d in ather comp € INCOME

i
Bask of consdidation

i. Swbsidiary

Subsidiary sre entuies conirolled by the Croup The Group conlrols an enlity when i is exposed 10, or has rights 1o, variable returns
from «is involvement with the ¢nty and has the ability 1o affect those returns through us power over the entity The comsohdated

fi I siat of subsidiary are included in ihe consuhdated financial stalemenis from the date on which contrel commences umtil
Ihe date on winch control ceases

ih. Equity accomnted inveslees
The Group's inleresis in equity accounted investees comprise inlerests n joini venlure

A yont venlure 13 an arrongement in which the Group has yount control and has rights 10 1he net assets of the arrangement, rather than
rights 1o its assets and obligations for ns habililes

Interests I joind venkure are accounted for using the equity method They are witially recognised a1 cost which meludes transaction
cosis Subsequent Lo inilial recagmilion, the consolidaled financial statemenis melude the Uroup’s share of profit or loss and OCI of
equity -aceourisd mvestees unul the date on winch significant influence or jomnt cantrol cease

it Tr in Jiminated on lidatiow

Iritea-group bal and ions, and any d wncome and expenses anuing from intra-gronp transachions, are eliminated
Unrealised gains arising flom transections with equity accounied mveslses are chminated against the investment (o the extent of the
Group’s interst im thi: invesiee Unrealised losses are elimingted in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there 1s
no ey pdenee ol iImpaimaant
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Finawcisl instruments

i. Recogmition aml iniatinl mensuremest

Trade recenables and deli seconbies issued are imially ivcogmsed when they are orgmated A eiler Gnancal et and Mamgal
habslives are inaliy recognised when the Group becormes o party 10 the conlractual provisions of he instrument

A financial assel or financial babality 15 1mmially measured al Fair value plus, for an wem nol & fair vatue through profil and loss
(FVTFLY. iransaction costs thai are directly attribueable 15 it acquutalion of iwsue

il Classilication aud subseqoent measoremen!

Firmacral e

On el recogmition, a financial asset s classified as measuted al

- dmonisad cosr,

- FVOC] - eqmry 1nestment, ar
~FNTRL

Financial assels are nol reclassificd subsequent 1o their wilie] recognition, except 1f and n the pened the Group changes (s business
model for managng finencal asds

A Pinancial asset s measured at amonised cogt o it meely boih of the follyvang condilions and 13 not designaicd as al FYTPL

— the agsel is hekd within 2 business medel whose abyective 1s to hold assets to collect coniractnal cash flows: and

= the comiraciual 1erms of the Minancial asset give fise on speeified dates 1o cash Aows that are salehy payments of principal and ntorest
om the principal amount oulstandung,

O ininal recugmuon of an eguity investmenat that 15 not held for trading, the Group may imevocably elect 1o present subseruen changes
wn the invesiment’s [air valug m OC| (designaled as FYOCI - equiy invesimenl) This elechon s made on an investment- by-
myvestment basis

Allf | 293cty nol classificd an d at amortised cost or FYOCT ay descnbed above are measwed al TVTPL Thes ieludes all
derrvanrve financial assels O imiial recognilion, the Group may wievocably designate a financial asset that otherwise mees the
requirements 10 be measured al amortised cost as at FVTPL 1 doing so eliminates or significanily reduces an e b thal
would atherwise arise

Fvancerl assens bBwsmess mvodet

the Group makes an assasameni of the abjerirve of the business model in which 1 financial ascet 13 held al a portfoho level because this
best reflents the way the business 15 managed and information s provided Lo management The information considered includes:

— the siated policies and objectives for the ponfolio and the operaion of those policies 0 pracice These include whelher
management's siralegy focuses on earning comracival interesl meome, mamtaning a pariicular interest rale profile, matching the
duratkan ol the financial assets 1o the duration of any related liabilies or expecied eash outflaws or realising cash flows through the zale
—how the performance of the porifoliv s cvaluated and reponied 1o the Group's management,

~ the risks that aflect the performance of the business. model (and (he financial assets held within that bustness model) and how those
risks are managed .

= huw managers of (he business are compensaled — e g whether compensalion 15 based on the fair valug of the asse1s managed or the
conlraciual cash flows collected, and

= the frequency, v olume and Limimg of" sales of financial assets i pricn periods, the reasars for such sales and expeciations about fulure
sales actrvity

Financinl agsets: Sub m ement and gains aad losses

Financual assels at FYTFY. These assess are subsequently measured at Fair value Net gams and losses, including any
imerest or dividend income, are recogmsed v peofit or loss

Equity Invesimenis al F¥OC! These assels are subsequenily measured at faur valve Dividends are recognised as income

n slatemeni of profit and loss unless the dividend elearly represenis a recovery of part of
the cost of the invesiment Other et geins and losses are recogmsed i OCT and are ot
reclassified to slatemen of profil and loss

Financial assels ot amortised cost These asscls are subscquenily mezsured ol amornised cosl wsing the effective unleres
method Fhe smomtised cost 15 reduced by impaimnen Iosses  Inlerest mpome, foregn
exchange pains and losses and impaimment are recognised m profit or loss Any gam or
loss on derecogmibon 15 recognised n profn or Joss

Financial linbilitkes: Classification, subsequent messurement und gains and losses

Financial babilikes are clessified a5 mezswred at amortised cost or FVIPL A finencial labilny 15 classitied as a1 FYTPL of il 15
classefied as held-for-trading, or 1 15 2 derwanive or it s designaied a5 sueh on yitial recogonion Financial liabilines at FYTPL are
measured at fur value and net gaing and {osses, ineluding any 1nterest expenae, are recogmised un profie or loss Other Ninancial habiliics
are subsequently mewured @ emortised cost using the effective interest method Interest expense and forezn exchanyge gans and losses
are recognrsed 10 profit or loss Any pain or loss on derecognilion s 2lso recogmsed in profil ar loss



Dubie Cinemn Technologies Privite Limitedl
Noies to consolidaled Nnamcial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2013
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Significan| accounting p 1 }

Fimamcial instruments {comtinoed )

ti. Derecogniriom

Financial uxseis

the Group derecogmses a financial assel when ihe contractual nghis te the cash Nows from the hinancial asser expire, or it Iransfers the
nghis o recerve the contraciual cash fMows 1 2 transachion m which substantially all af the risks and rewards of ownership of (he

financial asset are transferred or m which the Group nesther translers nor retams subsianially a1l of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financral asset

Ii"the Growp enters mtc hereby 1t assets recogiised on its balance sheet, bul relzins either all or substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the d assets, the lemed assels are nol derecogmised
Fmancal hablries

the Group derecopauses a financial hablity wiven e contiaiual oblgativns we Jischaged v vaielled, ur esprie

the Group also derecognises o firnneral hability when s tams arc modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are
substanually differemt o (bus case, 8 new financial hability based on the modified terms 1s recogmsed a faiv value The difference
betuneen the camying amount of the linancial hability extnguished and the new financiel hsbiline with modified terms 3 recognised

iv, Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabtlites are offsel and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group
currenily has 2 lagally snlorceable right (o set ofT the amounts and i inlends cither 1o sellle them on a nel basis or 1o realise the asset and
settle the hiability simultansously

Ciash and rash equivabents

Cash and cash equivalents i the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shont-temn deposits with an ongnal matunty of
threx: mombs or less, which are subject o an insignificant risk of chunges n volue For the purpost of the staroment of exsh Mows, cash
and cash equivalenis consist of cash and short-ierm deposits, as defined above, net of owisianding bank cverdrafts as they are considered
an integral parl of the Group’s cash managenen

Property, plani and equipment

i Recognition and sienssrement

biems of property, plam and equipmeni are moasured at cost, which includes caplalised bomowing costs, less sccumulated deprecialion
and avcumulated impai rmem losses, if any

Cost of an stem of property, plant and equipment comprises iy purchuss price, neluding impont duties and non-refnduble purchuse
Laxes, after deducting Irade discoonts and rebates, any dimectly sinbutable cost of bringing the ibem to s working condition for 1is
ded use and d cost of di ling and removing the ilem and restoring the site on which it s located

IF sigrficant parts of an em of preperty, plant and equipment have different usafl lives, then they are accounied For as separate 1ems
(major components) ol property, plant and ¢quipment

Any gan or loss on disposal of an lemn of property, plant and equipment is recogmised in profit or loss

i, Subsequent expendinare

Subsequeni expendilure 15 caprialised only if i1z probeble that the future economic benefils aseoctated with the expenditure will flow 1o
ibi. Depreciaiion

Depreniation 13 caleulaled on cos! of (ems of praperty, plant and equipment less their esimaled residual valwes over Iheir estimaled
were Fil Yives wgmip the strighi-hne method, and is generally recagnised in the statemeni of profil and loss

The satzmated useful lives of ilems of propedy, plant end equipment Tor the eument and eomparative penods are s follows:

Assel Mamagerment estimate of uselul life  Usedui lile as per
Schedule Il
Flant and machinery - 10 Years 1 years
Corniputer Sysiems - Gyears i -6 years
Office equipment's 5 yaurs 3 years
Fumilure gnd Nxtures & years 10 vears.
Elzctneal eguipment's and installation 6 years 10 vears
Vehicles 5 years B ypans

Leasehold improvements are witlen o7 over die period of lease or over & perad of 4 years whichever is lwer

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each finzncral year end end adjusicd if' appropnate Bascd on
technical evalualion and consequent advies, Uw gement beli that its of useful Jives as grven above best represent the
penad over which management expects Lo use these assels
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Significant acc ing pulicies {continued)

Intangible assels

i. Recognition amd meszurenaent

Fateralfy pencraied: Researeh amd Devchopment

Expenditure on research aclivities is recogrused i the profil or loss as ncurred

Developmenl expenditure 15 capilalised as parl of ihe cost of the resulung inlangible assel only 1F the expendilure can be measired
reluably, the product or process 14 lechmeally and commeraally feasible, future economic henelits are probable. and the Group mtends
15 and hes sufficrent resources to complete devclopment and Lo use o scll the asset Qiberwase, 11 s recogmsed o profi o loss as
wncurred Subsequeent 1o mitial recognibon, the assel 1s measured at cost less accumulated amorisanen and any accumulacd imparment
losses

ii. (W hers

Other intangible assets including those acquired by the Group are inmally measured al cost Such iniangible assels are subsequently
measured al cost less accumulated amartizanon and ary accumulated inparment losses

iii. Subsequend expendilure

Subsequent expendilure 15 capualised only when il increases the fulure econamic benefis embodied m the specific assed (o winch i
retmtes All other expenditure 1s recogrused in profin or loss as incurred

. Amorization

Amothsalion 15 ¢alenlaied 1o wnte off the cost of mtanpible assels less therr eshmated resdual vales aver iheir estimated wseful lives
wsing the siraight-hine methed, and s mcluded m d and wnin$  of Prafint and 1oss

P

Fught 1o use the ineellectual property 15 amortsed using umt of production method (Produet of each umit then are (ransferred 10
inventory and subsequent by accounted for umder cost o stock-m-lrade consumed 11" the unit 1s sold o considered as property, plant and
equupment 11 the ni s leased »

“The estimated useful irves are as Todlows

Assel Management estimate of useful life
Software (meluding  mternally  generated S years
sofiware) ’

Amorization welhod, useful lives and reudual valoes are reviewed at the end of each Ninancial vear and ad)usted 1 appropriate

Invaniories

Inveniomnes are measured al the lawer of eost and nel realisable value The cost ol mnvenlories 1s based an the weiphted average formula
and includes ex pendiure incurred i acquining the inyemanes. praduciion or consersion costs and other costs mearred 1m0 brnging them
1o thewr present location and condwon

Ned realisable value s ihe estimated selling prce 1 the ordinary course of busmess, less the esimaled costs of compl and sellng
expenses The nel reahssble value of work-in-progress 15 determined with reference 10 the sellmy pnces of related mshed peoducts

The companisen of cost and net realisable value 15 imade on an mem-by - item basis
bm pairment
i lpaireen] of financial issiruments

In accordance with lod A% 10%, the Group applies expected credit loss (“ECL") model for measurement and recopnition of impaiment
Tusy oo Noangial assels

Loss allovwance for irade recors ables woh ne significant fimancing component 1 measured at an amowal squal 19 Lifelime expeaed credil
losses For all other inancoal assets, ECL are measured & an amount equal Lo the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a sigmficant
increase in eredit rigk from omibal recogmdion m which case those are measured at ifenime ECL

Loss alhowance for Nnansial assels measured at amorhised cost are deducted from pross carry mg armowt of the assels

ii. ITmpairment of non-Rinancial assess

the Growp assesses a1 cach reporting date whether there 15 amy mdication that the carryIng amount may not be recaverable 17 any such

wndicanon exists. then the asset’s recoverable amounl 1s esiimaled and an impamment loss 15 recogmised 1f the carnomg amount of an
assel or COL) exceeds ats estimaied recoseralle amauni i the siatement of prafil and lass

0

the Graup’s 1al asseis, ves and defemred tax assels, are reviewed a1 each repoming date 1o determine whether lhere 1=
any indication of impatmient [ any such indicanon exiats, then the asset’s recoverable amouont & estwvated For ymparment testing,
assets Lhal do nol generate independent cash nflows are grouped ogether inle cash-generaing wnits [CGLUS] Each CGL represents the
smallest proup of assets (hal penerates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash nftows of olher asses or CGUS

Tmparment loss recognised 1 espedt of 2 CGL s aliocated Mist 1o reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocared 1o the CGLT,
and iher 1o reduce the carrying amounts of the ather asels of the CGU {or groups of £GUs) on a pro rata basis

An impairment 0ss i respect of goodwill s not subsequendly reversed [n respect of other assels (or which impaimen loss has been
recopmsed i prar periods, the Group reviews al sach reporiing date whether there 15 any indication (hat the lass has decreasad or ne
longerexisis An imparmment loss iz reversed of there has been a change 1n the eshmates vsed (o determine the recoverable amount Such
a reversal 15 made only 10 the extent (lat the 2vset’y caryme anount does mol enceed e canying amownt that would have bezn
determmed. net of depreciation of amortisation, il no mpainnent 1ass had been recopnised
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Signilicont nee img prollicics | i i)
Empleyec boemelics
i Shard-lerm ¢mployec benelils

Shon-lerm employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basig and are expensed as the related service 1§ provided A
Tiability 15 recopmused Mot the amoun expected 16 be pand ¢ g, under short-term bonug, of the Croup has 4 prasen legal or construchive
obligation 1o pay ths amount as a sesull of past service provided by the employec, and the smount of abligaiion can be csumated
reliably

i Gramwiey
the Group provides Tor granny, a defined benelin plan othe Gratuny Plan™) covenng the eligible employess of the Group The Gramy

IPlan provides 2 lump=sum payment to vested emplovees @ rebrenent, dealh, 1ncapacitation o1 lermnaton of emplovment, of an
ampeulrl brsedd on the 1especlive emplovee's salary and Ihe tenure af he emplovment vl the Growp

Laabihily wth sepaed 1o the Gramnty Plan are determuned by acwanal valualion, performed by anoindependent actuary. al each balance
sheet dwte using the progreted it ceeda mathieel The dafoned benefir plan s adiministered by o trst formed fon s proipose thioaeh e
Cirvup granty scheme

the Growp tecopnises the net obliation of u defined benefil plan as a hability i is balance sheel Gams or losses through re-
measurenent of 1he et defined benefit habilily are recogrised m other compreheasiv e imcame and are nod seclassified 1o profit and loss
i dhe subsequent perods The actual retum ol the ponisle of plin nssets, moeseess of the welds conspuied by applying the discaum
vate wsed w measure e defnied benefit ohliganon is recogmsed 10 other comprebensive meome The effect of aw plan anendments
ale rgcngnsed in the statement of profn and loss

fii. Provident fund

Eltmble emplovees o (he Group recene benefits from provident fund, which 15 o defined conirbuten plan Both the eligible
ampliyees and the Groap make monthly cootribuons io the Gevernmeni admimistered prosadent fund scheme equal (o a speefied
perceniage of The eligsble employee's salary  Amounis collecled under the provident fund plan are deposned waih 10 a governmemn
adminisiered provident fund the Group bas no Further obligalion 1o the plan beyond 115 monthly contributions

iv. Compensated absences

the Group has a policy on compensated absences which are bolh latng and non-accurmulaumg in nature The expected cost of
accumulanng compensaled absences is determined by aclwanal valvalion performed by an independent aciuary at each balance sheel
dare usiny the proyecied unn credit mahod on the addibonal amount expected 1o be padiavmled as a resuli of the unused entulement
that has accunulated at Ihe balance sheen daly Eapense on aun-aecumulating compensated absences 1 recopmsed s the perind i which
U absences o cur

v. Share-based compencation

The grant dale far value of equity sewied share-based paymenl awards granted 1o employees 15 recopmsed & an employee expense.
with a corresponding itraate m equity, over the periad thal the employees unconditonally become eniilled 1o the awards The amouni
recopmsed a5 expensc 15 based on the estimate of the aumber of awards for which the related serace and non-market vesung condihans
are expected o be mal, such that the amount ullimetely recognised as an expense 5 based on e number of awards that do meel the
retated service and non-markel veshng condilions at the vesing date

Provisions (other than for empleyee beneftis)

A provision s recopnised if, as a result of a past #vent, (he Group has a preseni legal or construclive obligation thal ean be eshmaled
rélubly, and it 15 probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required o setile the abligation Provisions are determuned by
discounning the expected fulure cash Nows (repreesenting the best estimate of 1he expendiure required 1o seitle the present obligation al
Ihe balance sheel date) at a pre-lax rate tha reflects curcent marke! assessments of the wme value o’ money and the nisks specilic 1o the
Labiliey The unwanding of the discount 15 recopnised as finance cost Expected fulure sperating losse are aot provided Mo

Revenue recognition

the Giroup is primarily engaged in the business of providing digital cinema service

The Group has apphed [nd AS [15 which esiablishes & tomprehensive framework lor delermaning whether, how much and when
revenue 10 be recopmesd

Revenue 15 recognised upon transler of control of promized producie or servives Lo customers n an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Group Lo regenve in Tor those products o services

P
i. Inconae From services and sale of goods
Advertisemnent income is recognised in the pencd during which adventissments are displayed

Content Delivery Charges and Vinwal prini fees (VPF) recsived from distributors of the Films s recogeised in the peried in which the
services are rendeced

Reverue from sale of goods 15 recognised wpon transfer of control 1o buyers and when na uncertanty exists regarding the amount of
consideration thal will be denved from sale of poods

Revenue lrom mamnienance s¢rvice fees 15 recognised on Lime propontion basis tor the period falling in the reporting peniod
Lease rental inconme on eguipment i3 recognised as mentioned m note 3 1 (1) below

R enue lrom comimussion ad techmeal senvice income 15 recopmised in perniod 1nowshich seroces are rendered

Royalty wmeome on heenses of 1P 15 recogmsed when the rustomer’s subsequent sales or wsape voours

Revenue s measured based on the iransacnon price, whieh 15 the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, If any Revenue also
excludes taves collected from customers

\he Group disagaregates revenoe from contracts waib cusiomers based on rature of services
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Significant accounting polickes [comtinned )
Revenwe recognition {comtinned

Coniract assets arc recogmised when these 1s excess of ievenue earmed over ballmg on conwacts Contrast assos are classified as untilied
receivable (only act of invoicng 15 pending) when there s uncondilional nght io receive cash, and only passage of e 15 required, as
per conlraclual 1emms

Unearned and deferred revenue {“contract Labiliy™ is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues
Invoices are payable within conlraclually agreed eredin penod and none of the contrasts include a Minancng element

Contratts are subpect Lo modificanon (o accourd Tor changes 1n contrag specificanon and requirements e Ciroup revizws modification
lo contrach in comunction with the ongmal conlract, basie which the wangscion price could be allocaied 1o & new performance
obligahan or iransacuon price of an existiry obligalion conid underge a change

In the eveni transachion price = revised For existhing obhgation, a latve ad) 13 @e ted for
. Conlracl cosi

Ihe Graup does nol ineur any Cost (0 obtaw or Fulfill the contracts with customen

Leases

Al inceplian of (he comiract, the Group deermines whether the conlract s a lease oF ConinG a lease arrangement A coniract 15, or
conlams, a lease 1f the contract conveys the nghl to contiol the wse of an idenbfied asset for 2 period of ume in exchange for
cansideration To assess whether a contract conveys the fight Lo comtral (he use of an dentfied assei, the Group assesses whether

1) the comract involves the use of an identificd asseat

(1) the Group has subsianially ull of the economue benefils from use of the asset through the pennd of the lease and

(i} the Uiroup has Ihe nght Lo direct the use af the assel

L Compiany a5 4 besser

The Group recogmizes nghi-of -use agsel representing 115 Nght 10 use the widerlying asset for (he lease term at the lease comimencement
date The cost of the night-of-use asset measured al incepion shall comprise of the amount of the mial measurement ol 1he lease
lrabuiny adjusied for any lease payments made al or before the commencement date bess any basse imesnlives receved, plus any milial
direct costs incurred and an estrmate of cosls 10 be ncurred by the tesser 10 dismantiing and removing the underlying asset of restormg
the undeslymy asset o side on which i 15 located Thy nghi-ofuse assets 15 subsequenily measwred & cost (655 any accumulated
depreciation, accurnulated impatment losses, | any and adjusted For any remegsurement of the lease liability The nghi-ofiss assels s
depreciated using the siraighi-line methad from the commencemenl dale over the shorter of lease lerm or uselul life of nghi-of-use
assel The estimated useful Lves of night-ol-use assets are determancd on the samc basis as those of propenty, plant amd equipment Right
ofuse assels ary wwied for impairment whenever there ¢ any indicanon that their catry Ing amounts may not be recoverable Impaiment
loss, WFany, 15 recogimsed in (e consolidated stalement of prefit and loss

The Group neasures the lsase ity al the present value of the lease paymenis thal are not paid af e commencement date of the
lease The lease payments are discounted usmg (he mierest rate implicit 1n he lease, i that rale can be readi Iy determuned |If that rate
cannol be readily delernuned, the Graup uses incremiental borrawang rate For leases with reasonably similar charaoteristics, the Group,
on a lease by lease basis, may adopt esther 1he incremental borrowing 1ate spewic 10 the legse o Uk incremental borewing rate for the
portfoho as a whole The lease payments shall melude fixed paymenis, variable lease pavments, residual value guarantees, exercise
price of a porchase option where he Group is reasonably cenain to exercise thal oplion and payments of penalues for lerminatng the
Jease, 1T ihe Jease verm reflecis (he lessee exeraising an opbon 1o terminate the lease The lsase hability is subscquently remeasured by
ncreasing the: camyng amount (o reflect nterest un the lease labaliny, 1educing the carying wnoeunt 1o reflect the lease payments made
and remeasurmg the carrying amount 1 seflect any reassessmient ot lease modihicabons or (o reflect revised in-subsiance fixed ease
paymenls

The Group recogmises Ihe amourd of the remeasurement of lease iabilily as an adjustment Lo the nght-of-use asset Where (he caryng
amounl of the Hght-of-use assel 15 reduced ta zevo and there 13 4 furiher red in the of the lease liabilily, the Group

Vidated

recognises any remauning amount of the re i of profil and loss

The Group has elected not w apply the requiremends of Ind AS 116 1o shor-term leases of all assets thal have & beage term of 12 months
o bess and leases for which the underiying asset 15 of low value The lease paymenis associaled wiih these leases are recogmzed s an
expense o6 a slraghi-line bass over the lease erm

it Companmy as a lesspr

At ihe meeplion of the lease he Group classifies each of ns leases as either an operating lease or a linance lease the Group recognises
Jease payments recen ed under operating leases 2s 1ncame on a Slraghi- line basts over Lhe fease term |n case of a finance lease, finance
meome 15 recopmised over the lease lerm based on a pattern reflccting a constant penodic rate of rerum on the lessor's nel imvestment iy
the lease When the Growp is au mermed ate lessor o accounts for s iowerests 0 the head lease and The sub-lease separalely | assesses
ihe lease classificalion of 3 sub-lease wath reference 1o the night-of-Use asser ansing lrom 1he head leass, not with reference to the
undetlying aesel IF a head lease 15 a shorl lerm lease 10 which the Group applies the exampuion descnbed above, then il classifies The
sub-leasc as an operatng lease

If an arrangemenl contamns lease and non-lease components, the Group applies Ind AS 115 Revenve 1o allocate the consideration m the
contracl
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Significant acconnting poticies (continmed)
Recognition of interest income or expense
Infetest moome of expente is réengrised nsimng the eFfechive interesl method

The "effective inlerest rate” 15 e rale that exacily discounis esiimaied future cash payments or receipts throuh the expected hife of ihe
Financal mstrurment 1

= the gross camying amount of the Ninancial assel, or

- lhe amomtized cos1 of (he finanzial habihty

In calculateng interest wcome and expense, the vlMeciny micrest rate 15 applied 1o the gross carry g amount of the ass#t (when the asset
15 not credi-umpaired) or 0 the amoruzed cost of the hability Howexer, for financial assels that have become eredit-impaied
subszquent to iminat recogition, interest ncome 15 caleulated by applying the effecive nterest rale 0 The amortized cosl of he
Nnancial asset ¥ the asset s no longer credi-impaired, then the calculalion of interest incomne 1evens 1 the Bross basts

Income 11

Pncome tax compnses current and defermed tax i 1s recogrased i profil oF nss except 10 the exiem (hat 0 relales 10 a business
combnauen or (o an item recogmised direct|y i equity or 1 olher comprehensive icome

i. Carreat tax

Currenl tax compnises the enpepted lax payable or recewable on the raxabile income or Joss for the year and any adjusiment (o the iax
payible or recervable in respect of previows years The amount of current tax reflecs the best estunate of the 1% amount expecied to be
pand ai receied after considening the uncertainty. 1l any, related 10 income taxes 111s measured using 1ax rates (and tax Jaws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporimy dai;

Corient tax sssets und current tiax habahties ae offsel only 1 there 1s a legally enforceable rght 1 sel off the recognised amounts, and it
15 inlended to realise (he asset and settle the hafity on a et basis or simulianeousty

i Deferved 13x

Deferred 1ax 15 recognised m respect ol temporany difterences baiween the camymg amounis of assets and haliliies for fnancial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amonrvs used Toc laxation purpeses Delerred tax 15 not recogmised For
- vemporary dillerences arising on Lhe miial vecogmiion of assets or liabilves n a Irangacion (hat 1s nol a business combination and
that atfects nether accounting nor iaxable prafic or loss at (e time of The Iramsaction;

temporary differences releted 1o wn esiments 1 subsadiancs, associates and youil arrangements 1o the extent thal the Group is able
comirol the i of the reversal of the lemiporary differences and 1t s probable that they wall nol reverse tn Ihe foreseeable future

Ereferred lax assets are 1ecopnised (o the exient (hat n |5 probable lhal fuure taxcahle prafits will be avalable aganst which they ean be

nsed Deferred tax assels - unvacop or _ are vd at cach reporing date and are recagrsed! reduced to the extent
that it 15 probabler ne lenger probable respecnvely tha tlnejelqlcd 1ax, benefil will be realised

Deferved vax 13 measured at the Lax rales that are expecied Lo apply o the perod when the assel 1s realised or the labulity 1s seitled,
based on Wlie laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporiing date

The measurement of deferred tax reflects Ine 1ax consequences thal would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
reporhing dale. ke récover or selile the carrpang amount of its assets and habaluies

Deferred 1an assets and lisbilities are oFfser if there 15 a lepally enforceable nghi 10 offset current tax Labiliies and assets, snd they
relate to incowme taxes levied by the same tax authonity o ihe same tasable enlity, or on defTeren 1ax =nuucs, but they imtend 1o setlle
currend tax {alobnies s assers on a net basis or their ta asses and Diabilines will be reahsed 1 Iy

Borvowieg cosl

Bonsoraany costs are interest and other custs {mcluding exchange differences relanng 10 foregn currency bomawings to fhe extent that
they are regarded as an adjusiment 1o nlerest cosis) (reurred m connecion will 1he borowing of funds Borrowng costs direcily
altributable 1o sequisiion or construction of an asser which necessarily lake a substantal penod of time o gel ready lor their iniended
use are capiahised s part of the cost of fhat assel Other bomowng tsts are recogmised as an expense Ln the perad 6 which they dre
Ingurred

Enrnings per share

Dasic earmnys per share 13 cornputed using the weighted averape number of equity shares outsianding during the penod adjusted for
treasury shares held Diluled eamings per share 1s computed using the werghted. ge rmber of equity and dilutive squivalent shares
cuistanding durmg the period, using the trémury stock method for oplions and wamants, except where Lhe results would be ant-dilutrve

This S o5 asertsicmatiy ieft Slank
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Ministry of Carpoeate 4 fairz (“MCA"} notifies new standard or d 16 the existing standards under Compomes (Indian
Accouming Stndards) Rules as issued from time o ime On March 23, 2622, MCA amended the Companics {Indien Accoumting
Stamdards} Amendmeni Rules, 2022, spplicable from April 181, 2022, a5 below: .

ind AS 103 — Referemir to Conceprual Framework

The amendments specify thal to qualify for recognition es part of spplying the scquisition method, the identifiable assets scquired end
liabilities agmurned must mest the defimtions of nasets and Jimbi lities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian
Aceounting Sisndards {Conceplual Framewnrk) issued by the Trstitute of Ch d A of India 2l ihe acquisilion date These
chenges do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103

Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before imtended use

The armictdinens spiecify. (han the enges 1l nel sale pricesds of ilams prodiced over the sost of testing. if any, should not be moognised
in tho stotoment oF profit or Jass bul dedusted frony Hye directly il bubabilv wosts congidersd s part of gost of sn item of PPE

Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts « Cosis of Fulfilling 3 Conirsct

The smondmenta apecify that that the “ceet of fulfilling’ a contract camprises the “costs That relate directly 1o the contraet® Costs that
relate directly t m conirict can sither be incremental <osta of fulfilling thet contract (examples wanld be dinoet Isbour, malerials) br an
allocation of other costs that relate directly 1a Tulfibling contrants

Tnd AS 189 - Anmual Improvenaenis bo Ind AS (2021}

The amendment cluarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the 10 percent™ 1est of Ind AS 10% n essessing whether to
derecognise a financial lisbility

The Group is assessing the impant of these changes and will accordingly incorporete the same in the financial siatements for the year
ending March 2023

= This Space (v insentronaily feff amk:-



Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(A amounty are i Indian Rupees lukhy, wnfers otherwise siand)

4, Property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of carrying amount

FParticulars Leaschold Plant and Computer (Hfice equipment Fursiture and Electrical Vehicles Taoual

improvements machinery Systems fixtures Equipment &

[nstallation

Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying 2 moumc)
Bakance at 1 Aprid 202t 15184 2401710 575 49 3779 531 06 162 6% 9227 23,958 04
Additions - 1,181.76 - - - - . LI%1.7%
Disposals - (13.22) (0.38) - - - (13.00)
Exchange difference on transl foreuil operations 2535 2525
Balance at 31 March 2022 15164 15,210.89 575.11 327.79 531.06 162.69 92.27 27,151.45
Balance at | Apnil 2022 35164 2521085 37511 32179 i3l 06 162 6% R v 21151 45
Additions 137 4.193 96 512 579 403 - 10 63 4,553 99
Dispasals - (18 10} - 3 - (54%) (23 5%)
Exchange difference on ranslanion of foreign operanons 89.97 - - 1 .65 - - 91.62
Balance ar 31 March 2023 254.01 29.476.72 806.32 333.58 536.74 162.62 20345 31,773.51
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 April 2021 23684 13.092.22 481 83 Pl ) 428 29 13319 s 14,727 32
Drepreciation for the year ER-E 3011633 36.37 1753 64 75 FARL 553 326971
Dnsposals - (9.7 0.36) . - - - {1015)
Exchange difference on teanslation of foreign operations - 15,23 - - - - - 1523
Balance at 31 March 2022 4249 16,214.01 518.34 294.33 493.04 156.25 83.68 18,002.14
Balance &f | Apnl 2022 42 45 16,214 01 il1834 19433 493 04 156 25 B3 68 1300214
Depreciation for the year - 3068 76 3691 1195 & 90 T4 1317 314152
Disposals - (1522) - - - - (5.18) (20400
Exchange difference on transl, operanns - 5837 - - | 09 - - 646
Balunce at 31 March 2023 242,49 19.325.92 555.25 307.28 301.12 158.99 91.67 21,182.72
Carrying amoust (net)
Az a1 31 March 2022 913 8.996.88 5677 1346 38.02 644 §.59 9.149.31
As at31 March 2023 11.52 10,150,80 151.07 26.30 35.62 .70 111.78 10,590.79

) Secuarily
A at 31 March 2023, properies with & vamying amount of INE 4930 36 lakhs {31 March 2022

2.512.33 lakhs) are subject to first change 1o secure bank loans (se¢ Note 20)



Qubé Cinema Teéhnologias Private Limited
MNotes (o consolilared financial séatements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

AN comensanis are i Inciany Repseos dakb, wifess odioreese stted}

& Capital worl-in-progress

Pariiculars Amviang
Costor deemed cost {grogs carrying amount)
Balance ae 1 Aprit 2021 EvE S ki
Additans 1.395 4v
Capitalised during the yeur 1181 74
Balance at 31 March 2022 1,040,581
Balance at 1 April 2022 1,040 81
Additions 4.681 40
Capitabised during the yeu 4952 65
Balonce ot 51 Moreh 2023 769,56
CWII aging schedule
As at 31 March 2023
cwip Lesspitian§ 1-2 years -3 years porcilans Todal
vear years
Projects in progress 769 56 - : T69.56
Proiecis lemperanly suspernded - - - - -
As at 31 Mareh 201
oW Less than | 4 vears S.ivears More than 3 Tatal
yeur yEars
Projects v progress 934 32 1424 nzn B 1051
Proiects lemporaily suspended - - - - -
Notes :
13 The Group has no projects which have exceeded their cosl or have been overdue as ol 31 Mach 2023 and 31 March 2022
2} The above largely includes projectors which are yel to be depleyedinstalled in furure at theawres
6 Right-of-use assels
Fartitul tuildings
Brlance at 1 April 2021 224528
Additions -
Delstions -
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 208
Ralance as at 31 March 2022 2,247 34
Balance at 1 April 2021 2,247.36
Addirions 51199
Celetions "
Exchonge difference on manslution of foreign operations 743
Balance as ar 31 March 2023 2.T66.78
Accumulared depreciation
Balance ai 1 Apeil 2021 AN019
Depreciation for the year 4127
DNeletions -
Fxchanye difference on translation nf forcian operations 069
Balance as at 31 March 2022 132464
Balance at 1 April 2022 1,324,64
Depreciation ter the year 420 &6
Delenons -
Exchanpe difference on laticn of feweign operations 062
Ralance as at 31 March 2013 1.746.12
Net block as at 31 March 2022 21072
Nit block as ai 31 Mairch 2023 1,020.66

The Groups leases mainly comprize of land and buildings The Group leases land and buildings for office and warehouse facilines



- = ——QubeCinerma Techmologies Private Limited — —— — —
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

A ctnronartts ave it Madtan Napees dakles, iefexs othenrse slared)

T Intangible assets
{See accounting policy in Nole 3.5)

Reconcilintion of carvying

Asar
31 March 2023

As an
31 March 2022

Particalars Software * Total
Cost or deemed cost (groas carrying amount)

Balance s atl 1 April 2021 1,226.18 2.116.18
Additions . -
Disposals 3 .
Exchinge diffs on lation of [Breign operitons 1.14 1.1
Balance as ut 31 March 2022 51.‘]1'?'32 2,227.32
Balance a3 a0 1 Apri) 2022 2,227.02 2.217.32
Addibons 18 68 48 65
Disposals < .
Exchange difference on teanslation of foretgn operations 148 448
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,280,489 2,280,435
Accomulpted amortlsation and impaimment losses

Balance as at 1 April 2021 130343 1.303.43
Amortisaton for the year 463 52 46351
Exchange difference un transTation of Foreipn operstigns 094 094
Balwnce as at 33 March 2012 1,767.89 1,767.89
Balance as at | April 2022 1,767.5% 1,767.89
Amortisation fou the year 462 30 462 30
Exchange diffevence on mansliticn of foréign gperations 11 326
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,235.45 2.133.45
Carrying amounl {net)

Az al 31 March 2022 45943 45643
As at 31 March 2023 47.03 47.03

* Software consists of capitalised developmeni cost being, an intemally ganerated iitangible assel

Thiv space 15 inteniionaily fefi blank



Qube Cinema Technologles Private Lintited
Notes to consolidated financinl 3tatements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al st are in fndian Knpees fakds, fess omherise satedf

As As at
4 Equity accounied investee 31 March 1023 31 Mwrch 2012

nterast m jaint veniure (Refer nole below) -

Justickets Private Limited (Justickets) is & jaint armangement in which. the Parent Cormnpany has joint contre] and a 43 4d% (31 March 2022 - 43 44%)
awnership interesi Jusiickets is engaged in providing plaiform far online mavie ticketing and it is not publicly listed

Summarised faamcinl information lor joknt venture As at Asm
31 March 2023 31 March 2012

Mon-cumeni assels 37T 32470

Current agsals (inclwding cash and cash equivalents — 11 March 2023 INR 283 40 lakhs TIR An A 4}

and 31 March 2022 INR 435 27 lakhs)

Marn-current ligbililes . i -

Current liabilities {1,861 2%) {1,968 32)
{ ?Mﬁl (739,21 l

Reconciliation (o carrying amounts

Operziing net assels (739 21) (068}
Capreal raised = -
Profit/ (loss) for the year (25 43) 1518
Other compechensive maomes = =
Chosing ned agseds (764.64) 214,50
Group's share in % 43 ade 43 440
Group's share in INR . :
Guoodwill - -
Carrying amount - -
Summarised statemont of Profid and Loss Year ended Year ended

1 March 1023 31 March 2022
Revenue 0287 28389
Employee benefil expenses (B9 32) (64 34}
Depreciation and amortisalion (1102} (1% 29}
Finanee cosls (1541} {24 12}
Other oxpeters ' (711.55) (2,51703}
Profit/(Lossy {25.43) 11518
Other comprehensive icome .
Total compreheasive inceme {2543} 21518
Group's share af logs (resinicted to .
Graup’s share of OCI

‘Groap's share of total comprebensive income




Qube Cinemny Techaologies Private Limtted
Notes to consolldated finumcial statemenis for the year eaded 31 March 2023
(AN amounts are in Indioe fupees Jakhs, wdesy atherriss saied)

9

Olker investments

Invvestment i Serabble Digital Services DMCC

Trade receivabls
Trade recervables conaidered pood - secured
Trade ivables ered good d

Tradle recrvabdes which hive gignifizant incraase in cradit ik
Trade ieveivables ciedil i

Aflrwanee for donbrful deby

Met trade receivabies

MNom-urren

Currend

OF the above, irade recervables from related panies are 25 below:

Total Unde receavables from related parties { Refer note 42)
Allowance for doubeful debt #

Asal Ag at
31 March 2023 31 Mavch 2022

1146 2
11,46 =
12,611 10 8,087 26
3,084 60 2,720 97
_. 1569579 1081473
{3.084 60} {2,726 05}
12,611.10 3,087.27
1,073 20 400 43
11537 ol 7080 86
12,011.10 8,087.27
¥70 57 71444
1743 48} (7130
PP 2R 4.13

# The Group, basss its evalustion ol recoverability of the dues from the relaied party {Jusiickets Pnvate Limitedy has provided for the entire recel vables as bad

and doubulul debie



Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited
Notes to consolidated finsnciel statenaents Tor the year ended 31 March 2023
LAN g are i Indian Rupees fakhs, enfess oerrise wared}

¢ Trade receivables (conlinwed}

Trade receivable ugeimg schedule
As at March 31, 2023

Quistanid ing for following periods lrom daie of tramsaction

Particulars

Lasthan & 6 months - | year 1-X years 2-3 years Move tham 3 Total
months years
Undispuied trade recemvables — B587 33 G50 24 5335 |46 86 2215 9,649 94
constdered good
Endisputed rade recervables — which 427 &1 63 40 1472 206 M 1,862 04 1,084 69
have sigmilicant increase o credin risk
Undivputes usde 1eeereahles ~ etedin - - - -
impaired
Dispuled nade weceivables - conenbered - - - . - -
good
Disputed 1rade recervables — which have - -
slgnificant Increase tn credil risk
Disputed trade recervables - credu - - - - -
m\pﬂl‘ red
Total 9,015,14 1,013.68 178.08 253,56 217420 11,734,463
Aded 1= Unbuiled revenue 2,961 17
Less - Alt for doubtful rade bl (1,084 6%
Trade receivables {Nat of all Cor doubaful teade eecrivable) 12,611.10
As st March 31, 2012
Outstanding for following perinds from dute of transiclion
Parvicolars Lessthan & 6 momths - | year 1.2 years 2.3 years More 1han 3 Toial
manths YRATS
Undizputed trade receivables — 4,450 54 5923 Zl4 16 o950 16 EIR R 6,293 04
considered poad
Undispuied trade receivables — which 41700 - - 728 26 1,521 63 2,726 %
hewe signaficent increase in credit nsk
Undispuied trade recenvables — crednl - - - - -
impaired
Disputed trade recervables - consrdered
good
Digparicd trade receivables — which have . : = . -
sigoifican increass o credit sk
Duispuied  trade  recervablas —  credil - - - - -
rmpaired
“Toial 4.917.63 359.13 214,16 1,678.42 1,840.56 H020.8
Add =- Unbulled reverue 1,794 23
Less - Allowance for deubtful irade recervables (2,720 96
Trade receivables (Med of allowance for donbiful frede raceivable) $,087.27
As al Asal
Loans 31 March 1023 31 March 2022
(Unsecured, considered good)
Lodans to crployoes 3249 2237
Loans lo related parties 22004 200 00
261,53 2.3
Loss allowanee * - -
Net Yoans 261,53 222,07
Marn-current 20 Gy 200 00
Curremt 61 53 2237
261.53 222.37

* The Group, basis s evaluanon of recoverabality of the dues from the related party (Qube Digoal Cinema Prvare Limuted ) has provded for the enlire

receivables as had and doubeful debee



Qub¢ Cinema Technologies Private Limited
Notes to consolldated financial scatements for the year emded 31 March 2023
(AN amowrs are in fadige Ripees falhs, unfess othervise wared)

12 Oler insncial nssets

n

15

17

Secunty deposils

Bank deposits under lien

Ducs lrom related party

Interest accrued om bank depasits

Inierest acerued om loan 1o related partiec®

Loss allewarce ¥

Mel other Ninancial assels

Monecurmeni
Current

OF the above, contractually reimbursable expenses from relaled paries are as below
Dwues From relared parye®
Loss allowange *

As it Azal

31 March 2023 31 March 1012
477 4] 481 4¢
- 238 70
71991 59726
550 3817
173 173
1.254.98 1,357,32

{721 64) (5986 99)
53334 7£8,33
23349 24082
175 85 5171
S31 7RR.33

== —_——
721 64 306 00

(FZ1 64}

(39§ 99

* During e year ended 31 March 2029, the Group, basis ils evaluation of recoverability of the dues from related party (Justickets Private Limited and Qube

Digital Cinema Private Lirmited) bas provided for a Ioss allnwamee agamst these dves

Imcome 1ax nssels

Advance tax recos evable {net of provision}

Other sssets

Advances to suppliers

Prepard expenses
Balance with govemment suthonbies

MNem-cuwrent
Current

Inventories

Snock in trade

The wrile-down of invenlories to net realisable is inciuded 1 cast of materials consumed amguang te INR 15901
lakths {March 31, 2022 120 71 lakhs)

Cash and cash eqnivabents

Cash on hand
Bank balances

Bank overdrafis vsed for cash managemen porpases
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash Nows

Bank belances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank deposis*
* Gif the abpve, Bank deposits wnder {ien

Tius spuace faas heer iteniionaily feff bionk

Asat As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
906 02 468 3¢
4b6.02 468.3%

——

1,065 07 131
804 25 754 51
1,724 34 119539
3.5093.00 2,681,52
467 B2 543 6%
312584 2,137 83
350360 168152
5,041 74 1,124 %5
G.001,74 3.124.95
Qa7 097

inl 93 436 09
362,94 43706

ety

(301 74 (518 15)

(138,84) (§1.09)
2,339 12 1,695 52
2339.12 1,695.52
23 1,695 52



Qube Cinema Techuologies Private Limited

Notes 1o comsolidated flnancial starements for the year ended 31 Mavch 2023
(AR cmirmerts eo o tre rndion fnpees fokfe, welers otercne xigiced]

As il Ak At
30 plarch 2023 3 Marchk 2022

18 Ewguiny share rapitat

Authorised
54500000 ¢ 31 Mareh 2022 &4 500.(00) equily shares of INR 10 ench 5450 00 5450 fu
3006000 (3] March 2022 Nil} 0 01%5 Optional conventible cumulative prefcrence shares of INK 10 each 300 00 <

Bssued, subzeribed and paid up
27,498,271 (1) March 2022 27 432,871 cquity sharcs of IMR 10 each fully paid up 2,149 8 2,743 89

Reconcitiation of shares outstanding 8t vt lbeginuing and at the eod of the year

Asat M Muich 2023 Ay ot 3 Marvh 2033
Number of shares Anmvpmni Number of shares Amsount
Equity shares
A the commencemens of the year 27138871 2711 8% (RN ANRE 1,046 11
Fhuares iwsiredl van vonpveersopn AF bosis £ plefence e - - LTI S Ry 14
Shares issued on exercise of employes siack aptions 540,40 504 1,230,000 12 00
Shares pguped (ew rash - AP 84,317 1938 43
Althe end of the year 274,948,271 1.149.8) 2.74,38.871 2,743,489
Ag al 31 March 2023 As a1 M Mareh 2022
Momber of chares Amiaumit Numsher of shares Amounl

Instrumeni entirely cquidy in nature

Al Ihe commencemen) of the year - - - -
Converted to equity shares during the period = = =

Atthe end of the vear . - -

a) Rights, preferences and vesivictions aliached do equily shares

The Parenl Company tias @ Sngle ¢lass of equity shares Accordingly, ail equity shares rank «qualiy with regard 1o dividends and share in the Parent's residual assets on
winding up The equily shares are eniitled 10 receive dividend as declared from lire Lo time, subjeet (o preferential right of preflerence shareholders 1o payment of
dividend The voling rights of an equity shareholder are in proportion to hus/its share of the paid -up equity share capital of the Parent Company

On winding up of the Parent Company. the holders of equity sharcs will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Parenl Company, semaining alicr distribution of
all prefeismial amounts, in proporion 1o the number of equity shares hetd

Uy} Rights, preferences znd resiricdlens atiached 10 preference shares

The Parent Company has only one class of opiional convertible cumulative preference shares having a par salue o INR 10 The optional eonveriible preference sharcs
were convertible based on the wms and conditions contained in the shaceholders agreement dated Apii) 09, 2022 a1 any time afier the initial mvesumen ¢losing datc (as
defined m the agreement) but before 31 March 2042 Each preference shars will be converted into 3 fixed 1o of equity shares

Prefzrence shares carry a preferential right as 1o divrdend over equity shoreholders Where dividend is not declared in respect of a financial year in the case of cumulative
preference shares, the entidement For thal year lapses The preference shares holder shall have one vole for each Equity Share inte which the Preferred Sharcs held by
him of record could be couverted {25 provided in Ihese arucles), on every 1ewluliun, withoul reard 1o whether the vote thereon is conducted by a show of lands, by
wriken ballol or by any other means, and would be entitled 1o notice of and the night 10 vote together with the squity shares on all matlers submitted 16 2 vole of the
PParent Company's shareholder tn the event of winding up, preference shareholders have a preferential fight over equily shareholders to be repaid Lo the exient of capuial
paid-up and dividend in arrears on such shares

<) Employec siock opdions
Terms ailached 10 stock options granted 10 employess are deseribed in Note 42 regording share-based payments

Farticulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of m class of shares

Az ui 31 March 2423 As at 31 March 2022
Number of shares % of equity shares Number of % of eqquity
shares  shares
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully prid, held by
35 Theawre LLP 124,05 235 a5 1% 1,24.05 33% 45 218
Real Irmage LT P 24,62 225 B 9ity 24,62,225 M
Y Senthil Kumar 19 78,820 T20% 19,78 320 T21%
P Jayendra 1783 470 649% 1783 470 & 50
Harsh Krishna Roluatpi 14.25 710 318, 14.25, 730 5 20%,
Ramachandran 11,91,503 S0t 13,9150 07

2,14.46,973 77.99% 2.014,46,973 TR 16%




Qube Cinems Teechnologles Prvate Limited

MNotes to consolidated financial statements for the yewr ended 31 March 2023
CAN chmuntsite ar e ks Frufiemy Nupee s dobhs, sedess other ixe stapza

1]

Expuity share capital (contiased }
Detadls of sares held by promaders

A5 nl 31 March 261}

. Balanceasat  Change during the  Balance sheet s % thange durin
Fartieulars 1 April 20%) m_ﬂ'ur " at 31 March 2023 % afitatal shares l.h:g):'nr ¢
Vo Senthil Karmar 149, 78.830 - 19. 78,830 T 20% %

P layendra 1781470 - 17.83.470 & 458 o
Arun Veereppan 2,95 000 1,98,000 1 08% 0%
eenn Veerappan 5,006,500 - 3 .06, B0 1 Ba% 0%
Vee Vijalakshmi 234,000 - 234,000 0 85% ar,
V' Siva Kumar 7,57 4R8 . 157488 115% %
Resl Image LLP 24,62,225 = 2462225 §95% 0%
Sudha Panchapakesan 45,220 - 45,220 0 16% a%
P Beram 3.57. 750 157,750 1 308 i

As al 3 March 2022

*a £hi
Particulars Dalawee a3 90 1 Chonge durlmg 1he Bainnce sheel g £hunge during

April 2021 vear w31 March 20220 0l shares the year
V Senthil Kumar 553,100 14,25.720 19,760,820 TU% 258%
P Jayendra 1,57,750 14,256,720 17,83, 470 & 50% 399
Arun Veerappan 298,000 - 2,908,000 108% 0%
Teena Veerappan 3.06,300 - 506,800 1 B4t 0%
Vee Vijalakshmi 2,3 000 - 2,734,000 0 85% e
¥ Siva Kumar 1,87.200 5,70, 288 7.57.488 2 75% 5%
Real Image LLP 24.61.275 - 462255 § 088 [
Sudha Panchapakesan 45,220 . 45,220 0 1o% M
P C Sreeram 3,57.750 - 331,750 130% %

Aggregate number of shares issued for comsideration olher tham cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reportiag date:

Az an As ot Azt As al As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 3l March 2021 31 March 2020 3 March 2019
1239369 a4 1,23,93,6%% * 0542356 = .

#4 During the year ended 31 March 2022, pursuant 1o the board meetings held on 26 May 202) , the board of direciors have approved the conversion of loan 1o cquily
shares as mentioned in the agreemenis

# Dwring the year anded 31 March 2021, p io the boatd ings held on 11 March 2021 and 31 March 2021, the board of directors have approved the conversion
of preference shares w equity shares a1 a ratio mentioned in the respestive shareholder agreements

Other equity

Capital redessption reserve
Copital Redempiion raserve was created on account of buy back of entire shares held by Kolak Mahindra Venture Capital Fund in March 2005 {596,000 shares} and Tune
2005 {715,904 shares)

Begurities premium
Securiniat premium is uted to recard the prémium received on issue of shares 1 is wtilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Share oplivas outsiamding aocount
The Parent Company has esublishied various equily-sttiled share-based payment plans for certain calegories of employess of the Company Refer to Mote 40 far further
details on these plans

* Thex speice s been idemiraily ket bavdk



Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Maotes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 3§ March 2023
CAN amonnts are i fndicn Rupees Jakiie, infess piberwise sared)

Asal Asat
20 Borrowings 31 March 2023 Y1 March 2022
Non-curremt borrowings
Term ioans *
Secured loans from bank (refer note (i} & {it) below) Le0507 383135
Supplier credit, vnsecured 1,605.67 1402 94
Liability component of compound fimanclal Instrumend
Crpiionally ¢ ible « lstive preference 157 53
Total mon-currend borrawings 5,368.27 5,234,209
Current bor rowings
Dank oveidialh 3,201.79 249815
Oveniraff against fxed defnsis 1,474.00 1.474.00
Cunenl portion of 1emm amd ather Joans*® 392174 1.574.01
B.603.53 5,840,16
_ = ———
* et off loan engination costs pendimg amonisation 175 1672
A, Terma and repayment schedule
Terms and conditions of ewstanding borvowings arc as follows.
Carrying Amonni as at
Particulars Curreney Nominal interest rate n].:::,::. 3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured Loan from HDFC Bamk Limited INR 1 year MCLR + 1 65% 24-ppr-23 5149 39216
Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limited IME. | year WMICLR + 1 20% Od-Jan-14 419 84 87840
Secured Loan fram HDFC Bank Limited IKR | year MCLE + 1. 80% 07-Feb-25 80466 124177
Scouwred Loan from HDFC Bank Limited INR | year MCLR + 155% 07-lan-26 1621 42 -
Unsecured Loan from Belfius Bank USD 6 Momth LIBOR + 1 6% 30-Jun-26 1.613,42 1.780.29
Vehicle boan INR  775% 05-Nov-27 8095 -
Working capital (erm loan under ECLGS INR.  EBLR + 1% 28-May-27 2,55245 2,512.40
Overdrefl against fixed deposits INR  975% On demand 1,474 00 1,474.00
Cash credit INE. | yean MCLE i demand 30079 2,498 15
Oplienally convertible cumulative prefeience shates INR L0 25% 157.53 .
11,979.55 16,797.17
B. Secured bank loans

The secured 1erm loans from banks are secured by exclusive charge on fixed assets including plant snd equipment created out of berm kuans with 2 camying,
amount of INR 4980 36 lakhs (31 Macch 2022 - 2,512 33 lakhs)

€. Reconciliotion of movemeni of lisbililies to caph Mows arising from lnancing activities

Particulars
Notecurrent bormowings 5368 77 573429
Current bormowings 19T 1,57 01
Overdeafi agains! fixed deposits 147400 1,474, 00
Bank cverdiafis 320179 2,498 15
1397180 10,780.43
Particulars Luans frum Bank Term lvans/ Tuotal
director overdraft  suppliercredit

Balance as sd 1 April 2021 Q0000 334L77 4,657.33 8,900, 10
Proceeds from loans and bomowings £ ) - 374238 4,342 38
Repaymem of borrowings (300.0:0) - {1,636.79) (2,136.79)
Change in bank overdrafi - 62938 . 629 38
Non-~cash changes

= Converted to equity shares (1,000 00} - - (1,000 .00

- Impact of effective inierest amartisation - - §.68 868

= Unrealised exchange boss on L of humrowings - - 36 70 6,10
Balance as a¢ 31 March 2012 - 391215 680830 10,780.45
Proceeds from loans and bomowings - 382764 1,827 64
Repaymem of bomowings . {1,607 55} {1,607.55)
Optionally convertible preference shares 15753 15753
Change in bank overdrafi 703,64 - 703 64
MNon¢ash changes

- Converted to equity shares. - = .

- Impact of effective inlerest isation - - 897 597

- Linreahsed exchange Joss on restatement of bomowings - 19112 01 12

Balance as at 31 March 2023 = 4,675.79 9.2%6.01 13,971.80
—_
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10

H

i1

I3

Borrowings (continued)

(i} The Reserve Bank of Indiz {RBL) has permitted banks and financial inslilueons 1o offer 2 moratonum of six monihs on payment of
ingtalments of all tenn loans falling doe between | Apeil 2020 and 31 August 2020, This ineludes all Term Loans and Cash Credit/Overdraft
facilities. The Group had considered Lo avail the loan moralovium snd all instalients due from 1 April 202010 A1 August 2020 siand deferred.

The RBI has tunher clanfied that defenment of loan paviments shall not be considered as default by lenders

{it) Loan covenants

Under the terms of the magor borrowmy facilities, the Parent Company is required to comply with the foltow ing financial cosenanis

- the adjusted tangible ner worth must be more than 19,000 lakhs

~ the ratie of 1012l cutstanding ltabilities o sdjusted 12ngible net worth must be less than 1 3
- the debt serviee coverage raiio imust be moce than 7

= Intercst coverage ratio has to be more 1han 3

- Mimwmwm (umo er has (o be more tham INR 20 004 lakhs

As at 31 March 2023, the Company has failed 1o comply with adjusted tangible net woth and the rabe of tonal cutstanding liabilities o adjusted
tangible ner worth must be less than 1.5 as per above crtieria. However, 1the Company has obiained waiver of the breach of abeve covenants

fram banks
As at As at
Lease liabilities 31 Mawch 20623 31 March 2033
Particulars Building Buildings
Temmsitnen papact of Tod A5 VU6 (refer note 6.(1) ) 112061 1,50 1.82
Additions 504967 -
Delenions - =
Lease modification - -
Finance cost accmued duning the perjod 1043 29 130 84
Rent concession . -
Discharpe of Tease lialilities {54541} {523 70)
Exchange dilférence on iranslation of foreign operalions 159 165
Cloging bulance 1,195.75 1,120.41
Non-gurrent 51836 506,22
Current 677 39 614,39
Reconciliation of Hakilities from financing activivies
Lease habilihes as at the baginmng of the year b 12061 151192
2} Cash Now mowvemenis -
- repaymienl of lease ligbililies (442.12) (392 36}
- mtérest paid on lease liabilities {103, 29) {130 84}
by Mon cash movemenis
Addirion / adjusiments to lease liabilities duning the year 62055 13249
Eense linhilities us ot the end of the vear 1,198 1,120:61
Orther financial liabilities
Deposits received 308993 263747
[nleresi accrued but not dwe on bomowings 20724 13690
3.297.22 L.774.37
Mon-current 243896 2279 14
Current 858 24 494 23
3,197.11 3,774.57
The Group's expnosure to ligudity and curréncy nsks related to the above financial hiabilities are disclosed in Nale 37
Other liablllries
Defemed revenue
- Contract liabilines (Billing in advance of work complered) TER 31 1007 46
- Deferred revenue (Fair valuatien of security deposits received) 108193 830 99
- Advance payments from customers 526944 165290
Employess beasfits payabls 114623 180327
Statutony dues payables 574 48 452 50
5,560.39 14712
——
Nan-zurreni 9641 159 87
Current 787398 1,587 25
8.560.39 1712

This spoce has e infesmonall) 12t blank
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24 Provisions
MNom-current Current
As at As al As ot Al at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 3] March 2022

Provigion for employee bermelits (see nate 35)

Liability for granuiry 151 9633 1199 5826
Liability for compensated absences 21198 16215 3910 3175
Tuotal provision for employee benelirs 36372 258,48 113.0% M0
15 Trade payables As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade payables to related parties
todal autstanding dues of micrs enterprisen and small antarprises 96 86 .
total cutetanding dues of credilors other tian micro enlerprises and small emerprises 766117 ST

7,758.03 3337.71

Of the above, trade payablec from relaied parhies are s below:
The Group's exposure 10 fquudity and currency nizks related to the above rade payables are disclosed in Note 36

Trade Payables aging schedule (Ouistanding from imviice date)
As al 31 March 2023

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-i -3 years More than 3 Total
Years Vs
MSME 96 86 - - - 56,856
Orhers 35597 94 20 3757 5685 3,763.31
Dhspurted MSME - - - - -
Dispuied Others - - - - -
Tatal 165657 4.20 5157 5685 186518
Add :- Unbilled dues A B9 Ry
Trade pavables T.758.03
As at 31 Macch 2012
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 2-3 years More than 3 Total
Years yeurs
WMSME - - . = i
Onhers 284516 304 1% 40 51 T8 82 3,463.65
Disputed MSME - - - - -
Digpurled Others - - . - .
Tatal 284518 304.15 240.51 18.82 3.468.65
Add :- Unbilled dues 1,863.06
Trade pavables 5337.71

This space fas been tmientionaify foft biank
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P

17

28

9

n

2

Revenue from operdtions
Sale of services

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended

31 Macch 2022

Advertissment income 887442 2.330.51
Virual pring fees 18,372 0% 10,589 24
Service income 3441 84 249518
Lease rental incoine 2,254 76 664 41
Crther revenus 994 .90 .0
33,938.91 16,456,95
Sale of products
Saie of digital cinema equipmens 12,483 28 495457
Other operating incvome
Rovyalby =
Taml revenue Irom operations 46,422.1% 21.41(.52
Other income
Imerest income on
Cash and cash equivalents 3993 139,54
Security deposil paid 1350 {270
Other financial assets 29 04 =
Insucance claim received 2149 asat
Profit on Jease modification - L1.58
Met gain on sale of property, pland and squipment 12 56 612
Interest on income tax refimd - 60 65
Wotional rental income on gecurity deposil recerved 54 60 251.47
Miscellaneous incame E 423
231.12 55237
Purchsges of stock in trade
Cosl of dock in trade congumed 9078 8% 3,824 02
Less: Inventory of materials al the beginning of the year 3,124 55 2,558.07
Add: Inventory of matenals a1 the end of the yesr 6041 M4 1,14 95
Purchases during the year 1189564 4,390,90
Changes in invenrories of stock in irade
Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Opening Closing Increase in Opening Chosing Decrense in
Inventory Invenlgry inveniory ] Y Imvenmiory invemtory
Siock in trade 3.124.93 8,041 M4 (2916 79 2,558 07 312495 (566 88)
3,024.95 604174 (2.916.79) 2.558.07 3.114.95 (566.88)
Year ended Year ended

r i i rF3
L F

Sularics, wapes and bonys

Contribution 1o proyident and other funds

Expenses relaled to post-cinployment defined bensfit plans
Expenses related to compensated absences

Stall welfare expenses

Finamce costs

Iiterest expense on financial liabilities measured al amorhised cost
tnierest expenses on lease liabilicy

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property. plant and equipinent
Amortisation of intangible assels
Depreciabion expenses (ROLU assets)

31 March 2023

31 March 1022

744813 5 180 68
308 83 221 51
3820 3323
Te 22 2348
49401 1516 60
8A15.44 5,610
114157 LOG2 05
103.31 130 84
1.146.88 1,132.89
314250 31294
462 30 463,52
420 86 41276
4,025,606 4,146.02




Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financizl statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AN amounis are in fndian Rupees lakls, unless otherwise siated)

Year ended Yenr ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

33 Other expenses

Advertisement revenue share : 4,354.31 808 84
Virtual print fee revenue share 4,93543 213
Freight and handling charges 307573 187749
LChigitising, censor, Theatre advedisement and YS5A K charges 662 91 b AR
License fec 4173 135,50
Consumption of packing material and spares 130 7% 361 63
Power and fuel 195 4% 149 97
Reni 7404 5096
Repairs and maintenance

= Plant & machinery- i - — T e —— - 217

« gy RS2 R& £26 57
Service charges 668,13 673,59
Tissust ks iRl | toemgn
Rates and taxes 198 65 147.32
Communication 410 82 21244
Traveling and conveyance 67396 15311
Prnting and stalionery 2940 13.12
Software expenses 8524 8396
Bales discgunl and commission 16124 623
Advertizement and businzss promotion 200.43 3
Legal and professional fees {Refer Note (i) below) 1,671.39 722 63
Congultancy Charges 36798 37270
Bad debis wrinten off 44 50 4113
Allowance for doubtful dely 648 78 672.88
Bank charges 10216 47 70
Net lags on foreign cwmency transactions 37842 89.66
Miscellansous expenses 431.07 165 8%

2126617 1235962

{i} Payment to avditors (excluding tax}
As auditor

Stetutory andit 30,00 3000

Oher services 17.00 200

Reimbursement of expenses 4.20 173

51.20 .73

(id) Deigils of corporate socisl responsibility expenditure
{a) Amount required to be spent by the Group during the year - -
(b} Amouni spent during the vear [ in cash}

{1} Construction / acquisition of any assets

(i) On purposes other than {i) above - -

- This space has been wiensionaily lefr biank.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
LAN wnpanes ane oz e Rupees (@b, wedess onenee Maied)

Year ended Year ended
A March 2023 3 March 2022

3 income tax

As Amount recognised in statemoni of profir ond loss
Currend tax {a)

- Currem period 067 {60
- Tax refated Lo carlier years = =
Deferred tax (b)
Anribotable 1o -
Onpination and reversal of temporaty di flerences 191 10 {1,297 94)
Tax expense for curcont perind (a)}Hb) 39237 {1,202.36)
B. Income iax gnised im other compreh
Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Before tax Tax {exponza} Met of 1ax Giafare tax Tax {sxpense) Mot of tax
Lene{it bemefit
Remecasurement of defined benefit liabliry {30.87) 2035 {60 52) 69 44 17 48) 5196
{assets)
(R,A7 Zl]._]S {6052} 69,44 (17.48) 51.94

(. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022

Profit before tax 171827 (5,304 76}
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate {Refer Note {i}) 25 168% 33295 25 108% (13,3351
Effect of non-deductible expenses -3 33 (40 OR) -0 799 4214

Effective tax rafe 22,835% 3937 14.374% {1.292.96)

D. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax asseis and linbilifics are utributalle 1o the following:
Mot deferred tax assets/{liabilides)

Delerred tax assels Deferred tax {Jiabilities)

Year ended Year ended Yenr ended Year ended Year ended Yenr ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2012 31 March 2023 31 March 2021 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Property, plant and equipmeni 1,860 89 1,751 62 - 1 R0 B9 1,751 92
Pran rsions:
Employee benefit provisions | 4¢3 82 11328 - 140 82 11328
Trade receivables 24268 82429 - - 42 68 82429
RO asset and lease liability 3979 4789 = g9 4789
Brought forward losses 2EE265 358367 - 2R8263 158367
Other iteims 1401 %6 1908 101 36 1908
Deferved tax assets / (linhilities) E069.78 £,340.12 - 5.0468,78 4,340.13
Offselting ol deferred 1ax assels and - . - -
delerted 12x liabilines
Met deferred tax assets / {liabilities) 596878 (340,12 - 5.968.78 6,340.12
Movemenr in temporary differences
Balance as at Recognised in~ Recognised in~ Bslance nsat Recogmised in - Recogmised in -~ Balance as at
1 Aprid 2421 profit or loss L | 2N March 2022 profid or loss OClduring 31 March 2023
Propeny, plant and 1,584 88 167 04 - 175192 108 97 - 1.860 8%
equipment
Provisions:
Employee benefil 11222 18 54 {17 48) 11328 78 2035 140 82
Trade receivables 805 45 18 84 §242% 118.3% - 947 68
RO asset and tease 9).90 559 47 8% {B 10} - 1079
liabiliy
Brooght forward 251272 107095 158347 {701 .02) 2,882 65
logses
Oither iters 747 Ll 6l - 1908 8188 - 196
5,064.64 1,292.96 (17.48) 6,340,12 (391.70) 20.3% 5.968.78
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35  Assets and lighilitiez relatiog to enydoyee henefits

Asnt As at

31 March 1023 31 March 2022
Mel defined benefit habihily - Gratwiry plan ismn 154 59
Liability for compensated absences 25103 19390

Total employee benefit liabilives 476,81 348.49
Nan-current 6372 258 48
Current 113 09 M0l
476.81 348.49

For deiails about the related employee benefil expenscs, sce Mote 30
The Company operates the following posi-emplayment defined benefit plang

v
The Cumpany has 8 defined benefit gratuiry plan in india, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 The plan enitles an employee, who has
rendered at leagt five years of continuous service, 1o wratuiry at the rate of fifieen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess
of six mmontlis, based on Lhe raie of wages 1as1 drawn by the employes ¢oncerned

These defined benefil plans expose the Company 1o actuarial risks, such as langevity nisk, inleres! rale risk and market {investimenl) risk

A. Funding

Flan is fully funded by the Company. The funding sequirements are based on the gralmiy fund’s acwarial measurement framework ser out in the funding
policies of the plan. The funding of plan 15 based an a separate actuarial valuation for funding purposes for which the assumptions may differ from the
wssumplions sct out in {E} Emplovess de nol contibule to the plan

B. Reconciliation ¢l the net defined benefit (assef) liabiliry
The following table shows a reconcilislion from the opening balances 10 the closing balances for the nel defined benefit {asset) liabilin: and ns
coOmpanents

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 M March 2022

Reconciliation of present value of deflined benefit obligation

Balance at the beginning ofthe year 55750 566 59
Benefits pail (5526} 11753
Conenl service cost 5446 M
lnlerest cost 1905 3784

Pasl service eost . -
Actuarial {gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income
Changes in demographic assumptions . -
Changes in financial assumptions 11.58 27.M)

Expenence adjusiments |46 65 (4267}
Balance at ihe end of the year 15398 Foait ]
Reconciliation of the present value of plan assets
Balance a1 4he beginning, of the year 402 91 4231 49
Contributions paid into the plan 7289 -
Benefits paid (55 24) 47.51)
Interest income A 27 86
Retom on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income 1736 (093)
Balance ar the end of the year 528,25 4029
Net defined benefit liahility/(nsser) 13573 154.59

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022

C. i. Expense recognisel in profic or Joss

Current service cost 54 .46 7097
Inerest cost 3905 37T 84
Inierest income (30.35) (27 86)
Past service cosi . -
43,16 80,95
i. Remeasuremens recognised in other comprehensive incame
Actuariat {gan} loss on defined benefil ablipation 15% 23 {Min
Feetum on phan asseis excluding mterest mcame [77.30) 095
8037 {69.44)

D, Plan assers
Plan assets were prmanly invesied sn LIC fund
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Notes do tida ted i ial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amovnty are i fnddian Rapees lukhs, unless otherwise siated)

35 Asseis and liabilities relating to employet benefits (continwed)
E. Defined benefit obligntions

i Actuarial assumptions

Principel sctuarin) assumptions at the reporiimg dste (expressed as weighied averages):

Year ended Yeor cnded
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 724% 7.37%
Future salary growih 5 00% 500%
Aumition rate 5.00% 5.00%
ils Sensitivity analysia
Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Increasc Decrease Increase Decrease
Tlseount rade {0 5% movement) i 814 R 39247
Future safary growth {0 5% movement) 794 %6 1592 589 75 526 85
Attrition rste {5% movement) 5524 75274 558 42 55661
Mortahity (5% movement} 754.40 735358 557 30 557.23

Although the analysis does not take secount of the full dismribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the

sensitivity of the assumptions shown

Thos space hax been intentionaliy feft biank:
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36 Financial instrumen s - Fair valaes and risk management

A Accounting clagsification and fair values

The following lable ghows the camying amounis and far values of fmancial assets and Gnancial liabilivies, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy

As at 31 Mareh 2023

Carrying amount

Naote Other finwncial assets - Other financial Total carrying
amortised cost liabilres Amopunt
Finuncial assers oot measured af fair value (refer note | below)
Investments . 9 11.46 - Lhdo
Laoang 1 LARE! - 201 5%
Trande recervables L] 12,611 10 - 1260110
Cash and cash equivalents 16 36290 - 36290
Benk balances other than cash and cash equivalemis 17 233922 - 2,33922
Other fmancial assets 12 53334 - 53334
16.11%.55 - 16,119.5%
Financial linbilities mot measured at fair value {refer note | below)
Rarrowings 20 13,971 80 13,971 .80
Trade payables 25 766117 766117
Other financial liabiliies 22 - 3,297.22 3,297.22
24,930.1% 24,930,019
As at 31 March 2022
Carcving amount
Note Other financial agseds - Other Anancial Total carrying
amortised cost liabilities Amount
Fil ial assets not d at fmir value {refer note 1 below)
Investmenis 9 - - .
Loans " 2233 2 22237
Trade receivables 10 808727 - £.08727
Cazh and cash equivalents 14 43706 - 43706
Bank halances other than cash and cash equivalents 17 169552 - 1,695 52
Other Ainancial asscis 12 75833 75833
11,200.55 - 1120055
Financial liabilities not measured a¢ fair value (refer nate 1 helow)
Borrowings 20 - 10,780.45 10, 78045
Trade payables 25 = ki | 531771
Oiher finangial liabilities 22 277437 2,71437
13.891.53 13,891.53

Note ¥ The Group has not disclosed fair values of financial instrunents such as investments, loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances, oiher financial assets, borrowings. trade payables and other financial liabilities, since their camying amounis are reasonable approximation of gair

valuoes
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Nofes to eonsolidated fi 1Al shat ts for the year ¢nded 31 Mareh 2023
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36 Financial instruments - Fair value and risk management (continued)

B. Financial risk managerment

The Growp hag sxposvre 1o The Tollowiny risks ansmg from lnancial instrunenis:
alcredit nsk

b liquadiny nzk and

¢) marke: risk

i. Risk management framewark

‘The Parent Company’s board of directors have overall responsibility for the sstablishmeni and oversight of the Group's cisk management framework The
board of direcrors along with the kap management are responsible for developing and monitoning the Growp's risk management policies

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, o s¢l sppropeiate risk limits and controls and to
it 1ishs and adlwicoce 1w linis. Rish wiaoagenreit polivics aud syatains a icvivwed egulady worellest changes in market conditions and the
Groups activities the Group, through its wammg and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and conatructive control
environment in which 2l employees understand their robes and obligations

The Parent Company's biard of direstors aversees how management monitors compliance wirh the CGroup's nisk imanagemeni policies and procedures, and
reviews Lhe adequacy of the risk managemen framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group

ii. Credit risk

Credin nizk 12 the nsk of Gnancial loss to the Group if 2 customer or counterparty to 2 financial msmunment fails 10 meet ils centractual obligations, and
anses principally from the Group's trade receivables, cortmn loans and advances and other financial assets

The camying amount of financial assets represenis the maximum credil exposure

The maxinumm exposure la credit nisk For made and other receivables are as fallows:
Carrving amouni

Asat As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade receiv ables 1261110 8,087 27
Loans 261.53 12337
Cash and cash equivalents 362.90 437 06
Bank balsnces arher than cash and cash equivalents 23312 164552
Other financial assets 53334 75831
16,108.09 11,200.55

Trade reccivables
Trade receivables are amouni billed (o customers for the sale of goods and services, and represeni the maximum exposure to credil risk of those financial
assels , exclusive of the allowance for doubtful debts Momal credit termis are in line with Indusiry practice

The (Groun does not require collaleral or other securiny from customers; how ever credit evaluations are performed prioc Lo the mitial pranting of eredil when
wartanied and penodically thereafter Dased on pulicy, the Group cecords a reserve for estimated uncollectible amoonts, which managemen beheves
reduce credir risk. hanagement assesses 1he adequacy of reserve quarterly, taking into account historical experience, cumrent collection irend, the age of the
receivables and, when warranted and available, the financial condition of specific counterparties The Group foll ows "simplified approach” for recognition
of impaimment loss ellowance on irade receivables

The Group's expasure 1o credit risk for trade receivables by relationship is as follows:

Agar Asgar
31 Warch 1023 31 March 2022
Third parry cusiomers 1238401 808314
Relaled parties 22709 413
The Group's exposure to credil risk for trade receivables by geogrophic region is as follows:
As at Asal
31 Mareh 2023 39 March 2022
India 11,388 30 71,8332

Rest of the world 727 80 234 02



Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Notes te consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023
FAN ity are a0 dnchon Rupee s falhs, undess enferwiie vigtedt

36 Financial insivuments - Fair value and risk management (continwed)
il Credil risk (continued)

‘The Group uses Expected Credit Loss model to assess the impainnem loss or gain the Group has used simplified approach for its lrude evein ables and
nlver receivables to cmpante loss allwance

The following (ables provides infonmation abour the exposure te credii dsk and expected credit loss for irade reccivables:

As at 31 March 2023

Gross carrving Weighbed- Loss allowance
amount average loss rate
Hod duc 532372 O 00, -
1 -130 days pasi doe 3641 42 1 1.59% 477 81
180305 duvs past due 1.013.45 15 85N, LA 40
hore than 365 days pas! due 2,705 44 £4.76% 229347
Total 12,734.63 308469
—_—

Az at M March 2022

Gross carrying Weighted- Loss allowance

amount averape Loss rate
1-180 days past due 4,92763 9 68% 477107
180365 days pasl due 35923 0% -
hore than 365 days past due 3,733 44 60279 224980
Tatal 9.020.04 1,716.96

The movement in the allowance tor impairment in respect of rade receivables is as follows:

31 March 2023 3 March 2022

Opening Balance 172656 273162
Pronision for the year 52602 344 95
Adount written ofl duniig the period (168 40) (549061)
Closing Balance 3,084.69 1,716.96
Cash and bank bal (includ ts classified under bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents)

‘The Group holds cash and bank balances of [NR 2702 12 lakhs a1 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: INR 2,132 58 lakhs) The credil wortlhiness of such
banks and fi ial institutions are evalualed by the on an engoing basis and is considered to be good with low credil nsk

Oher finaneial assels

o Seciriie oo

This balance is primarily constituted by deposit given in relation 10 leaschold premises occupicd by the Group for camying out ats operations. the Group
does nol expeci any lasses from non-pertormance by these counter-parties

b Loty tir ereplovees
This balance is constituted by loans given 1o the cmployees the Group does not expeel any losses from non-performance by these counter-partics as the
amaunts are recoterable by salary deductions

¢ Confraciinlly rennbursable cxponsay
This balance is primnan by consntuted by e cxpenses incurred on behalf of Justickets Prvate Limited, the Group does nol expeer any losses from
non-pet formance by these counter-parties as the mnounts are recoverable

o, Cunpract psseds .
This balance 15 primanly constituled by services but ot billed ver the Group does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counler-parties as
the amounts are recoverable

v fmieresf veckued on Bank demosat
These fixed deposits arc held with credit worthy banks and financial institutions, The ¢redit worthiness of such banks nnd financial instilalions arc
evaluated by the mangpernent on an onpong basis and is considered to be good with low credi risk
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3 Financial instruments - Fair value and risk management {continmed)

iti. Liguidiry risks

Liquidity risk 15 the visk that the Group will ¢nconnter difficulty in meeting the obligatinns assacizled with its financial habilities that are seitled by
delivering eush or onother Gnoncial wsct the Group's opprooch 1o nianaging liquidity ia 10 casure, oo for 0o possible, at it will hove sulficient liquidity to
meet us lisbilities when they are due, under hoih nonnal and stressed conditions, without incurming unacceptable losses or nsking damage to the Group's
1epuloton .

the Gioup aims to maintain the level of is cash and cash equivalents al an aingunt in excess ol expecied cash cutflows on financial liabilities (excluding
Iracle payables)

The following, ave the remaining comracteal matunties of financial liabilities 21 the reponing due. The ainvunts are gross and wodiscounted, snd include
conlrachial interesl payments

As st 31 March 2013

Lontractual cash Hows

Carrying Total 6 months 612 12 More than
amoun or less months vears 2 years
Bommowings 13971 30 14133 10 3.596.66 4474912 205769 190384
Trade payables 661,17 386518 355007 9750 94 20 11442
Lease liabibties 119574 119574 162 20 16351 587 68 28245
Other linancial hatlines 32970 3,297 5320 2930 3592 1178 80
16,11593 22,491.24 T.371.13 4,765.23 287549 747941
As ar 31 March 2022
Carrying Tofal & months 611 1-i Mare than
amoumi or less months VEArs 2 vears
Bomowings 10,780 45 10,780 45 274346 141338 1,645 84 2917217
Teade payables 533771 3468 63 284516 . 30415 a924
Leasc Liabilitics 1.120.61 1.1206] 21976 23532 433187 171 46
Ciher Dnancial liabilines 277437 271413 4476 2465 3022 267450
10.013.14 18.143.84 5.863.14 3.673.35 2,464.08 6,0143.26

v, Macket vishs

haarker risk 15 1he risk of loss of fuure camimgs or Car values or future cash flows that may resull from a change in the price of a financial insimwment. The
vilue of a financial instrument may change as a resull of changes in the interest rates, foreign exchanpe rates and other markel changes that affect marke
nisk sensitive instrements Markel tisk is atribulable wo all market risk sensitive financizal instrumenis including foreign curmency receivables and payables
the Group is exposed 1o markel risk primanly related to lorergn exchange rate rigk {(currency risk). inierest rate risk and the market value of its investments
Thus the Group’s exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activitics and revenue gencratmg and aperating achivities n foreign
CUMERCIES

Currency risk
The summary quantilative dala aboul the Group's exposure to currency nsk as reported 1o the management 15 25 follows:

As at 31 March 2023

Financial assetsf (l'ialn'lilies) LU'SD EURO Tutal
Trade receivables 721.72 108 Ti1 R0
Cazh and cash equivalents 56 57 - 56,57
Borrowings (including inierest acerued [ARJERF - (161342}
Trade pavables {1,908 37} {50.42) {1,958 79)
Men asseis / (liabilitics) Ll,?43.49} (49.34) (2,792.84)

As at 31 March 2021

Financial assets/ (liabilites) LIS ELIR{D Tatal
Trade receivables 23321 [IE: 31 234 02
Cash and cash equiralens M1l - 01
Borrowings (including interest accrued) (1780 2% - (1,780 29)
Trade payables (758.53) (102.21) (891.04)

Net assets f (Habilities) (2.261 80} (101.40) {2,363.20)
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36 Winancial instruments - Fair vabue and risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysiz

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the INR against US dollar and EURO at 31 March would have affected the measurement of financial
instruments denominated n a foreign cumency and siffecied equityand profitor lass by the amounts shown below, This analysis assumes that all other
varisbles, in particolar inkcrest eales, remain consiant and ignores any (mpact of forecast sales and purchases

Prufie / (loss) Equlty, net of iy
Strengihening Wealening Strengthening Weal I

As ar 31 March 2023

USD (1% mevement) . (2743) 2743 {20 30y 2020
EURQ { 1% mavement) 0.4%) 0.49 (037 03
Ag at 31 March 2022

USD {1% movement) (3263 1262 {16,714} 16 14
LURO { 1% vesveimen|) {181} 141 0% 073

¢. Interest rate rish
the Group has only variable rate instrumenis i.e tenn Joan and supplier credit

Fxposure to interesi rale psk
The interest Tate profile of the Gionp's interesi-bearing financial instruments as ceported Lo management is as foliows:

A at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fixed rare borrowings 8095 .
WVariable rate borrowings 13.890 85 10,780,435
13,971.5¢ 10,730.45

€ ush flow sensirrviy analysis for vanabie rate mstrmenss

& reasomable possible change of 100 basis points (bp} in interest retes ot the reporting date would have increascd (decreased ) cquity and profit or loss by
the amounts shown below This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular forsign curréncy exchange rates, remain constant

Profit / (Joss) Equity, met of tns
10U bp increase LO0 bp decrease 100 bp imerease 100 bp decrease

As arJ 1 March 2023

Wavable rate instrunient 1J38.91) 13891 (98.46) 98 4
Cash flow semsitivity (net) (138,91} 138.91 (98.46) 98.46
As at 31 March 2022

“ariable rate insiroment {107 40) 107 §0 (T641) 641
Cosh flow sensitivity (net} (107.80) 107.80 (76.41) Todl

< This space has been inlentionally lefi blank=
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Capital management

‘the Grouwp's policy is to mainiun a sirong capital base 5o as ro mamain investor, creditor and markel confidence and o sustain future development of the
business Tt sets the amouni of capital required on the basis of annual business and long~term operating plans which include capital and ether strategic
ivestiguts The fudiog veguinements e el daough g mixine of equily amd cie Goeowings. e Guoup™s policy is we use shon-ienn aod long-een
barrowinys to meel anticipated funding eequicements. the Group monitors capital using & rahe of net debt 10 equity. For this purpose, nel debt is defined as
iotal liabiliies, compriging interest-bearing loans and borrowings, , Icss cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises all components of cquity

The Growp’s policy is 10 keep the tatic below 1 00 the Group's net debt to equily ratio is as follows. the Group is taking measures 10 bring debt equity rano
ta below | .03

Ay ut A% ar

A1 March 2023 31 March 2002
Taota! liabikilies 13,971 B0 10,780 45

Less - Cash and cash equivalenis {362 90} (437.06)
Adjusted met debt 13,608.90 10,343,839
Toral equity 9497 81 T.279.05
Adjosted net debt to edjusted equity rafio 1.43 1.4

Earnings per share (EFS)
See aceounting polisy innote 3.13
a) Basic earnings per share

The calculations of profin atributable to cquiry shareholders and weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding for purposes of basic earnings per
share calculation are as foliows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2012

Profit Aloss) for the year, altributable to the equity holders 1.32590 {4.012.40%
Weighted average number of equity sharcs 2.7498,271 23885450
Basic earnings per share (In INR) 4.8 {15.50)

b} Diluted earnings per share
Tire caleulation of diluied camings per share s based on profit atribuiable 10 cquity shareholders and weighted average number of equily shares
outstanding, after adjustment For the effects of atl dilutive potential equity shares as follows

Profit £ (loss) Gor the year, alinbuablc Lo the eyuity holders 1,325 90 (4,012.40}
Weighted average number of equiry shares {diluted)

Weighted average number of equity shares {basi¢) 2.714.98,271 2,58.85 450
Efiecl of exercise of share options * - -
Weighled average number of equity shares (dilued) for dhe year 2,74.98,271 2,58,85,450
Weighted average number of aptienally convertible preference shares (diluted)

Weighted average oumber of preference shares 2702703

Weighted nverage number of shares (diluted) for the year (A+B) 3,0200,9T4 1,58,85.450
Diluted earnings per share (In INR) 4,39 (15,50}

* The Parent Compony hos share options which could potentiatty dilute basic eamings per share in the future, but were not included in the calculation of
diluied eamings per share because they are antiduutive

This space bas been witerironolfy left blank
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Leases

(i) As | .ess0r

The Group has leased out digival cincma equipment 1o thealers on operating lease amangement The lease lenn is generally for 3 to |0 years the Group as
well 03 the theaters have an optish of leiirinaling this Tease dvaigeiredt auy e duriop e ene of Qe ledse as pet ihe provisions of the lease
agreement. Based on the management assumptions there is 3 reasonable cenainty that the lease will sunlinue for the lease tem of 5 (o 10 years

Lease mcomne recognised from the above lease arrangement Uncluded under sale of services under Note 26 - INR 2,254 74 lakhs (Previous year - INR
46441 lakhs)

{ii) As Lesser

Lease comnutinents are Lhe furure cash out fiows from the lease contracts which are not recorded in the measurement of lease liabilines These include
poienbial future payments refated 10 shor-term leases as the Group has elecied not (0 apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 (o shori-term Jeases of all assers
that hirve o Jeuse torm of 12 montha or less und tensca for which the underlying assct is of Tow value The Tease payineils wssuvialed with Dicse ledses me
recognized as an expense on a straight-ling basis over the lease term

i Future minimum lease pay ments

A3 March 2023 the furure minimum Jease paymenis 1o be inade under non-cancellable operahimu leases are as follows

As at As at
A March 2023 31 Mavch 2012
Payable in less than one year 3, 43187
Mavable between one and Ave years 608 08 80031
Payable afier more than five years . .
ii, Ampunis recognised in profit or loss
As at As 2
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease expense - munimum lease payments 404 5096
Congingent liabilities and commi fmenrs
itn the extent aol provided for)
As at As af
Contingent liabilities 3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Counler goarantees isswed to banks 3241 3241
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
Excise duty, service tax and customs duty, VAT maners (see Note (i) and {ii) below) 25906 25906
()it maiiers
Bonus (see Mote {iii)} 923181 2381
Note:

(i) The Group has reviewed all its pending Viligations and proceedings and has adequately provided For where provisions are required and disclosed &s
contingent lighilines where applicable, 1 sts consolidated financial statemenis. the Group does not expeet the ouicome of these proceedings tn have 3
materially adverse effect on its financial position

(i) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, i is not practicsble for the Group to eslimale the limings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the
above as it is detenninable onty on receipt of judgements / decisions pending with vanious forums/authorities

(i} Bonus provision financiel year 2014-15 purswant (v rerespective amendment to "Payment of Bonus Act™ for which an interim stay has been granted
by the High Court of Madras

(v} Supreme Court wide their judgement dated 28 February 2019 clarified that Provideni fumd deduction is 1a be made on basic salary and on other salany
components which arc universally made avaitable 1o all employees the Group, based un external advice, believes that there are interprerative challenges
and significant uncertaimties sumrounding the detennmation of liability ineluding period of assessment, application for present and past smployees, liabihty
towards employees' contribuwiion and asscssment of interest and penaltics. The amount of obligation, therefore, cannot be mcasured with suffigien
reliability for past periods and hence, diselosed as contingent liability

As &t As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Commitmenis
Esumated amount of coniracts remaimng 16 be executed on capital account &80 45 .

Fher space bax been mtennonofly left blank
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41 Helated parties

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship

Nature of Relationship

Nome of the Party

Subsichary Campany

Oube Cinema Ine, USA

Jointly contralled ehtiy

Jusnickers Povate Limited.

Loterpiises layig Stpmlicunt hflugiee

55 Theater LLP
Real bnage LLP

Key Management Personnel

Mr V. Senthil Kumar
M P Jayendra
Mg & Sri Varshini

Direcrors

Relutn o of Key Managemnent Personmel

Mr P. Balakrishnan Ramany
Mr M G P

Mr Arun Veemppan
Mra Vee Vijnynlokshmi
Mre ¥ Sivakumar

Mrs Meena Veerappan

Mrs Sudha Panchapakesn

Entitics i which Relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence

Digital Film Technologies Private Limited
Qube Digital Cinenwa Peivate Limiled

B. Transaction with key managerial persoanel {KMP)

Key ansnagemecat persanmel of the Company comprise of the board of directors and key members of management having authority and cesponsibitily for

plaoning. direching and controlling the activities of the Comy

persanael compensation during the vear are as Follows:

For the year ended  For the year ended

3 March 2023

31 Marech 2022

Short 1enm employee benefits 602 44 210 6%
Post-employmeni defined benefies y *
Compensated ahsences v .

602.44 210.68

Torsl

Compensation of the Company's key managerial personnel includes salaries. non-cash benefits and contributéons to post-employment defincd benefir ptan

* Amount aitributable 1o post emplayment benefite and compensated sbsences have not been disclosed 85 the same cannot be identificd distinctly in the

actuanal valualion

C, Related party ar tions during the vear

Nature of iransactions

Transaction value

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Sale of services

fortitres v whrel refafives of KA cam exercise sipnificant miTuence

Drigital Filrn Technologies Private Limmed

Remuneration

Koy Management Persoonch
Mr ¥ Senthil Kumar

Mr T Jayerdra

Mrs. 3 S Varshini

Remuneraion

Relative af Kev Afanagesmens Persosmoel
Mr.drun Veerappan

Mrs. Sudha *anchapakesan

307 41 11301
307.41 1im
9157 90 34
19T 5T 99 34
130 12 000
60244 211,68
6245 667
6 A% 1134
128,92 13.01
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41 Relnted parties {continued) Trunsuciion value
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Vehicle hire charges
Key Maonagement Personne!
Mr V. Senthil Kurnar 540 756
Mr P Jayendra F) 80 738
Mrs Meena Veerappan = 325
16.20 1837
Reimhurstment nf exprrves
,-"m'm!)r cantrafied Py
Justickets Private Limired 14237 8225
Eneires in which relatves of KMP can exercase significant influence
Digsial Film Technologies Private Limited 8738 =
1,355,123 TO0.64
D, Balances a5 al year £nd
Farticulars Balunce fing
As af As af
31 March 2023 31 March 2012
Lonns

Funities i which relanvexs of KMP con exeverse significam influence

Justickets Privaie Linvted 2904 20000
Entities wr which refatives of KAIP cam exercise significant syfuence
{yube Digital Cinemna Private Limited 20400
Loss allowancs {20 00)
Interest pocrwed on boan
Eunsities in whech reloirves of KM con exercise significant influence
Qube Digital Cinerna Privaie Limited 1.73 173
Loss allowance {1733 (173)
Outstanding receivables
Jointly controlled entity
Juzticketz Private Limited 743 4% T4 44
Loss allowance {743 48) (710.31)
- 413
I'ntitiex e which relonves of KNP can exercise significans influence
Digital Film Technologies Private Limited 12709 3123
127.09 3536
Empleyee benelits payatles
Key Managesnent {"ersonnel Relanve of Key Managemens Personnel
Mr W Seathil Kumar 66 67 12097
Mr. P Jayendra 66 67 097
Mr Arun Veerappan - 2179
brs Sudhd Panchapekesan = 11 db
13334 496.19
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D. Balances ns mt year end

Particulars Balance ontstanding
As al As at
o 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Securiny deposits received
Key Management Personnel Relative of Key Aanagement Personnel
Mr. V. Senthil Kemar . 800
Mr. P Jayendrs 800 200
5.00 16.00
Coniraciually reimburss bl expenses
Jointly comirolled entity ’
v e e e LM B - i) Hp— 3-) ] ==30F-36-
Loss atlowance (71991} {597 26)
Invesiments
Jomily controlled enrity
Justickets Private Limited 1,164 9% 116495
Less. Provision for diminution in value of investments 11,164 95) (1,104 95)

This space has been tmentionally left blonk
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42 Share-based pay ments
A, Deseription of share-based payment srrangements
Share option plans (equiy-settlod)

i) ESOI 2006 Man

The 2006 plan was approved by the Board of Thireclors 10 & May 2006 and by sharecholders on 31 May 2006. The plan entilles employees in full 1ime service
1a purchase shares of Ihe Group ol the stipulated exercise price, subject 1o compliance with the vesting condivions; all exercises ophons shall be settled by
physical delivery of shares As per the plan, holders of vested option are entitled 1o purchase one equily shares for every oplron a1 the exercise prige uf INR
10 The key lenns and conditions related $o the granrs under these plans are as follaws

Employees entitled Grant Date Number of Yesting conditions Contractual life of
. instruments - pli
Seniar management pecconnel I Apnl 2012 Amona |1 of options  will  vest fter i years

copmpletion of each year from the date
of grant.

ii) ESOP 2012 Plan

The 2012 plan was epproved by the Board of Directors on July |9, 2012 and by shareholders on QOctober 25, 2012 The plan enlities employees i full time
service 1o purchase shares of the Group ot the stipulated exercise price. subject to compliance with the vesting conditions; all excrerses options shall be
setiled by physical delivery of shares As per the plan, holders of vesied option are entilled (o purchase onie equity shares for every option at the exercise

price of INR 130

Employees entitted Grant Date Numiber of Yesting condirions Contractual kife of|
imstrunsenis i
18 May 2017 25,000 Completion of service of | year from 6 years
jrant datc
Senior nanagement personnel 13 of options  will vesi afler
10 January 2013 30,000 |completion of each vear from Ihe daic 6 years
of grant

B. Measurement of fuir values

The fair value of employee share options (sec (AXi) and {A)[ii)) has been measured using Black -Scholes model as at the grani dote

C. Reconciliation of cuistanding share opticas

The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share options under the share oplion plans (see (ANi) and (i) are as follows

For the year ended 31 March 2023

ESOP Plan 2006

ESOP Plan 2012

Weighted average Mumber oloptions Weighied average Number of oplions

EHEMCISE PIICE

EXETCISE PTICT

Ovutztanding at the bemioning of the year 10 180,000 130 75,000
Forfeited during the period - . - -
Lxeccised dunng Ihe penod 10 59400 - -
Granted dunng the period - . ] .
Quistanding al the end of 1he year 10 | 20,600 130 T5.000
Vesled and Fxercisable as at end of the vear 10 1.20.600 130 75,000
For the year ended }I March 2022
ESOP Plan 2006 ESOP Plan 2012

Weighted average Number of options Weighred average Muimber of options

eXercrit price

SNelcise pRce

Quistanding &l the beginming of the year 19 3,00,000 130 75,000
Forfeited during the period - - - -
Exercised during the peniad 10 1,.20,000 - -
Granted during the period . . i .
Oulstanding a1 the end of 1he year 10 1,80.G00 130 15,000
VYested and Exercisable as at end of the year 10 1,80 GO0 13) T5.000
D. Expenses recopnized in siatement of profit and loss
Total expenses ariging from share based pavinent teansactions recognised in profit or loss as pant of ewployee benefit expense are as follaws:

Year ended Year ended

Ewmplovee Option plan

- Equiry-seitled shared-bassd pavinents (Refer note 3G)

31 March 2023

31 March 2022
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Contract balances

The following 1gble provides infonnatron about recervables. contract assels and contract liabilities From con (racis with cusiomers

(ik Contrace assets { Trade receivables - unbilled ) Amount
Opening balance | April 2022 1,79423
Less: Invoiced during tlee year (1.794.23)
Add: Revenue recognised during the year 296117
Cloging balance 31 March 2023 296117
{ii) Contract fiabilities { Billing in advance of work completed} Amount
Upening balance } Apnl 2022 . 1,007 96
Less: revenue recogmsed that was included in the contract Liabilibes o1 the beginning of the year {1,007 46)
Add: inveices mised for which no revenue s recogoiscd dunng the vear TEE )
Choging balance 31 March 2023 T88.31

Accounts recein able are recorded when the ight ro consideration becomes uncondivional

Contract Tinbilities include payments received in advance of performance under the contract, and are realised with the associated revenue revogmsed under
the conlrac

Reconcilintion of revenue recognised in the Statement of prafit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue from conracis with 05 per Stal { of profil and loss) 1642219
Add: Discounts, rebates, refunds, credits. pnce concessions (A 20
I ess: Conlracl assets adiushments (296117

Cantracted price with the cusiomers 43.394.82
Segment reparting

‘The Group is engaged prumarily in the business of digital cinema services and sale of digital cinena ancillary 1o sale of services The entily’s chief operating
decision naker considers the Group as a whole to make decisians aboul resources 10 be allocaled 1o the segment and assess its perfonnance Accordmgly,
the Group does not have muluple s¢pments and these consolidated financial statements are reflectie of the information required by the ind A5 108 The
chief operating desion maker monitors the operating results of the ennty’s business for the purpose of making decisions sboul resource allocanons and
pel’fo[l'llt'l HEE ARECSIIMNCNL

A. Geographbic information :

The peographic infonmavon analyses the Growp's revenue by (he Group’s conniry of demicile and other countries. In presenting the geographical
infoanation, sepment revenue has been determined based on the geographie location of the customers

Vear ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Indsa 39,132.2% 1594528
Rest of the woild 708004 586624
46,422,110 21,811.52

B. Major Customers

Revenue from top customer of the Group is INR 'Nil" (31 March 202 1: INR “Nil' 3 whech 1s more than 10% of the Group's total revenue.

Micrn and small enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medivm Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 28 August, 2008 which recommends thai the Micro and
Small Entcrprises should mention i thewr comrespondence with its costomers the Cntreprencurs Memorandwn Number as allocated afier filing of the
Memorandurm in accordance with the Micro, Small and Medwm Enerprise Development Aet, 2006 {“the Act™) The disclosure in respect of the ameunts
payable 1o such enterprises as at 31 March 2020 hes besn made in the consolidated fi ial ts bascd on information received and available with
the Group Funther in view of the Managemem, (he impact of inlerest, if any, thal may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not
expecied fo ba malerisl the Groop bas not received any elaim for interest from any supplier as al the balance sheel date

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon {to be shown sepamtely) remaining unpaid to any supplier 96 86 .

at the end of each accounting year

{h) the amount of interest paid by dic buyer in lenns of sectian 16 of the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Development Act, 2006, glong willh the amount of the payment made 1o the supplier beyvond the appointed day
during #ach accounting vear;

() the amount of interest due and payable for the penod of delay in making paymeni (which have heen paid| - -
but beyond the appoinred day during the vear) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Smal|
and Medium Enterpnses Development Aci, 2006,

(d} the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end ol cach accounting yeac, angd - -

{€) the amount of further interest Temaining due and payable even in the succeeding vears, umil such date| . -
when the intereat dues above arc actually paid 1o the small enterprisc, for the purpese of disallowance of a
deduciible expendilure under section 23 of the Micro, Sinall and Medium Enterprises Developiment Act, 2006
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46 Ratio analysis and itz clements

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31 March 2022 i ;::;"‘h Yo change Reason for variance
Cwrent ratio Carremnt Assets Current 091 079|158,
Liabilities
Debl- Equity Towal Debx Shareholder's 1.81 152 |19 Increase in bomowings availed
Ratia Equiry during the period and decline
i equity due 10 Ret 10ss during
the  pernod  resulted in
impravement in the aiv
Debe Senvice Earnings for debi Cebl servics 195 (0,34)]-667% Decline  in losses  and
(Coverage rtio service = We prodr = Interest & improvemeent  in Liguidity
afier laxes + Non-cash Leasze Payments posihion led ko an improvement
operaling ox penses + Principal in the ratio
Repayments
Retum on Profi; after tax Average talal equily 0ls E)-131% Decline  in ot Jess  and
| Equity catio increase in ghare capital during|
the year mproved the mtic
[nvenlory Cost of goods snld Average inventory 218 1 35 |62% Growih i revenue  and
Turnover ratia mnventlory Qphmisation
improved the ratio
Trade het credir sales = Average Trade 449 352 [27% Revenue growth sleng with
Recervable Ciross credii sales - Receivable gher efficiency on realisation
Tumaver Ratio sales refum resulied in an mprovement in
the ratio
Trade Payable Met credit porchases = Average Trade 1.98 1.00 [9%% Increase is  primarily on
Turnover Ratio (Gross credit purchases Payables account  of ncrease iy
- purchase relum purchases
Ner Capital Nel sales = Total sales Working capital (2077) (5.39)|285% Improvemenl is primarily on
Turnover Ranic - sales retum = Current account of increase in sales
assets — Cunrent and decline in net Joss from
liabnlities previous year
Net Profit ratio Net Profit Net sales — 003 {018)-116%% Improverent is primarily on
Toral sales - account of increase in sales|
sales return and decline in net loss from
previous year
Returmn on Earnings before Capital 017 (0.36)]-198% Improvement is pnmarily on
Capilal interesi and 1axes Employed = account of reduclion in loss
Eniploved Tangible Net
Worth + Total
Debt - Deferred
Tax assel
Retum ¢n Imerest { Finance Investment - =
Investment I )]

Fhus spece fas beer intertitonalfy feft blonk
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Addithonal Regulatory Information

1) The Group has bumrowings from banks and financial instiputions on he basis of securily of cunent assets The quanerly
retums or stalements of currenl assets filed by 1the Group with banks and financial institutions gre in agreement with the books
of gecounts

(i} The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any baok or financial institwtion or govemmen! or any povemiment
authority

(in) The Group do not have any transaclions with the companies strick off under Compames Act, 2013
fiv} The Group has complied with the nunber of layees prescribed under (the Companies Acl, 2003

(v] The Group do nol have any Benamn property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending againsi the CGroup for
holding any Benami property

tvi) The Group does nol have any charges or sanisfaction which is yel to be regisiered with Regisirar of Comparaes beyond the
stalutory peaicd

{wi) The Group have nol traded or invested in Crypto currency or Vinual Currency during the finencial year

(viii) The Group do not have any such ransavtion which 1s not recorded in the backs of accounts thal has been sumendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the Lax assessmenis under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any
other relevant prov isions of the Income Tax Act, (961)

(ix} The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds Lo any olher person(s) or cnlily(ies), including loreign entitics
{ Intermednanes) with the undersianding that the Intermediary shall:

(3} directly or wdirectly lend or invest in othes persons or entities identified in any manmer whaisoever (“Ultimate
Beneficiarics™) by or on behalf of the Group
(b] previde any puaraniee, secursty or the like w or on behaif of the Ultimate Reneficiaries

{x} The Group has ot seceived any tund from any personis} or entiiyiies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding {whether recorded m writing or otherwise) thal the Group shalk

(a}y dmectly or indirecily, lend or invest in other persons or catitics identified in any manner whalsoever (“Ultimate
Benedficiaries”] by or on behal [ of the Funding Party
(k) provide any guacaniee, securily ar U like frotn o on behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries.™

{xi) The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipiment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both
during the curtent or previous year

{xii} The Group has mot 1 into wy scl ol arm
yeal

whicl has an accownting impact o current or previous financial

E

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has expori receivables and impon payables amounling to INR 12408 lakhs and 15 64 lakhs
espeetively, which are due for @ period inore than 270 days in case of receivable and more (han 180 days in case of payable, which
are 1he maximum permissible penod for realizalion and repatnaion of export proceeds inta India and pavment of pavables, as per
the master circular issued by Reserve Bank of India Subsequent ra the balance sheet date, the Group has not vet realized this
amounl, however it is in the process of obaining necessary consenl of the Authorized Dealer for delay in receipts and obtain
relevant approvalsicondonatian for the delayed realization as per the requirements of exchange regulation

Transfer pricing

The Group has entered inle trensactions with cemaim related paries For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group obtained an
Acvounant’s repon fram a Chartered Accountani i respect of inlemational transactions with relaled parties bs required by the
relevant provisions of the Income-ax 4ct. 1961 and the same has been filed with the income 1ax authoriies

For the current year, the Group confirms that it maintains documentation as preseribed by the Income-tax Act, 1961 and to prove
that the international transzctions are al armm's length and the aforesaid legislation witl not have any impact an the consohdated
financial stalements, paricularly on (he amount of tax expense and tat of provision for taxation

Code on social security, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Securiy, 2020 which would unpact the contributions by the Group rowards
Provident Fund and Graiuity. The Minisiry of Labour and Ewployment has released drafi nules for the Code on Social Security,
2020 on November 13, 2020, amd has invited sugpestions from stakehelders which are under active consideration by the Minismy
The Group will assess the fmpacl and iis evalnation once the snhject rubes are notified and will give appropriate impact in its
finaneral statements in the period im which the Code becomes effcctive and the refated rules lo detenming the financial impact ace
published
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51 Subsequent events

On July 06, 2023, the Board ot Directors of the Company approved execilion, performance, and delivery of 36:50 joint venture agreements cach dated July
06, 2023, by the Company, with LIFO Movlez India Ltd ("URO"} {eollectlvely refarred 1o as "WV As") to cammy out The following businesses

{a) Selling advertissment inventory on behalf of the Company and UFO, including on-sereen and off-sereen advertising, of DCI and non-DCl screens of the
Company and UFQ, as well as third parties, in [ndia, including providing ancillary services in relation thersto (such as in-cinema and off-cinema
advertising solutions and wural activation verical of UFQ having both LED and normal sereens mounted on a vehicle (i1c, Caravan
Talkies})(“ Advertisement Business”™) (Jointly, “Transaction™)

The newly formed IV, once operational, will eperate across approximately 6,500 screens, amplifying the visibility of in-cinema advertising as a key
advenising medium, Leveraging a larger, unified Advertisement sales team, the venture will seek 1o broaden its reach and explore avenues, on behalf of
the Company and UFQ, for ad sales across various media.

{b) Post-production provessing, mastering of digital content including DCI, Non -OCI, premium large fonnat content, OTT content mastering, restoration,
high dynamic range (HDR) adaptation, cloning, content delivery and key delivery message management of digital content in DCL and Non-OCI formats
{and providing ancillary services in relation thereto, such as content localization, subtitling, dubbing, audio desecription, closed captioning and
mamagements 19suonce of release hald letiera) ('Mostering Business™)

The newly formed TV will significanily benefit the film industry as producers and distribulors will have a single point of contact for their DC1and Non-
DXCI mastering, localization and content defivery need in India and Nepal. Wilh 1he Company and UFQ sharing similar infrasiructure, the joint venlure
plans to opiimiza thess resources aver time ta provide significantly superior services to the film industry

As per our repart attached

for BS R & Co, LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accoumtanis Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Finn's Registration Number: 101248W/ W-100022 CIN : US2490TN 1 986PTC012536 / 1A

N ) e

/ SR =

Satish Vaidyanathan I' Jayendra ¥ Senihil Kumar .Sri Varshini

Fariner Wholetime Direeror Wholelime Director Company Secrelary

Membership No,, 217042 DIN : 00320286G DIN : 00320525

Place. Chennai Place: Mace: Chenuai Flace: Chennai

Date! Date: Date: Date:



	Qube Cinema Technologies Private LimitedThirty Eighth Annual Report –2022-23Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report-Standalone
	Standalone Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023
	Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023
	QCT Consol Auditors Report.pdf

